
 

  

U.S. Department of Justice 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 

  Washington, D.C. 20535  

 
March 5, 2021 

 
MR. JOHN GREENEWALD JR. 
SUITE 1203 
27305 WEST LIVE OAK ROAD 
CASTAIC, CA 91384 
 

FOIPA Request No.: 1490665-000 
Subject: AUSTIN, LOUIS LIVINGSTON 
 

Dear Mr. Greenewald: 
 
The enclosed 135 pages of records were determined to be responsive to your subject and were 

previously processed and released pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).   Please see the 
selected paragraphs below for relevant information specific to your request as well as the enclosed FBI 
FOIPA Addendum for standard responses applicable to all requests.  

 

 In an effort to provide you with responsive records as expeditiously as possible, we are 
releasing documents from previous requests regarding your subject. We consider your 
request fulfilled.  Since we relied on previous results, additional records potentially 
responsive to your subject may exist. If this release of previously processed material does 
not satisfy your request, you may request an additional search for records.  Submit your 
request by mail to Initial Processing Operations Unit, 200 Constitution Drive, 
Winchester, VA  22602, or by fax to (540) 868-4997. Please cite the FOIPA Request 

Number in your correspondence.   
 

 Please be advised that additional records responsive to your subject exist. If this release 
of previously processed material does not satisfy your request, you must advise us that 
you want the additional records processed.  Please submit your response within thirty (30) 
days by mail to Initial Processing Operations Unit, 200 Constitution Drive, 
Winchester, VA  22602, or by fax to (540) 868-4997..  Please cite the FOIPA Request 
Number in your correspondence. If we do not receive your decision within thirty (30) 
days of the date of this notification, your request will be closed. 

 

 One or more of the enclosed records were transferred to the National Archives and 
Records Administration (NARA).  Although we retained a version of the records previously 
processed pursuant to the FOIA, the original records are no longer in our possession.   

 
If this release of the previously processed material does not satisfy your request, you may 
file a FOIPA request with NARA at the following address: 

 
National Archives and Records Administration  
Special Access and FOIA 
8601 Adelphi Road, Room 5500 
College Park, MD 20740-6001 
 

 Records potentially responsive to your request were transferred to the National Archives 
and Records Administration (NARA), and they were not previously processed pursuant to 
the FOIA.  You may file a request with NARA using the address above.   

 
 
 
 



 

 One or more of the enclosed records were destroyed.  Although we retained a version of 
the records previously processed pursuant to the FOIA, the original records are no longer 
in our possession.  Record retention and disposal is carried out under supervision of the 
National Archives and Records Administration (NARA) , Title 44, United States Code, 
Section 3301 as implemented by Title 36, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1228; Title 
44, United States Code, Section 3310 as implemented by Title 36, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 1229.10.   

 

 Records potentially responsive to your request were destroyed.  Since this material could 
not be reviewed, it is not known if it was responsive to your request.  Record retention and 
disposal is carried out under supervision of the National Archives and Records 
Administration (NARA)  according to Title 44 United States Code Section 3301, Title 36 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Chapter 12 Sub-chapter B Part 1228, and 36 CFR 
1229.10.   

 

 Documents or information referred to other Government agencies were not included in this 
release.   

 
Please refer to the enclosed FBI FOIPA Addendum for additional standard responses applicable to 

your request.  “Part 1” of the Addendum includes standard responses that apply to all requests.  “Part 2” 

includes additional standard responses that apply to all requests for records about yourself or any third party 
individuals.  “Part 3” includes general information about FBI records that you may find useful.  Also 

enclosed is our Explanation of Exemptions. 
 
For questions regarding our determinations, visit the www.fbi.gov/foia website under “Contact Us.”  

The FOIPA Request Number listed above has been assigned to your request.  Please use this number in all 
correspondence concerning your request. 
 

If you are not satisfied with the Federal Bureau of Investigation’s determination in response to this 
request, you may administratively appeal by writing to the Director, Office of Information Policy (OIP), United 
States Department of Justice, 441 G Street, NW, 6th Floor, Washington, D.C. 20530, or you may submit an 
appeal through OIP's FOIA STAR portal by creating an account following the instructions on OIP’s website: 
https://www.justice.gov/oip/submit-and-track-request-or-appeal.  Your appeal must be postmarked or 
electronically transmitted within ninety (90) days of the date of my response to your request.  If you submit 
your appeal by mail, both the letter and the envelope should be clearly marked "Freedom of Information Act 
Appeal."  Please cite the FOIPA Request Number assigned to your request so it may be easily identified. 

 
You may seek dispute resolution services by contacting the Office of Government Information 

Services (OGIS).  The contact information for OGIS is as follows: Office of Government Information 
Services, National Archives and Records Administration, 8601 Adelphi Road-OGIS, College Park, Maryland 
20740-6001, e-mail at ogis@nara.gov; telephone at 202-741-5770; toll free at 1-877-684-6448; or facsimile 
at 202-741-5769.  Alternatively, you may contact the FBI’s FOIA Public Liaison by emailing 
foipaquestions@fbi.gov.  If you submit your dispute resolution correspondence by email, the subject heading 
should clearly state “Dispute Resolution Services.”  Please also cite the FOIPA Request Number assigned 
to your request so it may be easily identified. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
             

 
Michael G. Seidel 
Section Chief 
Record/Information 
  Dissemination Section 
Information Management Division 

Enclosure(s)  

http://www.fbi.gov/foia
https://www.justice.gov/oip/submit-and-track-request-or-appeal
mailto:foipaquestions@ic.fbi.gov


 

FBI FOIPA Addendum 

As referenced in our letter responding to your Freedom of Information/Privacy Acts (FOIPA) request, the FBI FOIPA 
Addendum provides information applicable to your request.  Part 1 of the Addendum includes standard responses that apply 
to all requests.  Part 2 includes standard responses that apply to requests for records about individuals to the extent your 
request seeks the listed information.  Part 3 includes general information about FBI records, searches, and programs.   

Part 1: The standard responses below apply to all requests: 
 

(i) 5 U.S.C. § 552(c).  Congress excluded three categories of law enforcement and national security records from the 

requirements of the FOIPA [5 U.S.C. § 552(c)].  FBI responses are limited to those records subject to the requirements 
of the FOIPA.  Additional information about the FBI and the FOIPA can be found on the www.fbi.gov/foia website. 
 

(ii) Intelligence Records.  To the extent your request seeks records of intelligence sources, methods, or activities, the 

FBI can neither confirm nor deny the existence of records pursuant to FOIA exemptions (b)(1), (b)(3), and as applicable to 
requests for records about individuals, PA exemption (j)(2) [5 U.S.C. §§ 552/552a (b)(1), (b)(3), and (j)(2)].  The mere 
acknowledgment of the existence or nonexistence of such records is itself a classified fact protected by FOIA exemption 
(b)(1) and/or would reveal intelligence sources, methods, or activities protected by exemption (b)(3) [50 USC § 
3024(i)(1)].  This is a standard response and should not be read to indicate that any such records do or do not exist. 

 
Part 2: The standard responses below apply to all requests for records on individuals:   
 

(i) Requests for Records about any Individual—Watch Lists.  The FBI can neither confirm nor deny the existence of 

any individual’s name on a watch list pursuant to FOIA exemption (b)(7)(E) and PA exemption (j)(2) [5 U.S.C. §§ 
552/552a (b)(7)(E), (j)(2)].  This is a standard response and should not be read to indicate that watch list records do or 
do not exist. 
 

(ii) Requests for Records about any Individual—Witness Security Program Records.  The FBI can neither confirm 

nor deny the existence of records which could identify any participant in the Witness Security Program pursuant to 
FOIA exemption (b)(3) and PA exemption (j)(2) [5 U.S.C. §§ 552/552a (b)(3), 18 U.S.C. 3521, and (j)(2)].  This is a 
standard response and should not be read to indicate that such records do or do not exist.  
 

(iii) Requests for Records for Incarcerated Individuals.  The FBI can neither confirm nor deny the existence of records 

which could reasonably be expected to endanger the life or physical safety of any incarcerated individual pursuant to 
FOIA exemptions (b)(7)(E), (b)(7)(F), and PA exemption (j)(2) [5 U.S.C. §§ 552/552a (b)(7)(E), (b)(7)(F), and (j)(2)].  
This is a standard response and should not be read to indicate that such records do or do not exist.  

 
Part 3: General Information:    

 
(i) Record Searches.  The Record/Information Dissemination Section (RIDS) searches for reasonably described records by 

searching systems or locations where responsive records would reasonably be found.  A standard search normally 
consists of a search for main files in the Central Records System (CRS), an extensive system of records consisting of 
applicant, investigative, intelligence, personnel, administrative, and general files compiled by the FBI per its law 
enforcement, intelligence, and administrative functions.  The CRS spans the entire FBI organization, comprising records 
of FBI Headquarters, FBI Field Offices, and FBI Legal Attaché Offices (Legats) worldwide; Electronic Surveillance 
(ELSUR) records are included in the CRS.  Unless specifically requested, a standard search does not include references, 
administrative records of previous FOIPA requests, or civil litigation files.  For additional information about our record 
searches, visit www.fbi.gov/services/information-management/foipa/requesting-fbi-records. 
 

(ii) FBI Records.  Founded in 1908, the FBI carries out a dual law enforcement and national security mission.  As part of this 

dual mission, the FBI creates and maintains records on various subjects; however, the FBI does not maintain records on 
every person, subject, or entity. 
 

(iii) Requests for Criminal History Records or Rap Sheets.  The Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Division 

provides Identity History Summary Checks – often referred to as a criminal history record or rap sheet.  These criminal 
history records are not the same as material in an investigative “FBI file.”  An Identity History Summary Check is a 
listing of information taken from fingerprint cards and documents submitted to the FBI in connection with arrests, 
federal employment, naturalization, or military service.  For a fee, individuals can request a copy of their Identity History 
Summary Check.  Forms and directions can be accessed at www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/identity-history-summary-
checks.  Additionally, requests can be submitted electronically at www.edo.cjis.gov.  For additional information, please 
contact CJIS directly at (304) 625-5590.   

 
(iv) National Name Check Program (NNCP).  The mission of NNCP is to analyze and report information in response to name 

check requests received from federal agencies, for the purpose of protecting the United States from foreign and domestic 
threats to national security.  Please be advised that this is a service provided to other federal agencies.  Private Citizens 
cannot request a name check.  

http://www.fbi.gov/foia
file:///C:/Users/ANROBERTSON/AppData/Local/Temp/1/Letters/www.fbi.gov/services/information-management/foipa/requesting-fbi-records
http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks
http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks
http://www.edo.cjis.gov/


 

EXPLANATION OF EXEMPTIONS 

 

SUBSECTIONS OF TITLE 5, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 552 
 

(b)(1) (A) specifically authorized under criteria established by an Executive order to be kept secret in the interest of national defense or foreign 

policy and (B) are in fact properly classified to such Executive order; 

 

(b)(2) related solely to the internal personnel rules and practices of an agency; 

 

(b)(3) specifically exempted from disclosure by statute (other than section 552b of this title), provided that such statute (A) requires that the 

matters be withheld from the public in such a manner as to leave no discretion on issue, or (B) establishes particular criteria for withholding 

or refers to particular types of matters to be withheld; 

 

(b)(4) trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person and privileged or confidential; 

 

(b)(5) inter-agency or intra-agency memorandums or letters which would not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with 

the agency; 

 

(b)(6) personnel and medical files and similar files the disclosure of which would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy; 

 

(b)(7) records or information compiled for law enforcement purposes, but only to the extent that the production of such law enforcement records 

or information ( A ) could reasonably be expected to interfere with enforcement proceedings, ( B ) would deprive a person of a right to a 

fair trial or an impartial adjudication, ( C ) could reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy, ( D ) 

could reasonably be expected to disclose the identity of confidential source, including a State, local, or foreign agency or authority or any 

private institution which furnished information on a confidential basis, and, in the case of record or information compiled by a criminal law 

enforcement authority in the course of a criminal investigation, or by an agency conducting a lawful national security intelligence 

investigation, information furnished by a confidential source, ( E ) would disclose techniques and procedures for law enforcement 

investigations or prosecutions, or would disclose guidelines for law enforcement investigations or prosecutions if such disclosure could 

reasonably be expected to risk circumvention of the law, or ( F ) could reasonably be expected to endanger the life or physical safety of any 

individual; 

 

(b)(8) contained in or related to examination, operating, or condition reports prepared by, on behalf of, or for the use of an agency responsible for 

the regulation or supervision of financial institutions; or 

 

(b)(9) geological and geophysical information and data, including maps, concerning wells. 

 

SUBSECTIONS OF TITLE 5, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 552a 

 

(d)(5) information compiled in reasonable anticipation of a civil action proceeding; 

 

(j)(2) material reporting investigative efforts pertaining to the enforcement of criminal law including efforts to prevent, control, or reduce crime 

or apprehend criminals; 

 

(k)(1) information which is currently and properly classified pursuant to an Executive order in the interest of the national defense or foreign 

policy, for example, information involving intelligence sources or methods; 

 

(k)(2) investigatory material compiled for law enforcement purposes, other than criminal, which did not result in loss of a right, benefit or 

privilege under Federal programs, or which would identify a source who furnished information pursuant to a promise that his/her identity 

would be held in confidence; 

 

(k)(3) material maintained in connection with providing protective services to the President of the United States or any other individual  pursuant 

to the authority of Title 18, United States Code, Section 3056; 

 

(k)(4) required by statute to be maintained and used solely as statistical records; 

 

(k)(5) investigatory material compiled solely for the purpose of determining suitability, eligibility, or qualifications for Federal civilian 

employment or for access to classified information, the disclosure of which would reveal the identity of the person who furnished 

information pursuant to a promise that his/her identity would be held in confidence; 

 

(k)(6) testing or examination material used to determine individual qualifications for appointment or promotion in Federal Government service 

the release of which would compromise the testing or examination process; 

 

(k)(7) material used to determine potential for promotion in the armed services, the disclosure of which would reveal the identity of the  person 

who furnished the material pursuant to a promise that his/her identity would be held in confidence. 

 

FBI/DOJ 
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TO 

SUBJECT: " 

• 

J. Edgar Hoover, Director 
Fe~era1 Bureau of Investigation 

, ,-: ~ }. ' , ( , J J 

DATE: 3ili:tj)r)rYf~' ~ ,1~~,:J : 

CBl"i:JTG:r.n: i ·,,, ' j ' , 

Charles B. l-lurray, Assistant Attorney Ge 22-48-478 \ ~ " c ' , ' ,' 
Criminal Division A ~r 22-83-478 . 1 . • l.' ~:" . , ' 

United states v. 5 Cases, etc., ( h~) ., ,.,. ,, ' 
Capon Springs Water .( I I ' :: >~: " , "~ ~ 

It :ts reque~ted that an investigation be made w"i th resp~ciL~~~~~~:'~~-=-~ 
to the disappearance of a quantity of Capon Springs ~'Tater wh:ilca- - -_.----~ 
had been seized by the United States l1arshal·for the Southern~ 
District of New York pursuant to process issued in a seizure a~\ ) 
tion brought under the Federal Food, Drug, and CosmGtic Act. Th~ J ~ 
purpose of thG investigation will be to determine whether ther~. · ~ i 

occurred such a wilful destruction or disposal of the seized ar-\ ( .- ! 
ticle as to constitute criminal contempt. in viola ion of 18 U ~WC· // I 
401, or the corrupt obstruction of the a ':nist ion of justic(e--,\n -
violation of 18 U.S~C. 1503. 

"\ 

The proceeding was commenced by th fili~ of a libel on 
June 4, 1943. The libel alleged that he water had been shipped 
on or about March 16 and 18, 1943, by .... Capon ::latE?l'-.-C.oJ.ll!)aUY- from 
.2!:pon Springs, 1'1est Virgini?", and :vTaS stored in the possession of 
Norman S~orage and Trucking Company, Inc., 10-12 Leonard street, " 
New York City, New York; and that the article was misbranded in ~at 
statements,in the labeling were false and misleadine in representing 
the water as effective in restoring certain functions of the human ~ 
boqy and in possessing qualities beneficial to health greatly in ex- ~ ' 
cess of those derived from ordinar inking water. The bottles of ~ 
water were seized by the United ates lfurshal at 'l:ihe premises of 'r, I. 

the above storage company an~.... ert':in its c.9St'ody by the Narshal. '~ 
It appears that one Andrew p. st. Thomas C!s at that time the dis- .~) 
tributor of. the water rn-New YorK:Gi~y ~ -Q had stored the article a11 
the warehouse in connection with- his a 'i:tities. His address is ( ~ 
stated to be at 500 5th Avenue, Nel-T' rk City. ~J~ \', 

~ " {\(_: 
Capon !Jater Compamy, Louis L. "Au~, · and others, appeared as Wi' "~_I 

?laimants and in February 1944, filed an answer denying the misbrang'- l ' ~\ ; 
1ng charge and further defended upon pleas of re/:i judicata based ~ '.~ 
upon a previous judgment in a seizure action brought in January 1928, 
and a cease and desist order of the Federal Trade Commission entered 
in January 1938. The Dis trict Coprt held for the claimant and en-
tered an order of dismissal on Juiy 13, 19h5. On appeal' / the Court 

". 

of App~als for the Second Cir~Ff'J rev~rsed in ~ opinion dated 
July 17, 1946, 156 F. 2d 49Jf .f:t' .. Z\ / r (,. · .' 7 

/) .') ~t ~ - ~ ~,A'? f If , -/f~ ,>,"') ~ t, ~ ~~\ ~---:> .~'--v' , -;;;J;.. 4 \li\ .' . 
, ,' ~ : .. r"}- --- t, .. \ S~ \,. p I ~ '~ ~ ' [}'; ,~, ~ : " . l 

, "'1'\ ',' .o ' . ' . T::i ::7!-." ' ~ ' I '; .,.' 
... r ; r \- " ('-) iii I / "'.1 Y\, ~ '-

",I'!.'" ' .l;..{ .' ' '. ti I, ' .~ ·1 \ I:', ' {" , ( ;~~~/ ~ 'I" \ ' J),\. ( \ \ .1 l I ,l V 
!)F '\ ~; '~ ... '. \'-~. -'I / Q<J - ' , \ ,; 
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Following this, and upon the application of the claimants, 
the case was removed to the District of New Jersey for trial. 
Upon such a removal, the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 
(21 U.S.C. 334(f» does not require that the seized article be 
transferred from the one district to the other, and the seized 
water remained in the warehouse in New York City. Several delays 
were had which prevented the case being set for trial. 

In March 1951, the Food and Drug Administration made a routine 
,,' inspection to determine the whereabouts and condition of the water 
, ,which had been seized, and has stated that it discovered that the 

'seized water could not be found in the warehouse in New York City 
,f ''Where it had been stored by the United States Marshal. This cir-

t" ~umstance" .E'~:t~~"t-pe-.~~~ ..Pr~g~~ir~:!$j:.r~t~~ -~~ __ mak~ /_~~h~~ 
,- mquiry to __ d~te:r"ITq-!.l~~ .. ~~?b2Jl.:t~ ...2!...~~'t!~.:te!_?~q_:~.Q.e ~_~:r:..c~n-
, stances or i~.~~~~a~~~~~ T~e substance of the infor.ma~ion ob­
~ained pursuant to th~s ~nq~ry ~s that no records were ava~lable 
at the warehouse as to the disposition of the water. The manager 
of the warehouse advised that the last record of any transaction 
was dated March 12, 1947, and disclosed that a large number of empty 
bottles were delivered to a transfer company to be returned to Capon 
Springs, West Virginia, and that the account was closed at that time. 
Mr. William Herbst, Vice President, stated that he could remember the 
water being "trucked away not too many years after the seizure and 
that there Was a person present with a truck carrying a badge". He 
did not know l-Jhether the person Vias from the Food and Drug Administra­
tion or from the United States Marshal's office, but was quite sure 
that the official left a receipt. 

Mr. Louis L. L~ustin, whose adiress is 1427 Spruce Street, Phila­
delphia 2, Pennsylvania, umo appears to be the principal claimant :in 
the seizure action, has made a number of complaints to this Depart­
ment and to the Federal Security Agency with respect to the proceed­
ings had in this case, and has repeatedly requested this Department 

, to make an investigation to determine tl?-e responsibility for the 
disappearance of the water. We have been furnished copies of affi­
davits of the officers of the warehouse company Which he obtained. 
The affidavit of William Herbst, Vice-President of the Norman Storage 
and Trucking Company, states:' 

4. That he had been informed of the letter written by the 
New York Distributor of Capon Springs :Jater, i.A. P. St. 
Thomas on April 25, 1945, to the Norman Storage & Truck­
ing Company, advising that by no means was the seized 
water to be touched by anyone. 

5. That sometime after, at a date he does not now recall, 
the warehouse was visited by a government representa­
tive who presented a badge and said he had come to re­
move the 19 packages of Capon Springs Water that had 
been seized. That this party hed a truck with him. 
and that he, lulliam Herbst, help load the seized ~ater 
on the truck. 
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That he, William Herbst would recognize this man 
with a badge anymere, as the man had COllE to the 
warehouse on frequent occasions. That, to his, 
11r. Herbst's best knowledge and belief, the man 
with a badge was from the Food and Drug Administra­
tion. 

That he, William Herbst, had given this information 
to Inspectors Cole and Kedzior of the Food and Drug 
Administration on their several visit s to the Norman 
storage & Trucking Company in May of 1951. 

That he, William Herbst, is positive that the seized 
water was disposed of in this way and in no other way. 

The affidavit of Earnest J. Meyer, President of the storage company, 
states: 

"That he has checked again "lith the other officers of 
the Norman storage and Trucking Company, and they are 
all positive, without doubt, that the seized lJ'ater was 
removed by the Food and Drug Administration, and by no 
other persons." 

In a letter to the Federal Security Administrator dated May 6, 
1952, Mr. Austin in effect states that the responsibility for the 
disappearance of the water has been placed upon him by the Food and4,J3 
Drug Administration and the Department of Jll:stice, and that he d~; :j?-~r~ . 
sires appropriate steps be taken to absolve him of blame. ~ hi'S· 
memorandum prepared for the Attorney General dated June 17, 1952, re­
questing an investigation, 11r. Austin states that the Food and Drug 
~dministration has present knowledge, as it has always had, of the 
whereabouts of the water, and that an investigation will establish 
beyond doubt that the water' was removed by the Food and Drug Adminis­
tration. 

, The wilful destruction or disposition of the seized water, which 
was in custodia legis, would constitute a criminal contempt punish­
able under 18 u.s.c. 401, and perhaps a violation of 18 u.s.c. 1503 
which punishes any person who corruptly obstructs or impedes the due 
administration of justice. The charge made by Mr. Austin that lithe 
Food and Drug Administration has knowledge now, as it always had, of 
the whereabouts of the water, they say somehoW disappeared", is 
tantamount to saying that the officials of that Agency are covering 
up the manner of its disposition. 
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It is, therefore, requested that an investigation be made 
to determine the circumstances under which the Capon Springs 
lV'ater involved in this c~se disappeared or was disposed of, and 
the identity of the person or persons responsible. 

The documents referred to are in the Department's files. 
Further information desired with respect to this case may be ob­
tained from Mr. Vincent A. Kleinfeld and ]llr. John T. Grigsby, 
attorneys in the Criminal Division. 
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'" " STANDARD FORM NO. 64 • 

Ij . "Office Memor!ndum · • • .; 

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT.· 

TO 

FROM 

Mr. Ladd W' 
Mr. Rosen ~4" , 

'/< 
SUBJECT: I!s UNITED STATES v. FIVE CASES, 

&f'.c.AE.mL S PRINGS-WATER­
CONTEM'PT OF COURT 

DATE: 

ETC. 

January ,29'2953 

0;y'tj/ 
ClOI., /' 

K~ 
~~~~=-OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 

« (/),1 '"' p f l t f , • ) ~ -rE D 
SYNOPSIS: v r · ," VV'n " .... 

t..(), 
Trae~_ 

harbo_ 

!Jel::.ont_ 

:..ohr __ . 

Tele. 1\.oo=_ j 

,I, , 
Ii 
f 

\ 

J 

By mem<:>randum dated January 23, 1953, received in the 1: .... _' -

Investigative Division January 28, 1953, the Criminal Division or oo~­
the Department of Justice requested an investigation to deter.mine .2 ! 
the circumstances under which Capon Springs Water seized by the .-.-:<,:"':'",.--~ 
United States Marshal under process brought in the Southern Dist~!Ct 
of New York disappeared or was disposed of and the identity of tne 
person or persons responsib~.. A libel suit was filed against the 
Capon Water Company" Louis_~" Austin and others on June 4, 1943. The 
Food and Drug Administr~tion ' i March, 1951, round that the seized 
water was no longer in storage and this "prompted the Food and.,..lDrug 
Administration to make further inquiry •. n Allegation by Austin ; 
indicates Food and Drug Administration fully cognizant of dispopition 
of water. Recommend necessary investigation be conducted. / 

PURPOSE:' 

To advise you or the Criminal Division~s request to 
investigate a Contempt or Court or Obstruction of Justice case in 
the disappearance of evidence in a warehouse in New York City, in 
a Food and Drug Administration Act case. It is recommended we accept 
the case for investigation. Accordingly, a memorandum to the 
Washington Field is attached for your approval. 

DETAILS: 

By memorandum dated January 23, 1953, received in the 
Investigative Division January 28, 1953, the Criminal Division 
requested that an investigation be made with respect to the disw 
appearance of a quantity o·f Capon Springs Water which had been seized 
by the U ~ S,. Marshal f'or the Southern District of New York, pursuant 
to proc~ss issued in a seizure action b~ught under the Federal Food, 
Drug and Cosmetic Act. The purpose of the investigation would be to 
determine whether thefe occurred such willful dlStruction or disposal 
of the seized article as to constitute a criminal contempt in violation 
of Section 401, Title 18, U. S. C. (Contempt of Court) or Section 1503, 
Title 18, u. S. C. (Obstruction of Justice). The Food and. Drug 
Administration filed a libel suit against the Capon Water ~panYI ":\';.;:/ 
Louis L. Austin and others on June 4. 1943~f~#i~G~ G"9. c~t~ 
Attachment RECORDED, : 1 .. , 'B G 1 !~j ):-;, ' '{\'1 
}iJB::DC \~I' DE)\t.U"\ ~ · '. ~\l I' ~¥" : 
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/ 

,.) 
e • •• 

Memorandum to Mr. Ladd 

misbranded water had been shipped on or about March 16 and 18, 1943, 
by Capon Water Company and was stored in the possession of Norman 
Storage and Trucking Company, Incorporated, New York City. The water 
was seized by the U. S. Marshal, Southern District of New York, and 
lef't in the custody of the Norman Storage and Trucking Company. 

U. S. District Court held for the claimants and entered 
an order of dismissal of the suit on July 13, 1945. The CoUrt of 
Appeals, Second Circuit, reversed the lower court on July 17, 1946, 
156 F. 2d 493. The case was thereafter removed to the Judicial 
Dis'trict of New Jersey f'or trial. In March, 1951, the Food and 
Drug Administration discovered that the seized water could not be 
f'ound in the Norman Storage and Trucking Company's warehouse, and 
thereafter made an investigation to de,termine :the whereabouts of' th.e 
water and the circumstances of' its disappearance. 

PRIOR INVESTIGATION BY FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION:-

The Criminal Division's memorandum of' January 23, 1953, 
states that after the seized water could not be f'ound nthese cir­
cumstances prompted the Food and Drug Administration to make f'urther 
inquiry to determine the whereabouts of' the water and the circum~ 
stances of' its disappearance." The inquiry resulted in finding 
the warehouse with no record of the disposition of' the water although 
an of'ficial of' the warehouse recalled the water being "trucked away 
not too many years af'ter the seizure and that there was a person 
present with a truck carrying a badge. If This of'f'icia1 did not know 
the identity of' the person but was quite sure that he left a 
receipt. The last record, according to the manager of' the ware­
house, was dated March 12, 1947, at which time empty bottles were 
delivered to a transf'er company to be returned to the Capon Spring 
Water Company. -

PREVIOUS LITIGATION: 

By memorandum dated July 26, 1934, the Department requested 
an investigation into charges made to the Department of Agriculture 
by Austin in his letter to that Department dated July 11, 1934. 
Austin ?-lleged that certain employees 'of the Food and Drug Adminie .. 
tration abused their power and that there ~xisted an unholy alliance 
between these employees and a powerf'u1 outside organization. Our 
investigation showed that Austin had been in litigation with the 
Food and Drug Administration since Januar,y, 1928, when a suit was 
filed against him under the Food and Drug Laws, which suit was 
decided against the Government. Subsequent seizures of Capon Springs 
Water took place. Austin upon interview complained that the Food 
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and Drug Administration was being dominated by the American Medical 
Association in an e~~ort to ruin the reputation o~ the Capon Springs 
Water Company. A copy of the r~port o~ Special Agent John F. Sears, 
dated at Philadelphia, October 30, 1934, re~lecting the completion 
of the investigation requested by the Department was ~orwarded to the 
Department by memorandum dated November 7, 1934, (Bufile 62-32454~5). 

A memorandum dated June 17, 1952, by Louis L. Austin 
prepared for the Attorney General was transmitted to the Bureau 
by informal note ~rom the Attorney General dated June 19, 1952, 
requesting a report on nCapon Springs and Farms. ft Austin f s 
memorandum was in regard to the di sappearance o~ the seized water 
in the suit filed in 1943 and requested an investigation by the 
FBI. Austin alleged that the F09d and Drug Administration has 
knowledge o~ the whereabouts o~ the water and that an investigation 
would establish beyond doubt that the water was removed by that 
Agency. According to the Criminal Division memorandum, Austin 
secured affidavits in the matter and has repeatedly requested an 
investigation to determine the responsibility ~or the disappearance 
o~ the water. By memorandum dated June 23, 1952, the Department was 
given a summary of the in~or.mation in our files, together with 
another copy of the report o~ Special Agent John F. Sears, dated 
at Philadelphia, Octo~er 30, 1934. The original memorandum of 
Mr. Austin was reti:~ed to the' Department with our memorandum of 
June 23, 1952, (Bufile 62-32454-13). 

'REC OMMENDATION:' 

\ 

It is recommended that we accept the case for investigation 
in view of the specific charges against the Food and Drug Administra­
tion by Austin. 

ACTION: 

\.~ If you concur with the above recommendation, there is 
Vl~/;~ttached hereto for your approval a memorandum to the Washington 
~"',~ Field Of~ice. 

'i ~ ~~&r; ri 
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The inv€s,tigat.ion in this case was predic:ated on a reques1t of Mao 

CHARLFS, Ho MOFtRAY, P~ssis;tant A.ttorney Genera:l, Criminal Division, Department 
of Justiceo ~ljlRo MURR.f..Y furnished the following information in his letter 
to the iF'Bl dated January 23, 195)..0 

"Tt is requested that an investigation be made vlith respect to the 
disa.ppea.llaIleJe (If a. qp.au'ti iiy of Capon Springs: Water which had been seiz.ed by the 
Uni ted states Marshal for the Southern DiSiliric::t of New. York pursuant to process 
issued in & seizure action brought under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 

.' AG;t.,. The purpose of the inves,tiga:tion will be to determine vThether there 
11 ' ocourred such a wili'ul des,truction or disposaJ. of the seized article as to J 
I ~ constitute criminal contempt in VJiolation of 18 UC)~,hC ... 401$ or , 'the corrupt -
i /D 'J;(\obs~ruc_ti?n..O,f the administrat,i~n of jus,tice in violation of lIB UoS,,,Co-1503{/:t'../ 
¢~ , __ ,1.'.I}, I: : :II"'~II .,' 

, ~ • . l)'".1 ItThe proceeding W8.s commenced by the filing of a libel on June 4, 
"I : •. \." \' 1943", The Ii l.>el alleged tha't the wa tel' had been shipped on or a:bou'b l~rch 16 

APPROVED AND SPECIAL AGENT 
FORWARDED. IN CHARGE ~., D~)~Or WRITE IN TfiESE SPACES 

PROP,ERTY OF FBI· This c~_4'if report and its contents are loarled to you by the L ___ F_BI_and are nol 10 be ISlribuled ou side of agency 10 which loaned. 
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nand 18,9 1943~ by Oa·pon Water Oompany from Oapon Springs,? Wes.t Virginia., 
and was stored in the possession of Mornen 5·torage and Trucking Company,. 
IncoJj 10-12 Leonard s ;treet,9 New York Oity, l'Tew York; and tha.t the q-rticle 
was' misbranded in tha;1i s,tp.:liements in the la.beling were false and misleading 
in repres.en-ting the wa-ter as effective in restoring certain functions of 
the human body and in possessing qualities' beneficial to health greatly 
in excess of those derived from ordinary drinking watero The bottles of 
wa ter w.ere seiz-.ed by :the United sta;tes Marshal <;;-t the premis-eB. of the 
above storage compa and left in its; custody by the Me'rshal. It appea-rs; 
that one .A:NDRBV: Po ~S:T .. mOMA~S was at that time the distributor of the 
water in Rew Yo 'City and had s;tored the article a.t the warehouse in 
connection with his. ae:tivities.o His address is stated to be at 500 5th 
Avenue, New York -Oityo. ~(~ I 

- \1 • /" 
nOapon Wa·ter Oompany,9 LOUIS L - . US..!flN,. and others, appeared as 

claimants and in February 191.14, filed n' ~nsV{er denying the misbranding 
charge a-nd further defended upon pleas: of :res _judicata based upon a 
previous judgment in a seizure a.ction brought in January 1928, and a 
cease and desist order of the Federal Trade Oommission entered in 
January 19380 The Dis.trict Court held for the clad.mant and entered an 
order of dismissal on July 13, 1945.. On appeal, the Oourt of Appeall&; 
for the S.econd Circuit revers.-ed in an opinion dated July 17, 1946 ~ 156 
F •. 2rl 493io 

"Following this)) and upon the application 6f the claimcm ts~ 
the case was removed to the Distric:t of New Jersey for tria.:l", Upon such 
& removal,9 the Federal Ji'oodJ)' Drug, and Cosmetic Act (2:1 U,$oOo 3.34(f» 
does: not require that the sei~ed ~ticle be transferred from the one 
district to the other, and the seized water remained in the warehouse 
in 'NiSI'''' York Oityo Several deJ.a;ys: were had which prevented the ca:se 
being set for trialo 

tt:rn March 1951Jl! the Food and Drug t£dminis;tr~tion made a routine 
inspection to determine the whereabouts. and condition of the wa:.ter which 
had been seized, amd has sta-ted that it discovered that the seiZted water 
could not be found in the warehouse in New York City where it ha,d been 
atored by the United S.ta. tes; M:ilrspalo This circumsita,nce prompted the Food 
and Drug l£dminis,tra.tion to make further inquiry to determine the -
wherea;bouts of the water and the circumstances of its disappea,rance",fue 
substanG:e of the information obtained pursuant to this inq;ui.ry is that 
no records· were available at the warehouse ~s to the disposition of the 
we. ter... The nanB.!ger of the warehous:e advised that the last record of 
any transaction wa-s· dated March 12., 1947 ~ and disclosed tba. t a J.a;rg~ numben' 
of empty bottles; were delivered to a transfer company to be returned 
to Capon Springs, w.est Virginia!! and that tihe account 'wa s closed at' that 

- 2 _ . 
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iI(timeo Mao WILLI"AM HERBST, Vice Presidentj) stated that he could 
remember the Vlater being Itltrucked away not too na.ny yeaTs after the 
seizure and tha t there was a person pres.ent with a truck carrying a 
badgeii'o He did not know whether the person was from the Food and Drug 
.A.dministra.tion or from the United states Ms.rshalcs Office, but was 
quite sure that the official left a receipto 

t~MRo LOUIS La l\:USTIN, whose address is. 142:.7 Spruce street, 
Phi~delphia; 2::, Pennsylvania, who appears to be the principal c18.imant 
in the seizure ac:ti.onj) ha.s nade a number of complaints: to this: Depart-> 
ment and to the Federal Security Agency with respect to the proceedings: 
had in tpis acnse.9 and ha s repea;,tedly requested this Depa-rtmen t to 
make an investigation to determine the responsibility for the disappearance 
<;>f the water .. W.e have been furnished copies of affidavits of the 
officers of the warehouse company which he obta:ined... The a>ffidavi t of 
WILLIAM HERBS:T, Vice-President .of the Norman stora:ge and Trucking 
Company, states& 

~~()o That he had been informed of the letter written by 

~
h? ew York Distributor of Capon Springs:Vrater, Ao 

P' ·",S.To mOMAS· on ~pril 2.5, 1945, to the Norman S:tora..ge 
-Truc1dng-Company, advi sing that by no means We. s the 

seiz:ed wa ter to be touched by anyone 0 

\-:5.,. 'Jlla:t sometime after, a;,.t a date he does not now recall» 
the w.$,:rehouse VIa s visi ted by a governmen. t represen ta­
tive who presented a badge and said he had come to re­
move the 19 packages of Capon. Springs 1'fater <tha.t had 
been seiz·edo.. That this party had. a truck with him,; 
aild that he,9 WILLIAM HERBSjTj) help load the seized wa ~er 
on the trucko 

"60 Thatt he., WILLIAM HERBST would recogniz:e '!ihis man 
with a badge anyWhere, as the man had come to the 
warehouse on freq,.uent occasions... fua:t,; to his, 
MRo 'HERBsT's best knowledge and belief, the man 
w:ith a: badge was from the Food and DrUg Adlninistra= 
tiona, 

"7", 'Ihat he~ ViJILLIAM HERBS.T, had given this information 
to Tnspectors:COLE and KEDZIOR of the Food and Drug 
A.dministra,tion on their several visi ts' to the Norman 
st,orage & Trucking Company in May of 1951 .. 

11:80 'That he,? WILLIAM HERBS'T, is' posi tive that the seized 
wa ter was disposed _ of in this way and in no other wayo 
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'IThe a.ffidawit of EI'.RNFST J .. MEYERj) President of the 
s.tor;;sge company,> sta. tes:g, 

M1bat he has checked again with the other officers: of 
the No:rma.n S,torage and Trucking CompanyoR' and they are 
all positive, without doubt,. ctha:.t the s.eized water was; 
removed by the Food and Drug A:.drninistra:!;.ion, and by no 
other persons ... ' 

U!In a letter to the Federal iSecuri ty Administrator dated 
May 6, 1952., MRo AUSTIN in effect states tha.t the respon&ibility for 
the disappeara.'Ylce of the wa·ter has been pla.ced upon him by the Food and 
Drug Adminis.tration and the Depail'tment of Justice, and tha.t he desire$ 
appropriate steps; b:e taken to absolve him of blameo In his memorandum 
prepared for the A.ttorney Genera.l qated June 17, 1952, reques;ting an 
investigation, MRo AUS'1'Dl' states that the Food and Drug Administration 
has pres.ent lmovr.ledge, as it has alwayf'!. had, of the wh er ecob out Sl of the 
water, and that an investigation will establish beyond doubt that the 
wa ter was removed by the Food and Drug Administration •. 

Itl'lhe wilful destruction or disposition of the s.eiZLed water, 
which was in custodia legis,.? lrould conatitute a c:riminal contempt 
punishable under 18 U,$oCo 401,9 and perhaps CJ. viola.tion of 18 UoSoCo. 
1503. which punishes a.I'l:Y person who corrup·tly obs:truc ts· or impedes; 
the due 'adminis.tration of justice 0 'lhe charge made by MR •. AUS·TIN thatt 
UtJ:ihe Food and Drug Administration h~s lmowledge now, as it haccdJ,., of 
the whereabouts: of the water, they say somehow disappea'redil1,9 is 
tantamount to saying .that the officials of that ,ligency cure covering 
up. t~e manner of its; disposition • ., 

"[t is, therefore, requested that an investigation be made 
to determine the circums.tances under which the Capon Springs. Wa.ter 
involved in this' qase disappeared or was disposed of,. and the identity 
of the person or persons responsible., 

~~:'lhe .documents referred to are in the Department a s fileso 
Further information desired wi th respec·t to this case may be obtained 
from MR. .. VINCENT Ao KLEINfELD and MRo. JOHN 'To GRIGSBY', a.ttorneys. in 
the Criminal Division .. "! 

'!he Bureau by letter dated February 39 1953, requested that 
the above in:iteSltig&.tion by the Department of Jusmioe be completed 
and results furnished the Bureau on or before February 2:4, 19530. 

-4-
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MRo VINCEl~T KLEINFEID, Attorney, Criminal Division, Department 
of Jus:tice, advised on February 6, 1953, that he had been alffilia:ted 
wi th the handling of this case in the Depa..rtment of JusticE since the 
case was; referred to the Department by the Food and Drug ltdministra tion ... 
MRo KLEINFElD advised that in the way of background this case resulted 
from the seizure of several cases 'of bottled water by the FIm during 
1943.,. He advised th'3. t this water upon s:eizure was placed in the custody 
of the Nornan S:torage a.;n.d Trucking Company of New Yorko 

MRo "KLEINFEID sta.:.ted that libel for contamination action 
was instituted under the Federal 'Drug and Cosmetic Act, the FDli:. claiming 
that the 'product was misbranded because of false therapeutic claims 
made on behalf of ' the wa tero MRc> KLEINFElD stated action in the .. .. , :; 
:c·,s.se wa;s; brought against the water in Manhattan Federal Court in 1945 
au ~.ilich time the Judge dismissed the actiono He s,tated that the United 
states had filed an appeal before the Circuit Court and that the action 
of the District Court was later reversed by the Circuit Courto MRo 
KLErNFEID pointed out thati there was' a period of approxi.IiJa tely fiV/e days; 
between the dismissal by the District Court and the filing of t~e appeal 
in the CircUit Court during which period of time the evidence .in this; 
case could have been di'sposed of legallyo. 

MRo KLEJNFEID advised that after the Circuit Court had reversed 
'the ruling of the District Court 1a:wyers for Mao LOUIS AlJS:TIN, owner of 

... . ' : . 

Capon Springs. requested 'liha t the ccuse be moved to Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 
the pJz:c:e of lv1Ro. Ji..USTINi s residenceo :MRo KLEINFELD s;'~;.ted that la·.ter the 
ca~se was moved by mutual agreement to the Federal Court in Camden, New 
Jersey... He stated that a.t the pres.ent time this case is pending before 
the court in this Districroto He advised, however,ll that inasmuch as the 
action in the case was. directed against the seized water he did not 
feel tha:.t unless the evidence was recoveredtha t any ac.,-tion could be 
taken in the caseo Mao KLEINWEID sW.ted that when the case was moved 
to Camden the seized water was not transferred ina'Sffiuch a·s this is not 
necessary and that it wa.s .April of 1951 Wheil the FDA. first found that 
this water wa,s missingo' 

MR. ... KLEINWELD advised tba.t he did not haYe any idea a,s· to 
what had happened to the water; and that he felt positive that the FDA 
had not moved it inasmuch as they had spent several thbusands of dollars: 
in tes.ting Capon Springs: water in preparation for this. trial, which tests 
proved that this water did not fulfill the claims made by MEo AUS;TIN c> Mao 
KLEINFELD stated that prior to 1948 MR.", AUSTIN had marle many a;,ttempts to 
hav,e this case dismissed but that since 1948 he has baTred all a1ttempts' 
by FDA.:IJ the Department of Justice and the Uo S ... A.ttorney to dismiss the ' 
case.,. MR.., IIT.EINiFELD s.tated that this wa.s due to the fact that in 1948 
the :rnA:: had purcha.sed some Capon ~prings water to run test,s and ha.d 
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ltdumpedll some of the wa'ter that they did not need. for the tes'lis,o- He 
s,tated 'lihat AUS.TIN later learned that the tests had not required all of 
the wS];ter and was of the opinion that the teats had been :rmn on the 

IJdl.11llpedtl wa ter ~ and that these tes,ts were heneficial to his produc to-. 
Mao nEINlFEID stated that although he had always found MRo AUSTIN to 
be a very respec:ta:ble bus.iness man with a plegsing disposi tion he felt 
that the Capon Springs water was an obsession with Amo kUSTINjl. and he 
would» a.s he had,!) go to any extent to prove this produc;t 'WaIS notevfOrth.y .. 

MR.o KLEINFEID st.a:ted tha t Mao. ,AUSTIN a,pproaohed the Departrnen t 
of Justice a:t every time a· new Attorney General beea'me head of the 
Department and every time a new: Assistant .Attorney General took over 
the Criminal Division •. He also s;tated that it was his, nnders;tending 
Mao ~\US.TIN has made the same approaches: to the'FD! a.t everytime that 
that organizG).,tion has had any per-sonnel changes' in administrative 
posi tions. 

MR o. KLEINFEIJ) advised tha t, he did not have any specific: 
j.nvestigation in mind in reference to the attempt to locate this; 
water other than that which had been set forth in the Departmento's 
letter to the FBI <'la.ted Janua·ry 23~ 19530' He s.ta'lied that the ca:se 
was presently assigned to MRo JOHN To .GRIGSB~~\ Attorney in the Criminal 
Division and' that MR.o GRIGSBY was: out of the city and would not return 
until Monday,ll February 9». 1953~ but su?gested that :MRo GRIGS,BY might 
have. some specific ins,tructions. concerning the inveSJtiga::tion .. 

.MR.o GEORGE ]J<:RIUCK~ Deputy Direc:tor,ll FDk'!) was interviewed on 
Feb~uary 6 3 1953 at whieh time he sta ted that he had been cognizant, 
of the Capon Springs, water case since it was instituted in the n 
in 19430 MR" IARmCK furnished precisely the same background informa tien 
ruB: that furnished by MR. .. KLEINFEID", He advised thait he had first 
lea\I'Iled of the missing water on ~pri1 9,1) 19510' He s,tated that this. 
informa tion had been secured by the :FDA on that date as a result of 
a:. routine inspection of the evidenc.eo He stated that it was his under­
standing that no inspection had been made of the evidence by the FDA 
from the time of the seiz.:ure on June 42 1943 un'liil the date that the 
evidence was found missingo 

MRo. I1rRliICK s,tated that inves,tigation by personnel of the 
FDA. had failed to uncover any evidence as 'lio wha ti had happenEidi to ilie 
missing eil'dtdenee and further that he felt sure that this evidence had 
not heen removed by any personnel of the FD,l%.", He stated that the 
'claimant in this cas.es 1:1Ro AUS.1iiN.9 ha:'s; made claims: through affidavits; 
seem-ed from employees of the Norman S,tora:ge and Trucking Company that 
this; evidence was removed by a man ,wi th a badge from the FDA.. He stated 
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further that MRo AUSTIN has claimed that the FDA. w.orking together with 
the American Medioa.l Association has proseouted him and his' water for 
many years and that when it was proven by tests: that this wa.ter was 
beneficial as, he,9 AUSTIN,jl had claimed, the:FDA had suppressed the 
evidenoe and destroyed the waterj thereby saving faoe by hot losing the 
case in cOUIlto 

MR., LARRICK advised that this was not. true;, that 'all of the 
tests that the FD~ had run t~rough competent medical doctors had 
proven tba t this water was not beneficial as claimed' but would haye 
the same effect as drinking regular Washington,ll Do C.,. city wat,ero' 

MR." IARRICK produced files. of the :FDA pertaining to this, 
case for t..11.e perusaJi. of the reporting agent... 'Ihe files were reviewed 
and contained the following information~ 

A report of seizure accomplishment dated June 4, 1943, reflected 
tha t Deputy U .. So M:trshal WILIJr.AM' TUBMAN with InspeC'tior CHARLES Lo 
GREENLEE.9 FDA., has seized from the possession of the Norman S.torage 
and TrUcking Company, 10-12 Leonard Street.9 New York the following 
evidences 2 cases of 1/5 gallon deroijohn,ll 9 cases and 8 bottles each, . 
2- qUM't siz.e (12 to a ca.se) and 7 cases: of 2. quart si2l:e, each case 
containing 6 bottles~ This report of. seizure reflects that the shipment 
was from the' Gapon Wa'ber Company,ll Ca;pon Springs" West Virginia!/ and Was 
placed in the custody of the Norman S:torage and Trucking Companyo< 

The files: contain a . copy of a memorandum dated March 26,9 1951 
from the Division of Regula.tory l~na,gemen t to the New York District .fDA 
reqp.esting that that division ascertain whether the s.eiz.ed stock; vyas; 
s'l;ill ' in the warehouse of the Norman Storage and Trucking Compal1Yo ·it 
photostatic copy of 'lihis memorandum-is being furnished ~s an enclosure 
wi th this. report marked FDA. -10 

The file contained a memorandum from Inspector KENNEnt 
Kl!NDRICK Me> COLE to the Chief,ll New York District, dated Apnil 9.9 1951, 
which sets forth that the stock of the mineral water seiz.ed in June.9 
1941 was no longer in the possession of the Norman S'Gorage Company;. 
further that the President of this company.9 MR" Eo J 0 1I1EYN,9 believed' 
'that the water had been shipped back to Philadelphia,ll Pennsylvania, 
years. beforeo. ,l!;. photosta.tic copy of this memorandum is being furnished 
as; an enclosure,9 FDA ~a:o ' 

The file contained a memorandum. from the Division of 
Regula·.tory I~nagement to the Chief,9 New York District!/ ooted April 25.9 
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19.51 by which FDA requested that the New York Office conduct a 
complete investigation as. to the disposition of the sei~ed water~ 
.A. photostatic copy of this memorandum is being furnished a ,S! an 
enc108ure~ FDA -]0 

lhe file contained the results of the above investiga.tion 
included in the memorandum of Inspector COLE and JOHN A.o KEDZIOR .. 
During the course of this inves:tiga tion conducted by FDA~ MRo JiRNES.T 
Jo. MEJlifjl President~ Mao WILLIAM .HERBS:r~ Vice President~ and MRc. J/!..M1!S .. 
I<'..rMMINS~ ,Secretary-Treasurerj) .all of the Norman S.wra:.ge a·nd Trucking 
Compa.ny~ were interviewed and advised that they felt that the evidence 
had been shipped out several years. prior t<o- 194:1 but none of these 
individuals could furnish any information a.s to who had cailed for the 
missing mlineral water.. During the above inve&tigation the files of 
the Norman S:torage and Trucking Company were reviewed and reflected 
tha:b all business transactions between this company and the Ca\pOn 
Springs; Wa ter Company were terminated in 1947.,. lhe Norms.n Storag,e 
files; further reflected a letter da;ted /tIpril 2..5~ 194.5 from 1£ .. A, Po 
S~O ]lOMAS~ New York Distributor for the Capon Springs. Mineral Water 
to the effect th8 .. t the evidence in this caS.e should not be touched 
lmtil the government properly releases it.,. 'A photostatic copy of the 
above inves.tiga tion is. being furnished a's exhibit FDA -4 .. 

The file contained a memorandum from the New York District 
to the:FDA dated Janua;ry 9 ~ 19.52: which reflected result,s~ of a telephone 
conversation between the New York Office and MRo. Ao Po S.Te. THOMA.S,9 
.500 5th AVEnueJj New York City... MRo STo- 'IH01"JAS a,dvised tha t he had 
received a communication from the Capon Springs. Company asking that he 
or the warehouse a'ccount fer the missing material.. He stated that 
anytime a shipment was made the Pre'sident and owner of the warehouse~ 
Mao' MEJlif would insist upon a signed receipt for any quantity tha.t was 
removed.. It w:as~ therefore his opinion that the evidence a..fter having 
set in the basement of the storage company for rrany years and accumulated 
dust to the point where it looked like an abandoned 10 '0 of ms. terial 
was: disposed of by some employee of the warehouse unknown to the 
officials of that companyo' 1':" photosta. tic copy of this memoremdum is 
being furnished as FDA -5 ... 

The. file con ta1.ned a letter from MRo AIANSON Wo WILLCOX,9 
General Coun:sel,9 Federal Security ,Agency to Mao AUS'lTN dated Ma.rch 31,9' 
1952... This letter reflects that it has come to :Mao WILLCOXos; 

. . : .. . 

a.t tention tha t IIffi. 0 AUS TiN had evidence indica ting '~he complicity of personnel 
of the FDA: 'i n the disappearance of the cases of wa ter which had "been 
sei.zedo JI. photostatic copy of ·this letter is being set forth a,s FDit -6" 
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The files contained a memorandum by Inspector JOHN' A" KEDZIOR 

. to the Chief.9 New York Division, dated June 13.9 1951.9 which reflected 
a contact with Mr oST.AlfLEY H. LOWELL.9 113 W 0 42nd Street .9 New York 0 

Tvfr. LOWELL, who ''laS the Assistant United State s Attorney in the Southern 
District of New Yorkj and who handled this case in that District, had 
no recollection of any permission having been given by him to remove 
the evidence from the place of seizure. It was noted that on March 5, 
1945, Mr. LOWELL had advised that he would see that the evidence was 
preserved pending the Solicitor Generalis· determination with respect 
to any appeal from the decision of the United States District Court, 
Sourthern District of New Yorko 

By letter dated November 9.9 1951~ Assistant United States 
Attorney ALEX FElNBERG, Camden, New Jersey, requested the United States 
Marshal in New York to conduct an investigation regarding the where­
abouts of the missing evidenceo 

The New York Office of the Food and Drug Administration on 
Wovember 99 19~1~ requested Deputy Marshal JOEN To SIGLING to conduct an 
investigation into the missing evidenceo The files of FDA fai1 to contain 
the results of any investigation at the Marshal I s Office 

The file reflects that on August 24» 1951, Assistant Uhited 
States AttorneyF'EJNBERG advised the court in Camden, New Jersey, of 
the following facts: 

"I ought to bring to your attention.9 if YoUI' Honor 
please.9 the fact that the order for dismissal was signed 
on July 13, 19h5, but the stay pending appeal was not 
signed until July 18, 19h5.9 a hiatus of five days, during 
which time unfortunately the res had disappeared. The 

t/government does not have any possession of the five cases 
, f ,,"of Capon Springs Water!l. 

'(J~y\)9. The file containe~ letter dated April 14.9 1952, from HOWARD 
.\I.BuRTT.9 Attorney for :Mro WUJZ7~USTIN, to ALANSON Wo WILLCOX, General . 

I ~" Counsel j Federal Security P;,gencyo This letter sums up the results of 
inquiries made by the claimant as to the missing evidence. Attached 
to this letter were sworn affidav.its of rkssrs. WILLIAM HERBST, ERNEST MEYN 
and JAMES Kl1vITf.lNS, Officials of the Norman Storage ani Truck:ing Company 
of New York. The affidavits of HERBST and KIMMINS attest to the fact 
thatthe missing evidence was removed by a man with a badge believed to 
be a government official. 

-9-
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A photostatic copy of the above letter and affidavits is· 
enclosed as FDA - 7. 

The letter of ALA.~SON Wo WILLCOX to Mro BURTT dated April 23~ 
1952~ in reply to the above letter of April 14~ 1952.11 states in part that 
he~ Mr. WILLCOX~ is convinced that no representative of the Food and 
Drug Administration had any part in removing the missing evidence. 

A photostatic copy of this letter is inclosed as FDA - 80 

By letter dated May 6.11 1952.11 addressed to Honorable OSCAR 
EW~G~ Administrator.l1 Federal Security Agena,r, Mr. LOUIS AUSTlN requests 
Mr. ~TING to make recommendation to the Department of Justice for an 
FBI investigationo 

A photostatic copy of this letter is enclosed as FDA - 90 

The file contained a memorandum from Mr. WILLCOX to Mr. 
~ OSCAR EVlJNG dated May 163 1952.11 in which the former points out the 

request of Mro AUSTlN for an FBI investigation as to the missing water. 
This memorandum points out, in part.ll as follows: 

tlMr 0 ATJSTlN v s theory is that the Food and Drug 
Administration found the case going against it and 
surreptitiously removed the water from the warehouse 
in order to render the case moot.ll and thus get rid 
of it without admitting erro In support of his theory 
he has offered (1) the attached affidavits by officials 
of the vrarehouse~ and (2) argument that because, in his 
deposition, Mr. LARRICK denied knowledge of certain 
papers, which had subsequently appeared in the files 
of the General Counsel's Office.ll he must have concealed 
something. I could not detect any significance in the 
latter content2ono 

ItOf the affidavits the most important one is that 
of Mro HERBSTJj which gives some support.\) although to my 
mind weak to the charge that the Food and Drug Administra­
tion had something to do with the disappearance of the 
waterlt o 

Mro WILLCOX went on to suggest that a letter be sent to the 
Attorney General whereby the FSA made it known that they would cooperate 
to the fullest with any investigation which the FBI might undertakeo 

-lO~ 
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A: photostatic copy of the above letter is being furnished 
as enclosure FDA - 100 

Mro JOHN To GRIGSBY, Attorney, Criminal Division, Department 
of Justice~ advised on February 9, 1953» that he had handled this case 
since the case was reported to the Department by the Food and Drug 
Administration 0 He stated that this had been a routine violation of 
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Acto He stated that after court 
action in Nmv York~ the case was moved to Camden, New Jersey~ in 19460 
He commented that the case had not gone to trial in Camden due to the 
many delays resulting from the requests for extens'ions motions and the 
inability of the court to find a place for the trial on the ca1endaro 
He added that in April of 1951, when it appeared that the case finally 
would go to trial, a check was made by FDA to ascertain the status of 
the evidence. He stated the evidence was found miss:ing and an investiga­
tion was conducted by FDA in an attempt to locate the evidence without 
successo 

Mro GRIGSBY pointed out that ~ince the time the evidence 
was foUnd missing, it has been the opinion of the court that the case 
should be declared moot due to the inability to try the case without 
the reso He'stated, however, Mro AUSTIN, the Owner of Capon Springs, 
has repeatedly stated he does not want the case dismissed as FDA is 
attempting to suopress the benefits of his water through denial of a 
trial 0 

Mro GRIGSBY stated that Mro AUSTJN has complained to every­
one in any administrative capacity in the Department of Justice and 
Federal Security Agency, making allegations concerning the missing 
evidence 0 He informed that it was therefore decided by FDA and the 
Department of Justice that an investigation should be conducted :in 
the attempt to locate the evidence prior to t he dismissal of the case 
in 'F'ederal Courto He stated that the United States Attorney at 
Camden, New Jersey, has been advised to withliold his recommendation 
of dismissal until he is advised by the Justice Departmento 

Mro GRIG$BY commented that a review of the Department of 
Justice Files has failed to I' efleet any interview itith 'Mr. Ao Po 
ST. THOMAS, former Distributor for Capon Waters in New York, or 

-any attempt to asgertain if STo TE01~S kept records which might 
reflect this seized evidenceo He stated that he believed Mro 
STo THOMAS 'should be contacted and the above information obtained. 

He further stated that he believed that it should be 
ascertained if all employees of the FDA, in New York City, who had 
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any chance to remove the evidence, have been quizzed, and, if not, these 
persons should be interviewed as to their"possible removal of the water. 
He further commented that he felt that the records of Mro AUST.]t\P s 
company in Philadelphia should be reviewed and that any personnel 
employed by AUSTIN as shipping or receiving clerk should be inter­
view"sd as to the possibility of the water having been mistakenly 
returned to the Capon Springs Companyo Mro GRIGSBY added that it was 
his u-'rlderstanding that the United States Marshal i s Office in New York 
had conducted an investieation into this case but he informed that 
he was not cognizant of the results of this investigation as no 
report had been furnished to the Justice Department or FDA. He 
stated that he felt that the results of this investigation should 
be reviewed for any possible leads as to the ~hereabouts of the water. 

Mro GRIGSBY concluded by saying that he was of the opinion 
that Mro AUSTIN would cooperate fully with an investigation, adding 
that he considered l'Iir. AUSTIN to be an outstanding businessman who 
honestly believes in his Spring Water~ in fact, to such an extent that 
this water has become an obsession with him. 

The files of the Department of Justice were reviewed in 
reference to the Capon Sprtngs Water Case and these files contained 
the following additional pertinent information. It should be noted 
that the Department Files contained copies of all pertinent informa­
tion concerning the missing evidence as previously reported from the 
Food alld Drug Administration Fileso 

t"memorandum prepared for Attorney General MG GRANER! by 
LOUIS AUST~ of Capon Springs and Farms, dated June 17, 1952, was 
contained in these files and reads as f(!)llows: 

"CAPON SPRINGS 

and farms 

IN THE GREAT NORTH MOUNTAJNS 
OF WEST VIRGINIA 

CAPON SPRJNG8$ WEST VlRGIW.IA 

Jmle 17, 1952 

"MEMORANDUM PREPARED FOR 
ATTORNEY GENERAL McGRAN'ERY 

by LOUIS 10 AUSTIN 
of 

C'.A;POO SPRWGS & FARMS 



.' .' 
I!(in re UoSo VSo 5 cases -lE** Capon Springs 

Water$ FDa l005} 

1110 This matter.9 of little consequence in itself,P will 
if investigated.9 lead to a sGandal of national pro­
portions 0 

20 It will expose the American Medical Association as 
a powerful monopoly.9 actitig in restraint of trade.9 
ruthlessly eliminating competition,P and completely 
dominating one of the most respected branches 0 f the 
Federal Government,P to further its own selfish endso 

30 On May 23rd, OSCAR ~r~G, Administrator of the 
Federal Security Agency.9 wrote me that he was: 

IGreat things are done when men and mountains meet, 

This is not done by jostling in the streeto·1 

~transmitting to the Department of 
Justice a copy of your recent letter, 
pointing out your suggestion that 
the matter of the disappearance of 
the water be turned over for investi­
gation to the Federal Bureau of lh­
vestigationo In our letter we state 
that we would have no objection to 
such an investigation and.9 if under­
taken.9 we would cooperate to the 
fullest extent possible0 9 

40 My whole purpose here is that this matter not be 
sidetracked.9 but that a thorough investigation 
by the FBI be madso If such investigation discloses 
tr.ta.t the grave charges I am making are unfounded'p 
no harm will result to any honest persono 

50 The particular matter deserving investigation is 
simple in itself: Who illegally removed some 19 
cases of Capon Springs Water from a public warehouse 
where they had been seized,P as misbranded, by the 
Food and Drug Administration? 
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1160 The first word that the seized water was missing came 

when the Uo So District Gourtj Camden, NoJo was 
notified by the Uo So 4ttorney, at the request of the 
Food & Drug Administration~ that the water had Wsomehow 
disappeared ~ 0 

70 The case was before the Court that day on a motion 
of the Food & Drug Administration to compel us to 
answer certain interrogatorieso In place of arguing 
the matter of interrogatories~ the Uo So ~ttorney 
notified the Court of the vmissing ~ water:J :indicating 
that Judge MADDEN would at once dismiss the case, 
as the disappearance of the water made te the case mooto 
We appealed to Judge MADDEN not to dismiss the case, 
before we had time to look into the matter 0 We 
stated we wanted the case tried on its merits, and 
we did not believe the ~e~ had vsomehow disappeared'. 
The Judge granted a continuanceo 

8. Before the court, the Food & Drug Administration 
made no reference that day, as to who removed the 
water 0 Later, they began to subtly hint that we 
removed the water, though condoning the act bysaying 
that perhaps we tho~ght we were entitled to the water 
by virtue of a resad judicata decision :in our favor 
by Judge Conger~ which decisioo later was reversed 
by the Se.cond Circuit Court 0 Gradually becoming more 
direct about it, Food & Drug !dministration Counsel 
LEVINSON on several occasions at the taking of 
depositions, stated POur position is that you removed 
the wa,tero v Then~ C0lIDsel LEVJNSEN submitted excerpt 
from a letter v~itten by the Department of Justice 
to the UO 80 Attorney at Camden, N. Jo, in which 
it was stated: 'It is not unlikely that o.othe 
claimant or someone in his behalfo.o obtained the 
water from the VI arehouse where sotred 9 0 

90 We checked with the three officials of the warehouse, 
and secured from them three sworn affidavits to the 
effect that the seized water had been removed by the 
Food and Drug Administrationo We submitted photostatic 
copies of these affidavits to Administrator EWING~ 
requesting an investigationo . 

100 We charge that the Food and Drug Administration has 
knowledfle now, as it has alway5 had,9 of the where~ 
abouts of the water they say 'somehow disappeared' 0 
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tilL QUESTION $ What impelled the Food and Drug Admini~­

tration to plan to withdraw the case and to invent 
the &,ory of the imissingi water? 

ANSWERg By depositions taken of more than half a 
dozen employees of the Food & Drug Administration, 
we uncovered a vicious and smelly frame-up, 
the authorship ' of which was leading right up to the 
American Medical Associ ation 0 

120 So shameful and shocking were these revelations 
that the Food & Drug Administration decided they 
had better lose the case on ' a technicality rather 
than have the facts come to lighto Just when we 
were about to take '~he deposition which we hoped 
would shmr what did happen to the water, the Food 
& Drug Administration asked the court to prevent 
us from taking any more depositionsQ1 the ground 
the case was going to be dismissedo 

130 The scheme to fasten upon us the responsibLility for 
having removed the vater isthe one that may prove 
the tmdo:ing of those woo concocted ito For, after 
the F'BI investigation establishes beyond doubt, as 
it will~ that the seized water had been removed by 
the Food & Drug Administration, the trial will lead» 
step by step, through a series of reprehensible acts.ll 
includ:ing tampering with their recordal removal of 
important papers, failure to enter necessarytrans~ 
actions on their records, rigged tests, instructions 
to their employees to practice deceit, and much more 
evidence of unethical conduct, - this trial will lead 
to a directive issued the Food & Drug ~dministration 
by the American Medical Associationo 

140 Previous to requesting Administrator EVvlNG to 
have the FBI investigation the removal of the res 
from the warehouse, I had asked the Department 
of Justice attornies who were handli'rlg the case 
to look into t·he 'missing! watero I was informed 
that there was no way to have the matter investi­
gatedo If the matter still rests with them~ there 
will be no investigation~ but instead a whitewash 
of the Food and Drug Administration 9s conducto 
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liOn the ground that no honest person should object 
to such an investigation~ I ,earnestly request that 
the FBI be instructed to ascertain who it was that 
illegally withdrew the seized water from the ware­
house where storedo This withdrawal was not author­
ized by the Uo So Marshalls office$ and ~~s a violation 
of the law and an act in comtempt of courto 

"150 The present action is not in its tenth yearo We 
could have accepted a dismissal in our favor~ but 
felt it our duty to expose to the people of the 
country the shocking control and domination of o~e 
most respected branches of the Government by a 
vicious monopolistic orgatlization$ the P~erican 
Medical Associationo ll 

A copy of the above mem0ra.ndum was forwarded to the Department 
of Justice on June 11$ 1952~ from Mro JOSEPH SHORT, Secretary to the 
Pre sident 0 

The file contained a letter dated July 9$ 1952, to the Honorable 
JOSEPH SHORT, Secretary to the President~ ·White House" Washington, Do Co~ 
signed by Attorney General JAMES Po Me GRANERY~ in response to the 
memorandum from Mro SHORT of July l7!1 19520 This letter reads, in part, 
as follews: 

liThe attorneys in the Department who are familiar 
with the proceeding advise that since about 1947~ Mro 
AUSTThl has bombarded the Department with unfounded 
accusations of alleged underhanded conduct on the part 
of various officials of the governmento I am advised 
that Mro AUSTIN considers everything that transpires 
unfavorable to his case as prompted by an ulterior 
motive, and from this draws the conclusions upon which 
his charges are made~ and that his last memorandum is 
fairly indicative of that frame of mindo Without some 
facts to support a complaint for criminal contempt 
based upon willful destruction or disposition of an 
article in the custody of the court, or revealing some 
app~tviolation of Federal Law, no investigation is 
warranted 0 No facts tending to support such a complaint 
have been furntshed, and I do not believe that under 
such circumstances, the Federal Bureau of 1hvestigation 
should be asked to conduct an investigationlt 0 
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The file contained a letter dated November 20, 1952, from 

LOUIS L. AUSTIN to Ro DoMC LEAN, Department of Justice~ Washington, 
Do Co, which reads, in part, as follows: 

ttThe request I am making is quite simple; an investi­
gation by the :b'B'! of the illegal wit·hdrawal of the ent:iXe 
amount of Capon Springs Water from a public warehouse, 
where it has been seized and stGred under the authority 
of the U. So Marshal.ooo 

"This is a far more serious matter than appears on 
the surface 0 We 'posit,i vely do not want to win m a 
technicality, particularly when the stigma will attach 
that we caused the disappearance of the res, thus making 
prosecution by the Food and Drug Adm:inistrati·on impossibleo 
Far more serious facts of a most reprehensible nature will 
come to lig~t as a result of an investigation by the FBIII 0 

In response to ~he above letter, Mro CHARLES Bo l~Y, Assistant 
Attorney General, wrote Mr., AUSTJN on. December 8); 1952); requesting that 
Mro AUSTJN advise by letter with respect to the serious facts'of a most 
reprehensible nature which might be brought to light by an investigation 0 

The file contained a letter to Mro MURRAY from Mro AUSTIN, dated Decem-
ber 15, 1952); which reads); in part, as follows: 

ttThe Food and Drug Administration may now state that 
it has 'no information concerning the manner of the 
disposition of the water i, but the r.ecord shows that 
the attorney in your department~ handling this matter for 
the Food and Drug Administration, wrote to another Uo S. 
Attorney, prosecuting a case at Camden, New Jer~ey, 
under date of July 2, 1951, PIt is not unlikely that 
the claimant or someone in his behalf obtained the water 
from the warehouse where stored •• ooo i 

"Regretfully we are being forced to the conclusion 
that the Department of Justice, as presently constituted, 
is not only lacking in intere.st :in this matter, but seemingly 
is determined that there shal:l:. be no investigati:on of itl! 0 
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p.NCLOSDRES,: 

• 

TO THE BUREAU: 
lI)'EW YORK: 
PHILADELPHIA: 
lI!EWARIt: 

• 

There is being enclosed nereWith to the Bureau and 
the New York, Philadelphia and Newark Offices one 
photostatic copy of the followingo These copies 
are to be used in, connection with investigation 
requested: 

10 FDA #1:; memorandum dated March 26:; 1.951~ from 
Division of Regulatory Management to the 
]\I ew York District 0 

20 FDA #2, memorandum dated April 9» 1951~ from 
Jhspector OOLE to Ohief, New York Districto 

30 FDA #3:; memorandum dated April 25:; 1951, from 
Division of Regulatory lfunagement to Chief, 
New York Districto 

40 FDA #4, memorandum dated May 29, 1951, from 
Jhspectors OOLE and KEDZIOR to Chief, N8'N 

York Districto This includes a report of 
investigation and search of premises of the 
Norman Storage and Trucking Companyo Attached 
is a copy of a letter to the Norman Storage 
and Trucking Company from Ao Po STo THOMAS 
dated April 25~ 19450 

, . 
50 FDA #5, Memerandum dated January 9~ 1952, from 

New York District to the Food and Drug 
Administration. 

60 FDA #6, le-liter dated March 13:; 1952~ from 
ALANSCN We WILLCOX, General Counsels to 
PHILIP Wo AUSTIN. 

70 FDA #7, letter dated April 14, ,1952, from 
H01VARD BURTT~ to ALANSOO Wo WIILCOX and 
attached affidavits of Messrs. 1~.9 HERBST 
and K IMMlN S 0 
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80 FDA #8~ letter dated April 23, 1952,1) 

from Mr. WTI,LCOX to Mro BURTT. 

90 FDA #9~ letter dated May 6, 1952, from 
LOUIS Lo AUSTIN to Honorable OSCAR EWING, 
Administrator~ Federal Security Agencyo 

100 EDA #10, memorandum dated May 16~ 1952,1) from 
ALANSrn w. 1J1lIL:(:,COX to OSCAR Ro EWING, Administra­
tor 0 Also attached is letter of Mr. WIILCOX 
to the Attorney General dated May 16, 1952'. 

RUC 
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ADMMISTRATIVE PAGE 

All offices are advis€d of Bureau instructions that this 
matter is to be completed and reported to the Bureau no later than 
February 24, 19530 

LEADS 

'NEW YORK OFFICEg 

AT ~EW YORK, NEW YORK g 

Will interview ANDRIDV Po STo TH01~S, 500 5th 
Avenue, former agent for Capon Springs Water, 
for any information that he might be able to 
furnish concerning the missing' evidertceo 

Will ascertain if STo THOMAS has any records 
perta:ining to transact-ions of his company with 
the Norman Storage and Trucking Companyo 

~ill examine same for any record of seized 
propertyo 

Will contact the New York Office of the Food and 
Drug Administration and review any pertinent 
records maintained by this divisiono 

Will interview CHARLES HERRMAN, Chief ~ New York 
Office, FDA, for any information he might have 
concerning disappearance of watero 

Vfill asc ertain if a II employee s of IDA in New 
York during -pertinent period have b~en :inter­
'\riewed as to any knowledge of the removal of 
water 0 

Will interview all employees not previ0usly inter­
viewed as requested b.1 Mro GRIGSBY~ Attorney, 
Department of Justiceo 

Will contact Inspectors KENDRIo[ COLE and'JOHN 
Ao KEDZIOR as to the exten16 of their mvestigati0no 
It is noted' Inspectors cotE and KEDZIOR conducted 
investigation in 1951~ in an attempt to locate 
the missing evidenceo 
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Will attempt to locate and interview CHARLES 
Lo GREFNLEE, Inspector, FDA, who signed and 
participated in the seizure of the evidence on 
June 4.9 19h3. 

Will ascertain from l~o GREENLEE as to how the 
evidence ,\ras mar ked and any instructions that he 
might have given as to its ultimate dispositiono 

Will ccntact STANLEY Ho LOWELL, 113 Wo 42nd street~ 
New York, former Assistant United States Attorney, 
who handled the Capon Springs Water Case in Federal 
Court in the St:>uthern District of New York in 19459 
and ascertain if Mr. If.lWELL has secured any informa­
tion concerning the missing evidence. 

Will contact the Office of the United States Marshal, 
Southern District of New York, and review results 
of the investigation conducted by that agency. It 
should be noted that an investigation was requested 
of Deputy Marshal JOIN To SIGLJN.G by the Food and 
Drug Administration on ~ovember 99 1951. 

Will interview WTLLIAM TUBMAN, United states 
Marshal, 'who made seizure of water :in 1943, and 
ascertain from him 'what instructions were given 
to the Norman storage and Trucking Company in 
regard to the maintenance of the evidence. 

Will contact Mro EQ J. MEYN, President; Mr. wnLIltM 
HERBST, Vice President and Mro JAMES KIMMJNS, 
SecretarY-Treasurer, Norman St0rage and Trucking 
Company, 10=12 Leonard Street, N oW 0, a s to their 
kn<Dwledge Glf the disappearance of the water. It 
should be noted that Mr 0 HERBST and Mr. KnlMJNS 
furnished sworn affidavits to the effect that the 
water was removed by a g0vernment 0 fficial with 
a badgeo Further, that when these individuals 
were centacted by inspectors for FDA, in 1951, 
they could not recall who removed the watero 
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Will review records maintained of transactions 
between this company and ANDREW ST. THOMAS, 
Distributor for Capon Springs Watero 

Will ascertain the names of the employees of " the 
~orman storage and Trucking Company who had access 
to the ev.idence and consider the advisability of 
locating and interviewing these :individuals. 

PHILADELPHIA OFFICE: 

AT PHILADELPHIA, mmSYLVA,NI!\.: 

Will interview LOUIS Lo AUSTIN, owner, Capon Spr:ings 
Water Company, at 1427 Spruce Street, for any 
:information he might have concerning the disappearance 
of the watero 

Will ascerta:in ~f AUSTIN had any receiv:ing or shipp:ing 
clerk working for him from 1943 to 1947, and if so, 
will interview this persono 

Will review books of the Capon Springs Water Company 
:in reference to shipments to and from Ao Po STo THOMAS 
in New York, with the attempt to ascertain if the water 
could have been mistakenly returned by the Norman 
Storage and Trucking Company to the Capon Springs 
W"ater Company. 

Will contact the Philadelphia Division of the Food 
and Drug Administration and review any pertinent 
records that this division might have concerning 
the missing watero ", 

NEWARK OFFICE: 

AT CAMDEN, NIDIi' JERSEYg 

Will contact Assistant United States Attorney ALEX 
FEINBERG who is handling thi s case :in Federal Court 
m t.hat district and ascertain if he has any informa­
tion concerning the missing evidenceo 
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AOOJN ISTRATIVE 

LEA.DS. (contid.) 

REFERT!N CE: 

Will ascertain if his office has maintained any records 
concerning the missing evidence and will~ if any records 
available, review and set eut necessary leadso 

~y-- h~h-/ 
Bureau Letter to WashingtGn Field dated 2/3/530 
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FELn;.'nrn ... BUREAU OF INV~____ .~ rION 
FOl!mNo.l 
THIS CASE'ORIGINATED AT NEW YORK 

I 

REPORT MADE AT -PERIOD FOR walCH MADe REi'ORT MADE,BY 

PHILADELPHIA 2/17-20/53 MICHAEL J. ROCK~ III (WS 
TlTLS ~, j CHARAClliR OF CAS/! 

UNITED, STATES v. Five Cases~ etc. 
~. Capon Spring Water~ #10126j 

FDC #10053 
CONTEMPT OF COURT j 
OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 

SYNOPSIS OF FACTS: 

I' 
I 

DETAILS : 

-, 
Mr. ROBERT C. STANFILL~ Mr. T. C. MARAVIGLIA~ (:,, ' 
Chief and Chief Inspector respe.tively~ Phila- J 

delphia District~ FDA~ and Mr. BERNARD LEVINSON~ 
formerly of Food and Drug Legal Division~ in­
terviewed. Records~ FDA, Philadelphia~ pertain­
ing to missing evidence reviewed and results set 
forth. Mr. LOUIS L .. AUSTIN interviewed. Per-
'tinent records of' Mr. AUSTIN reviewed and results 
set forth. 

- RUC 

At Philadelphia~ Pa. 

I 
/ -/ 

IS C AL EPOO\'T AND ITS CONTEdTS ARE LOAHED TO YOU BY THE FB~i\tlD ARE NOT TO BE DISTRIBUTED.,OUTSIDE OF PROPERTY OF FBI-TH O. y\;.\' 
'" AGENCY TOtWHlC~ LOAIIED. . , '~" * u. s. GOVtRNMENT ""INTIIIO ome. 16-5U2';~--2 . t,~t pr:ilf:"'t' f) "ie -,',', flV 1~~/~ 1 ! 0 .. ).\ (:) 
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STA1WILL advised that on or about February 10, 1953, when in 
Nel'l Yorl{ City on another matter, he spoke with 1-5r. CHARLES A. 
HERRMANN, Chief, Nel'; York District, FDA, and that ¥'JII. HERRMANN 
stated that he l"laS convinced that the FDA had nothing to do 
't'1i th the l'later which had disappeared and l'Thich had been in the 
custody of the United States ~~rshal in New York and storEdin 
the Norman Storage and Trucking Company, New York. According 
to Mr. STANFILL, Inspeetor GREENLEE, FDA, Nel1 York, 't'Tho accom­
panied the r~rshal at the time of seizure of instant water is an 
inspector with 30 to 35 years' experience, and Mr. STANFILL ad­
vised that he believed that seizure 't'1as executed properly and 
the trucking firm advised of the character of the seized water. 
I·ll>. STANFILL continued that Mr. BERNARD D. LEVINSON, who had 
been counsel for the Federal Security Agency, Food and Drug 
Di vioion, 1'lashington., D. C., and vlho 't'las now employed by the 
Social Security Division., Philadelphia., had represented the 
Government in some of the depositions taken by the claimant 
in this case. Mr. STANFILL made available his records which 
pertained to the disappearance of the water in this case. 
FDA File #45-453F, Philadelphia District., contained extensive 
information regarding legal action taken by FDA in cases against 
Capon Spring Water in 1928 and 1943. Much of this material 
pertained to tests of the water and prosecution of the cases 
and is not therefore being reported since it did not pertain 
to the disappearance of the water in instant case. 

This file contained a copy of a Report on Seizure 
Accomplishment., dated June 4., 1943., Food, Drug., and Cosmetic., 
#10053, Sample #45453F. Previous investigation in Washington., 
D. C. revealed the information contained on this form. This 
form was signed by Inspector CHARLES L. GREENLEE., Food and 
Drug Inspector. 

The file contained a copy of a two-page letter dated 
June 26, 1951, to the Honorable GROVER C. RICIDwlAN, JR., USA., 
Newark, N. J • ., from DANIEL P. WILLIS, Assistant General Counsel., 
Food and Drug DiVision, which advised of the disappearance of 
the water from the New York Warehouse. This letter stated 
in part: 

liOn May 24, 1951, Food and Drug Inspectors again 
visited the warehouse. On this occasion, the 
inspectors themselves made a thorough search of 
all floors of the building and the basement., and 
found none of the water which had been seized. 
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11 Off'icials of the ,,;arehouse remembered the lot in 
question as having been in storage there for 
some time, and their recollection was thnt it had 
been shipped out some years ago, possibly in 1947. 
Where it \"las ohipped, is not definitely known." 

A photostatic copy of this letter is being furnished 
and has been designated as FDA PH #1, page 1 and page 2. 

The file also contained a copy of a one-paee letter 
dated August 27, 1951, to Adrniniotration Division of' Regulatory 
~Bnagemcnt, from the Philadelphia District, which reflected 
that AUSA FEINBERG, Camden, N. J., informed the court that the 
ures" in this case could not be located, and that the court 
remarked that unless the United states Attorney could show 
cause by September 21 why the case should be continued, it 
would be dismissed. Photostatic copy of this letter is being 
furnished and deSignated as FDA PH #2. 

14r. STANFILL's file also contained a copy of a one-
page letter dated October 29, 1951, from Mr. WILLIAM W. GOODRICH, 
Acting Assistant General Counsel, Food and Drug Division, to 
PHILLIP 1f; AUSTIll, Esq., ltlashington, D. C., which opoke of the 
proposed deposition to be taken·from Inspector RAYI~OND D. CHAPI~N 
and \-1hieh letter advised AUST,IN that the "resl! in this case could 
not be located. Photostatic copy of this letter is 'being fur­
nished and deSignated as FDA PH #3. 

Contained in the file was copy of a two-page letter 
dated January 4, 1952, from BERNARD D. LEVINSON, Attorney, 
Food and Drug Division, Federal Security Asency, to PHILLIP 1'1. 
AUSTIN, Esq., Washington, D. C., which answers questions raised 
by Mr. AUSTIN during the course of ¥JI'. LARRICKt s depOSition the 
precoding day as to the disappearance of tho l'lD.ter. Photostatic 
copy of this letter is being furnished and is deSignated as 
FDA PH #4, page 1 and page 2. 

X1r. STANFILL stated that as. he recalled, on I.larch 21, 
1952, this case was called before Judge MADDEN in Canden, IJ. J. 
He stated that defense attorney BURT wa~ ill and could not be 
present. r.Ir. AUSTIN t'las in the courtroom and local counsel 
BRmnI represented him. United Statos Attorney GROVER C. RICHI,IAN, 
JR., and Assistant ALEXANDER FEINBERG represented the Government. 
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Mr. STANFILL stated that he was present and conferred briefly 
with Messrs. FEINBERG and BRO\{N before the case was called. 
According to Mr. STANFILL, ~w. RICH~mN said he thought the 
motion to dismiss should be granted because the res was non­
existent. It was stated that a motion regarding depositions 
was also before the court. Mr. STANFILL advised that Mr. 
RICHMAN said that the claimant was annoying and taking a lot 
of time of the Associate Commissioner, the Chief of the New 
York District, and others on depositions and that he, RICHMAN, 
thought that it should be stopped, except upon application to 
and on the order of the court. ~w. STANFILL stated that Mr. 
BROWN asked for a continuance to give the claimant's Philadel­
phia counsel opportunity to be present and that the hearing 
was continued to April 4, lS52. According to Mr. STANFILL, 
the court directed that no depositions be given by anyone un­
less application was made and depositions were ordered by the 
court. Mr. STANFILL stated that the court referred to a 
letter that he had received from the claimant and he turned 
it over to Mr. BROWN who was obviously embarrassed by the 
inpropriety of his client. Mr. STANFILL stated that he had 
heard from a confidential source, which he preferred not to 
disclose, that I~. AUSTINts attorney, Mr. BROWN, told the judge 
that he was going to withdraw as counsel for AUSTIN because 
of indiscretions by AUSTIN, but that the judge stated that 
someone had to represent AUSTIN and that the court had confi­
dence in f\1r. BRo\·1N. Mr. STANFILL stated that it was remarked 
by the court that time would not be spent on re-trying a case 
that was won for the Government when the artic,le being defended 
did not exist. 

~~. STANFILL stated that he attributed Mr. AUSTIN's 
actions and remarks either to a malicious self-defense or to 
a Sincerity in a one-track mind. 

On February 18" 1953, VJr. T. C. MARAVIGLIA,Chief 
Inspector, Philadelphia District, FDA, advised that he was 
generally familiar with the case but had no definite information 
regarding the disposition of the water. He stated that from 
what he knows of the case, it was his opinion that the water 
was either disposed of by the United States Marshal, disposed 
of by the trucking company, or sent back to the company. He 
stated that any of the above could have been by mistake. 

On February 18, 1953, ~~. BERNARD D. LEVINSON, Room 
802, Customs House, Second and Chestnut Streets, Referee, 
Appeals Council, Social Security Administration, advised that 
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he was formerly \'1i th the Food and Drug Legal Division, llashing­
ton, D. C., and handled instant case from about 1950 to November 
1952. He stated that as a routine matter in the preparation of 
the case for trial in about March 1951, the thought to check 
the ures" arose in the Legal Division of the Food and Druc; Ad­
ministration, Washington, D. C. He stated that investigation 
in Nm'l Yorlt: determined that the res was miosing. Mr. LEVINSON 
stated that as he recalled, the trucking company received a 
request fro~ Capon Springs, West Virginia, to ship back 0.11 
stocle on hand, and this occurred at about the time :£I1r. ST. 
THOMAS, Ne\'l York Dealer for Capon Spring Water, gave up his 
franchise. ItJr. LEVINSON believed that the res was returned to 
Capon Spring Water, West Virginia, or Philadelphia. He stated 
that he recalled that lJIr. I,IEYlI, President, Norman Storage and 
Trucking Company, had stated in a report which had been made by 
inspectors COLE and KEDZIOR, Food and Drug Administration, that 
the res vlas sent back to Capon Springs in 1947. He sta.ted that 
Mr. I,l8m later c;ave a. different story regarding the removal of 
the water and stated in effect, that a man with a badge had 
loaded it on a truck. fJIr. LEVINSON stated that he does not 
}OlOW what happened to the water; that it is his belief that 
the Storage Company could furnish information regarding its 
disappearance in view of the fact that they apparently gave 
two stories regarding its removal. 

On February 18, 1953, ~1r. LOUIS L. AUSTIN, business 
address 1427 Spruce Street, business telephone PE 5-1462; home 
addresses, Capon Springs, \1. Va., and 6908 Henley Street, 
Philadelphia, phone at latter address, GE 8-5859, advised that 
he ot'lnS the Capon Springs Resort and that the main office of 
the company is located in Philadelphia. r·Jr. AUSTIN stated 
.that I,liss r·IARY T. REGAN was employed by him during the period 
in question and in presently his bool~ceper. He stated that 
she could furnioh ini'orrnation regarding shipments to New' York 
from Philadelphia and Capon Springs, W. Va., and from New York 
to Philadelphia and Capon Springs, W. Va. He stated that one 
DEl~lIE DUNLAP is manager of the Capon Springs Plant in West 
Virginia I and maintains some records, but none that have not 
been reported to the Philadelphia Office of Capon Springs. 
Mr. AUSTIN further advised that ~~. A. P. ST. THO~mS, who oper­
ates a travel agency at 500 5th Avenue, New York City, N. Y., 
wa.s the Nel'l Yorlt: Doaler for Capon Springs. He sta.ted that 
Capon Springs \'la.ter ~las sold to Mr. ST. THOI~~S, who then :roe-
sold it to his customers. Mr. AUSTIN advised that 14r. ST. TfIOr~S 
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discontinued his affiliation \'lith Capon Springs in I-lay 1947. 
~~. AUSTIN advised he first learned that the water was miasing 
in about August 1951, llhen the caoe 1'1aS in Federal Court, 
Camden, N. J., on interrogatories. Iill? AUSTIN continued I tha~ 
the United States Attorney stated at that time that the 'res 
bad disappeared and that they could not prosecute the case. 
Ivlr. AUSTIN stated that instant water, uhich had been stored in 
Norman Storage and Trucking Company, Inc., New York, had 
never been returned to Capon Springs, W. Va., or to the Phila­
delphia Office of the company. He stated that if any full 
bottles were returned, the records maintained by ~tlss REGAN 
would reflect that they were full. He continued that r~. 
ST. TH01lIAS handled the return of empty bottles in May 1947, 
and that shipment was handled by the Novick Transfer Company, 
which company hauled between Ne't'l York Oi ty and vlinchester, Va. 
He stated that it was the custom of Capon Spring WatQr to 
deliver in its own truck between Capon Springs, W. Va., and 
Winchester, Va. He stated that all shipments to Mr. ST. T.HO~mS 
were between Capon Springs, W. Va., and New York, N. Y., and 
that shipments did not pass through Philadelphia. He stated 
that he does not believe that the water was returned in error 
by the Norman Storage and Trucking Company to Capon Springs, 
W. Va., since Mr. WILLIAM HERBST, Vice-President of the Norman 
Storage and Trucking Company, had furnished him, AUSTIN, l"lith 
a depOSition in which he stated that the water was loaded on 
a truck by a man with a badge. (PhotostatiC copy of this de­
position has already been furnished as a result of investigation 
in Washington, D. C.). 

Mr. AUSTIN stated that he believed the FDA had a bottle 
of instant water in court in ~~y or June 1945, for the triul 
and that he believed that the remainder of the water was in the 
l~arehouse at that time. ~~. AUSTIN stated emphatically that 
hie contention is that the claim 01' dieappcarancG of the ~1ater 
which had been removed by the FDA, was a subterfuge to get the 
case diomissed. He continued that his opinion regarding the 
;FDA t S removing the '{'later is based on affidavits of l"1a.rchousemen 
and motives of the FDA, 'tvhich he stated were revealed by de­
pOSitions pertaining to the tests conducted by the FDA. 

r~. AUSTIN and Miss ~mRY REGAN made 'available cards re­
flecting the returns of bottles from New York City to Capon 
Springs, W. Va. These cards did not reflect that any full 
bottles had been returned to Capon Springs, W. Va. Mr. AUSTIN 
and Miss REGAN advised that the term IIcase" meant twelve tt'lO-quart 
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bottles; that the term "one-half case" meant six tw'o-quart 
bottles. The follo\'Ting information regarding returns from 
New York City to Capon Springs, W. Va., V'lhich information 
appeared on the cards maintained by Miss REGAN, is set forth 
below': 

6/23/47 ... 3 5-gallon bottles 

5/2.0/47 - 34 5 ... gallon bottles; 39 cases; 3.0 -k-cases 

5/13/47 - 34 5-gallon bottles; 39 cases; 3D half-cases 

Regarding the above entries, dated May 2.0 and 
May 13, 1947, ~tlss REGAN stated that she believed 
that these were duplicate entries, one having 
been reported by r~. ST. THQ~mS from New York, 
and the other having been reported by DENNIE 
DUNLAP, Capon Springs, W. Va. 

5/31/46 - 6 5-gallon bottles; 5 cases 

5/15/46 - 66 5-gallon bottles; 86 case.s; 72 half-cases; 
4 cases, 24 quarts 

No date (probably 2/16/45, according to Miss REGAN) _ 
36 5-gallon bottles; 84 cases; 85 half-cases; 
13 cases, quarts 

4/4/44 - 18 5-gallon bottles; 64 cases; 49 half-cases; 
7 cases, quarts. 

The above entries of returns of bottles predate 
the trial in 1945 and for that reason, information 
regarding entries previous to the above was not 
obtained. 

Both r~. AUSTIN and Miss REGAN adVised that all of the 
above returns were of empty bottles and that their records re­
fl.ected that no full bottles had ever been returned. AUSTIN 
stated that it was more expensive to return full bottles than 
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empty ones because of the difference in \'leight, and that 
bottles were usually returned in an empty condition. 

On February 19, 1953, Mr. AUSTIN made available his 
files which he stated were pertinent to the disappearance of 
the water, to SA LOUIS B. PIECHOTA and the reporting agent. 

It is to be noted that Mr. AUSTIN's files regarding 
this case were very extensive and contained much correspon­
dence regarding the trials of the case and the opinions of 
Mr. AUSTIN regarding the case and the disappearance of the 
water. Those files were reviewed which Mr. AUSTIN stated 
pertained to the disappearance of the water. 

In a file marked "GEORGE LARRICK,II there were papers 
some of which pertained to the deposition taken from LARRICK. 
There was also a transcript of the deposition of GEORGE P. 
LARRICK in the case United states of ftmerica Libelant vs. Five 
Cases, et,c.~, Capon Spring Water, C~n Springs, W. Va., and / :' 
LOUIS L:-: AUSTIN, and VIRGINIA HAuSTIN, Co .. Owners, doing 
business under firm name and ~yle of Capon Springs and Farms, 
Intervenors--Claimants, Civil Action #10126. This transcript 
had been prepared by the Watson Reporting Company, 805 IIG" 
Street, m~, Washington, D. C. It was noted that Mr. LARRICK 
was Deputy Commissioner of the FDA. 

A file entitled, "New York" contained many letters 
from Mr. ST. THOMAS indicating a shortage in the supply of 
Capon Spring Water in New York in 1945 and 1946, and advising 
Mr. AUSTIN of complaints regarding the taste of the water and 
sediment in the water. Mr. AUSTIN's files contain a letter 
dated March 5, 1945" to Capon Springs, 500 5th Avenue, New 
York City, from Norman Storage and Trucking Company, Inc., 
which stated in part that unless the empty bottles which were 
in the warehouse were removed by April 1, 1945, charges would 
be increased from $10.00 to $20.00 per month. Photostatic 
copy of this letter is being furnished and designated Austin #1. 

Also contained in Mr. AUSTIN's files was a letter dated 
April 18, 1945, from A. p. ST. THOI~S to Mr. LOUIS L. AUSTIN 
which stated in part: "As you probably know, we have been paying 
$20.00 monthly for storage and handling of empties to the Norman 
Storage people. vIe still have a feTtl cases le:rt in the Tt1arehouse, 
information concerning the exact number has not been forthcoming 
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IIfrom Norman storage after repeated requests." This letter 
requested the opinion of lfn? AUSTIN as to whether space at 
Norman Storage and Trucking Company should be held. Photo­
static copies of this letter and copy of the letter of reply 
dated April 19~ 1945, are being furnished and designated as 
Austin #2, page 1 and page 2. 

In ~~. AUSTIN's files, there was a letter dated 
April 20, 1945, from ~W. ST. THOMAS to Mr. LOUIS L. AUSTIN, 
which read as follows: 

"Norman Storage has advised that the 27 cases 
which were sealed and seized by the United States 
~~rshal last year are still being kept in the 
warehouse as the Government has never seen fit 
to cart them away. 

liOn the other hand, Norman Storage feels that 
something should be done about them as they are 
taking up room, but hesitates to do anything with­
out a release from ourselves. Is it in order for 
me to ~wite them to simply break the Government 
seal, dump the water out, and return the empties 
later on to Philadelphia or Capon Springs? I 
hesitate doing anything which did not seem per­
fectly legal, hence, this request to you. 1I 

Photostatic copies of this letter and reply by !4r. 
AUSTIN dated April 24, 1945, are being furnished and have been 
designated as Austin #3, page 1 and page 2. 

Regarding Austin #3, page 1, ~~. AUSTIN stated that he 
knew of no conversation or communication between himself and 
r~. ST. T.HO!~S, which would impel Mr. ST. THOMAS to speak of 
breaking the seal, dumping the water, and returning the empties 
later to Philadelphia or Capon Springs. He stated that his re­
ply to this letter, Austin #3, page 2, was the basis for a 
letter from r~. ST. THOMAS to the Norman Storage and Trucking 
Company, which will be mentioned hereinafter and designated 
as Austin #11. V~. AUSTIN continued that he believed that if 
the bottles which had been marked by the United States Marshal 
had been received at Capon Springs, W. Va., and any markings 
"toTere observed, DENNIE DUNLAP would have reported this. 

- 9 



PH 69-28 

In ~~. AUSTIN's files was a letter dated April 20, 
1945, from I.'Jr. ST. THOr·1A.S to LOUIS L. AUSTIN, \,lhich mentions 
the storage problem in New York due to the 't'Tar. Photostatic 
copy of this letter is being furnished and designated Austin 
·#4. 

There also appeared in the files a letter dated l.mrch 
27, 1946" from Mr. ST. THOMAS to Mr. L. L~<t~USTIN, l'Thioh 
mentions the accumulation of empty bottles at Norman Storage 
and Trucking Company, and the fact that the space is needed. 
Photostatic copy of this letter is being furnished and designated 
as Austin #5. 

Also, in r~. AUSTIN1s files was a letter dated May 3, 
1946, from Mr. ST. THO~mS to ~~. L. L. AUSTIN, which speaks 
of increasing complaints about the dirt and sediment in the 
water, plus the obnoxious taste. This letter also mentioned 
that rather than incur freight charges, the "rater in stock 
was throw'n out. This letter continues to state that the 
Norman Storage called again for the ninth time and insisted 
that all empties be removed. Photostatic copies of this letter 
arebeing furnished and designated as Austin #6. 

In ~~. AUSTINts files was a letter dated ~~y 14, 1946, 
from ~~. ST. THOMAS to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN, which mentions con­
tamination of the vlater and states in part, "As previously 
advised, ro.thor than run the rislc. of any more complaints, we 
had all the water in the warehouse throl~ out and, as advised 
by Norrr~n Storage today, the total number of cases disposed of 
in this manner wasil etc. Photostatic copy of thif:! letter is 
being furnished and deSignated as Austin #7. 

A letter dated January 17, 1947, from Mr. ST. THOMAS 
to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN appeared in Mr. AUSTIN1s files. This 
letter concludes with the statement, "v1111 you please look 
into the matter of adjustment in this case and if you 00 desire, 
Norman storage can easily verify the fact that the number of 
cases indicated above were thrown out. 1I Photostatic copies of 
this letter and reply dated January 27, 1947, are being fur­
nished and designated as Austin #8, page 1 and page 2. 

There was also in Mr. AUSTIN's files, a letter dated 
f.la.y 1, 19lj'7, from ~ir. ST. THOl-lAS to IvW. PORTER L. AUSTIN 
(Mr. AUSTIN's son), which mentions that as of ~my l~ 1947~ 
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~~ ST THOMAS desired to be relieved of the distributorship 
in·the-New York area. This letter stated in part: 

"I understand from the Norman Warehouse people that 
there are about 85 empty cases on hand and if you 
will advise me when your truck from Virginia makes 
the next trip to Philadelphia, I can can arrange to 
have these empty cases taken back on that particular 
truck_It 

The files contain a reply to this letter dated ~~y 9, 
1947, from !vIr. PORTER L. AUSTIN to Mr. ST. THOlw1.I\S which stated 
in part, ItIf you will arrange with Novick Transfer to call at 
Norman Storage for the empties that are on hand there, we shall 
appreciate it. Simply have the entire shipment go direct to 
Winchester, Va., where we can arrange to call for same. 1I 

Photostatic copies of these letters are being furnished and 
deSignated as Austin #9, pages 1 and 2. 

There also appeared in the files a letter dated 
September 10, 1951, from ERNEST r~, Norman Storage and 
Trucking Company, to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN. Capon Springs, W. Va., 
wherein Mr. MEYN stated that it was his belief that the Food 
and Drug Administration ordered the removal of the water 
from his warehouse and stated that he thought that it might 
possibly be that the receipt for the removal might be some­
where in Mr. AUSTINts possession. Photostatic copy of this 
letter is being furnished and deSignated as Austin #10. 

r~. AUSTDI stated that forwarded with this letter was 
a letter dated April 25, 1945, from A. P. ST. THOMAS to the 
Norman storage and Trucking Company, photostatic copy of which 
io being furnished and deSignated as Austin #11. ¥~. AUSTIN 
also advised that there was forwarded with the above letter 
deSignated as Austin #10 an envelope of the United States ~Ia.rsha1, 
New York, addressed to the Norman Storage and Trucking Company, 
Inc., photostatic copy of which is being furnished and deSignated 
as Austin #12. It is to be noted that the original of the 
letter, Austin #11, is now in the possession of Mr. AUSTIN and 
that this letter has as stated been addressed to the Norman 
Storage and Trucking Company. It is to be further noted that 
the letter" Austin #11, bearo the initials IfJAKtt and the date 
~mrch 28, 1951. Mr. AUSTIN stated that these were the initials 
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ot Inspector KEDZIOR~ FDA, who he alleged had taken thio 
letter without permission from the files of Norman storac;e 
and Trucking Company, according to inforn"lltion which rlr'. 
AUSTIN otated he received in a telephone conversation 't'lith 
~~. ~mYN, detailo of which will be sct forth later in this 
report. Details regarding the penciled notations appearing 
on Austin #12 are mentioned in a sheet entitled, "January 8, 
1952, Report of Telephone Conversation Between LLA and r~. 
MEYN, II ~J'hich l'lill hereinafter be referred to as Austin #14, 
page 1 and page 2. In the files, was a sheet entitled, 
IIMemos of ST. THOMAS Conversations" in which under date of 
January 5, 1952, it is stated in part, "ST. THOfJIAS sur;gested 
that perhaps no one was to blame, that is, intentionally, 
that perhaps the cases, being old and dusty, were accidently 
removed. It On this sheet, it io further noted that Mr. AUSTIN 
advised ST. THOr~S against furnishing a statement to the 
effect that the cases may have been accidently removed to 
r~. C~~INGS, FDA, New York. Photostatic copy of this sheet 
is being furnished and deSignated as Austin #13. 

In tl1r. AUSTINl s files, there were contained two 
sheets, one dated January 8, 1952, and the other headed 
"Telephone Conversation Between LLA and MEYN, page 2." 
Photostatic copy of the sheets is being furnished and deSignated 
as Austin #14, page 1 and page 2. On these sheets, Mr. AUSTINJs 
remarks on the telephone conversation between himself and MEYN 
appear, together with conjectures of ~~. AUSTIN. 

It is to be noted that on the sheet deSignated Austin 
#14, page 1, l~. AUSTIN makes reference to the fact that 
a letter 't'lritten by A. P. ST. THOMAS to the Norman Storage and 
Trucking Company, dated April 25, 1945, (Austin #11) was sent 
to him under date of September 6, 1951, and that Mr. AUSTIN 
advised the reporting agent that letter referred to as Austin 
#11 was received at the same time as letter deSignated as 
Austin #10. 

There was also contained in the files a letter dated 
May 23, 1952, from Mr. EDGAR R. EWING, Administrator, Federal' 
Securi ty Agency, \'lashington, D. C., to tlIr. AUSTIN \'lherein Mr. 
EWING states that "I have your letter or May 6, 1952. There is 
no need for me to discuss certain factual statements in your 
letter which our people believe are not accurate or conclusions 
you reached which they considered unwarranted." 'Mr. EVIING 
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advised AUSTIN that the Department of Justice was aware of 
the fact that the water which was seized VIas no longer avail­
able. Photostatic copy of this letter is being furnished and 
designated as Austin #15. 

I~. AUSTIN voluntarily furnished the reporting agent 
a .signed statement, dated February 19, 1953, which reads as 
follo\'18 : 

"Feb. 19, 1953 

ttl am eager and willing to take an affidavit 
to the following effect: 

til. Neither I nor anyone representing me, or anyone 
connected with the Capon '\'later business removed the 
res, or had anything to do with the removal of the 
res from the Norman Storage & Trucking Companyts ware­
house in New York City in the year 1945 or at any 
other time. 

112.. I did not know, have never visited, or ever com­
municated with anyone connected \'fith the Norman Storage 
& Trucking Company, until August of 1951, after learning 
that the Food & Drug Administration had claimed in court that 
the res had ·somehow disappeared!. 

113. There is not the slightest chance the res could 
have been returned to us, (full or empty) at Philadel­
phia or Capon Springs without our knowing it. Our re­
cords show no such return for the simple reason none 
was made. 

/s/ tlLOUIS L. AUSTIN" 

Photostatic copies of this statement are being furnished 
and designated as Austin #16. 

Mrs. EVA D. AUSTIN, sister of Mr. AUSTIN, 7842 Gilbert 
Street, advised that she has been employed by Mr. AUSTIN since 
1929. She stated that Mrs. MARY T. REGAN, who has been employed 
by Mr. AUSTIN since 1925, is more familiar with bookkeeping and 
shipments. than she, and could furnish any information desired 
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regarding shipments. Mrs. AUSTIN stated that she had no in­
formation regarding the disappearance of instant water. 

On February 18" 1953" Mine MARY T. REGAN" 3138 North 
33rd street" Philadelphia" telephone RA 5~3l95" advised that 
she has no copies of inventories which would reflect the 
amount of goods stored in the Norman Warehouse" New York" at 
anyone time. She otated that if inventories were made" they 
were made by Mr. ST. THOMAS" but she doubted that he w~intained 
any inventory. She stated that her records reflect no informa­
tion regarding any full bottleo of water returned from New York 
City to either Capon Springs" W. Va." or Philadelphia. She 
continued that she receives reports of DENNIE DUNLAP" ~~nager" 
Capon Springs" W. Va." Plant" on a printed office form" which 
she transcribes on her cards which she had previously displayed 
to the reporting agent. She stated that after about three 
years" DUNLAPJs reports to her are destroyed" and she had on 
file presently only his reports for 1950" 1951" and 1952. She 
stated that she did not have available any papern from truck" 
ing companies or railroad express regarding shipments from 
New York to Capon Springs" W.Va. She stated that if empty 
bottles bearing any particular markines were received by DUl~AP 
at Capon Springs" W. Va." she believed that he would have re­
ported them. She continued that if markings had been removed" 
she knew of no company records that might reveal whether bottles 
l'lould have been returned to I-3.pon Springs" W. Va. 

Miss REGAN stated that she could offer no information 
relative to the disappearance of instant water in this case. 

Miss R. MILLER" Novick Transfer Company" 2839 East 
Tioga Street" advised that the main office of the company is 
located at 700 North Cameron street" Uinchester" Va." and 
that the New York Terminal of the Company is located at 41l~ 
West 38th Street" New York City. Miss MILLER stated that she 
was not sure where records pertaining to a shipment emanating 
from lIe~~ York ~lOuld be maintained. She stated" how'ever., that 
these records would either be maintained at the New York Office 
or at the Winchester" Va." Office of the company. 
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ENCLOSURES TO THE BUREAU, 
PITTSBURGH, AND NEW YORK: 

One photostat.ic copy of' each of the f'ollO't'1ing documents: 

FDA PH #1, pages 1 and 2, letter dated June 26, 1951, 
to the Honorable GROVER C. RICHMAN, JR., United states 
Attorney, Nel'lark, N. J., i'rom DANIEL p. \-TILLIS, Assis­
tant General Counsel, Food and Drug Division. 

FDA PH #2, letter dated August 27, 1951, to Admini­
stration Division of Regulatory Management from 
Philadelphia District. 

FDA PH #3, letter dated October 29, 1951, to PHILLIP 
W. AUSTIN, Esq., Washington, D. C., from WILLIAM W. 
GOODRICH, Acting Assistant General Counsel, Food and 
Drug Division. 

FDA PH #4, page 1 and page 2, letter dated January 4, 
1952, to PHILLIP W. AUSTIN, Esq., Washington, D. C., 
BERNARD D. LEVINSON, Attorney, Food and Drug Division. 

Austin #1, letter dated f.iarch 15, 1945, from Norman 
Storage and Trucking Company, Inc., to Gapon Springs, 
New York City, N. Y. 

Austin #2, page 1 and page 2, letter dated April 18, 
1945, from A. P. ST. THOMAS to Mr. LOUIS L. AUSTIN, 
Philadelphia, and reply dated April 24, 1945. 

Austin #3, page 1 and page 2, letter dated April 20, 
1945, from A,. -P. ST. THOIvlAS to MIa.. LOUIS L • AUSTIN" 
Philadelphia, and reply dated April 24" 1945. 

Au~tin #4, letter dated April 20, 1945, from A. P. 
ST. THOIvlAS to Mr. LOUIS L. AUSTIN, Philadelphia. 

Austin #5, letter dated March 27" 1946, trom r~. A. p. 
ST. THOMAS to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN, Philadelphia. 

Austin #6, letter dated May 3, 1946, from Iqr. A. p. 
ST. THOMAS to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN, Philadelphia. 
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Austin #7, letter dated May 14, 1946, from A. P. ST. THOMAS 
to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN, Philadelphia. 

Austin #8, page i and page 2, letter dated January 17, 1947, 
from A. P. ST. THOr~S to L. L. AUSTIN, Philadelphia, and reply 
dated January 27, 1947. 

Austin #9, page 1 and page 2, letter dated r~y 1, 1947, from 
A. p. ST. THOMAS to Mr. PORTER L. AUSTIN, Philadelphia, and reply 
dated May 9, 1947. . 

Austin #10, letter dated September 10, 1951, from ERNEST MEYN, 
Norman Storage and Trucking Company, Inc., to r.fi:t. L. L. AUSTIN, 
Capon Springs, W. Va. 

Austin #11, letter dated April 25, 1945, from Mr. A. p. ST. THOr~S, 
to Norman Storage and Trucking Company, New York. 

Austin #12, envelope of U. S. Marshal, New York, addressed to 
Norman Storage and Trucking Company, Inc. 

Austin #13, Memos of ST. THOMAS conversations. 

Austin #14, page 1 and page 2, report of telephone conversation 
between LLA and Mr. MEYN. 

Austin #15, letter dated May 23, 1952, from OSCAR R. Et'lING, 
Administrator, FSA, to Mr. AUSTIN. 

Austin #16, voluntary signed statement furnished by Mr. LOUIS L. 
AUSTIN dated February 19, 1953. 

- R U C .... 
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" ADMINISTRATIVE ~ 

For the information of the Pittsburgh Division, re­
ferenced report advised of the Bureauts instructions that this 
matter was to be completed and returned to the Bureau not 
later than February 24, 1953. 

THE NEW YORK DIVISION, 
AT NEW YORK, N. Y. 

Will, at Novick Transfer Company, 414 West 38th street, 
New York City, endeavor to locate records which may account for 
disappearance of instant water in this case, and interview any 
individuals who may have information relative to possible re­
moval of this water from Norman Storage and Trucking Company. 

This lead was set forth in Philadelphia teletype to New 
York dated February 20, 1953. 

THE PITTSBURGH DIVISION, 
AT CAPON SPRINGS, W. VA. 

Will interview DENNIE DUNLAP, Plant Manager, Capon 
Spring Water, for any information he may have relative to the 
disappearance of instant water in this case. Will check any 
records maintained by DUNLAP in an effort to ascertain whether 
instant water might have been returned, particularly during the 
period of May 1947, to Capon Springs Plant, Capon Springs, W. Va. 

Will determine whether any empty bottles bearing mark­
ings attached by U. S. Marshal, New York, were received at 
Capon Springs, W. Va. 

This lead was set forth in Philadelphia teletype to 
Pittsburgh dated February 20, 1953. 

REFERENCE: Report of SA ROBERT N. WINGARD, dated 
February 12, 1953, at Washington, D. C. 
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~:~ITTSBURGH 2-23- 53 8- 54 PM EST RL ', ', 

(DIRECTOR, SAC NE~v YORK AND PHILADE?pHIA URGENT n~t~~ 

UNITED STATES V. FIVE CASES, ETC. CAPON SPRING WATE8 NO. ONE ZE~~~ 
ONE TWO SIX, . FDC NO. ONE ZERO ZERO FIVE THREE, CONTEMPT OF COURT, OBS­

TRUCTION OF JUSTICE. RE PH TEL FEB. nJENTY LAST, BUDED FEB. THENTYFOUR, 

INSTANT. DENN~E DUNLAP , SUPERINTENDENT, CAPON SPRING vlATER, CAPON 

SPRING A~D FARMS, CAPON SPRINGS, WVA., INTERVIEWED THIS DATE BY SA 
--- --- --- -- - ------ - -~---

WILLIAM J. KUBASTA. ADVISED·NO RECORDS OF ANY TYPE MAINTAINED BY HIM --
AT CAPON SPRINGS. ALL PAPERS FORWARDED L. L. AUST~N, OVINER, FOURTEEN 

TWENTYSEVEN SPRUCE ST., PHILA., UPON RECEIPT OF SAME. AUSTIN AT CAPON 
.... 

SPRINGS ABOUT SIX MONTHS PER YEAR, MAINTAINS ALL RECORDS IN HIS POSS 

ESSION, AND UPON DEPARTURE, TAKES SAME WITH HIM. DUNLAP NOT COGNIZANT 

OF ANY COURT ACTION REGARDING CAPON SPRING WATER. HAS NO SPECIFIC 

KNOWLEDGE REGARDING WATER SEIZED AS EVIDENCE. STATES ONLY EMPTY BOTTLES 

RETURNED TO CAPON SPRINGS FOR REFILLING. AUSTIN TRANSMITS ALL ORDERS , 

TO HIM AT CAPON SPRINGS. SHIPMENTS THEN MADE TO PHILA. \vHERE STORED •. 1./-
DUNLAP HAS NO KNOWLEDGE CONCERNING WATER OF A.P. ST. THOMAS, FORMER 

DEALER, NYC., BEING RETURNED TO CAPON SPRINGS, BELIEVING SUCH STOCK 

WOULD HAVE BEEN FORWARDED PHILA t.JAREHOUSE FOR RESALE. NOTES IT IS MORE 

. ECONOMICAL TO RETURN EMPTY BOTTLES TO CAPON SPRINGS FOR REFILL THAN 

TO PAY SHIPPING 

"- END PAGE ONE 
~G', V.1J. . 1 ~ i~!);~ 

IZe 

COST ON FULL BOTTLES. ACCORDING TO DUNLAP, COMP~NX t 
RECORDED-7.6. @~,' ~ 7fai ~-,<r-' . 
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PAGE nJO 

HANDLED THREE OR FOUR TRUCKLOADS DIRECT TO NYC IN FORTYONE, AND ALL OTHER . 

SHIPMENTS DIRECT TO PHILA UNTIL FORTYFOUR OR FORTYFIVE. FROM FORTYFIVE 

TO FORTYEI GHT LOADS TAKEN BY elVN TRUCK FROM CAPON SPRINGS TO WINCHESTER, 

VA., WHERE TRANSFERRED TO NOVICK TRANSFER CO. FOR HAULING DIRECT TO 

PHILA. EMPTY BOTTLES RETURNED IN SAME MANNER. SINCE FORTYEIGHT, HAROLD 
______ - - -- _ _ Wn~ __ _ _ _ _ 

GOOD, WARDE~SVILLE, WVA., HAS HANDLED SHIPMENTS DIRECT TO PHILA. AND 

RETURN OF EMPTIES, FULL LOADS BEING UTILIZED. DUNLAP STATES GOOD MAIN­

TAINS NO RECORD OF CONTENTS OF LOAD. PGH. UNAWARE IF RH CHECKING NOVICK 
•• . -

TRANSFER CO. RECORDS, WINCHESTER, VA. NO LEAD BEING SET OUT FOR RH 

BUT CC OF THIS TEL BEING SENT RH, AMSD. 

END 

NY TO BE ADVISED 

ACK IN 0 PLS 

WA 8-58 PM OK FBI WA RD 

PH SS OKF BI PH PBC 

TU DSIC 

HALLFORD 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

/' 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

AIR-TEL 

smit the following Teletype message to: 

'f4'.4rv~ 
~~ (REGULAR MAIL) 
~K (REGULPJ.R MAILMINFO. 

2/20/53 

~
I!h 

.Jfill'(~ 

DIRECTOR AND SAC (i) . ',~ ~\~f ~.' " 
UNITED STATES VS FIVE CASES ETC. CApON SPRING WATER .Itl0126· ,-6 .:..::..;..;;.;......;.;.;;. __ , __ ".- •. _ ',' ~ " _.. _ _._ ~ __ 7i _ • _ ~ 

FDC #10053; CONTEMPT OF COURT, OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE. REREp· 

SA ROBERT N. 1rIINGARD DATED 2/12/53 AT WASHINGTON, D.C. REPORT 
I ... " 

BEING TYPED AND !~LL REACH BUREAU 2/25/53. 

END 
MJR/nch 
69-28 

ABBATICCHIO 

Sent ______ M Per _____ _ 



• • • FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

NRU:GTC 
Transmit the following Teletype message to: 

FBI RICHMOND 2-24-53 - 5:45 P.M. 

DIRECTOR, FBI~ EIDULAR MAIL 
SACS NEW YORK - AIR MAIL 

I'D·ae 

f
--~- ~ -, 

/If ..,.." "'<'-1,_ 
" I"j, _ _ !; 

-;, ~, 
'-,' 

" 'If;_ 

/ . 
i 
i .... -

, , 

. ::~ 
':r _=,,0 
. 1 _, 

J_ "~",",,,_, 

• "~~~Cft>:-; 
~.~PJif'- I ',- - /1'" 

~ /0 b 
UNITED_ STATES V .. ~;rVE CASES.., ETC. CAPON ~RING WATER NQMBER ONE ZERO 1'" --J 

PHILADELPHIA - AIR MAIL 

I .J I. / _(~ / J ' . '. I 
o~ TlilO SIX,FDC NO. ONE ZERO ,ZERO F~VE_~~, CONl'EMPT OF COURT, 

OBSTRUOTION OF JUSTICE. RE PITTSBURGH AIRTEL FEBRUARY TWENTYTHREE 

LAST WHEREIN IT IS INDICATED PITTSBoro UNAWARE WHETHER RICHMOND 

IS CHECKING NOVICK TRANSFER COMPANY RECORDS WINCHESTER, VA. AND, THEREFORE, 

NO LEAD BEING SET OUT FOR RICHMOND, BUT CC OF RElfIRTEL BEING FURNISHED. 

RICHMOND HAS NO PRIOR CORRESPONDENCE CAPTIONED CASE AND IS TAKING NO 

ACTION UNLESS ADVISED TO THE CONTRARY. 

JOHNSON 

46-0 

, . RECORDED .. 46 

Approg,-_-X-++-_______ _ 
~)i;'f' t~Jn'.~ ,;,~ ~ e, ial Agent in Charge 

vI 1J~',nY I lL v i;j~~~ , 

Sent ____ M, Per __ 



e • FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTI'IOl. 

UNITED STATES DEPART~OF JUSTICE 
69-4 A 
l{LJ:AB ~~~¥-~~~ 

/ 2%l/53 

~ansmit the following Teletype message to: AIR TEL 

FD-86 

1

1 :. '. -;'. . , .. 
... , _, II 

<", 

~ " ' 

J

' j':, • 

, '1 1,1.':1' L ' 

I. ",'I\, •• , 

I :' , , ,'.' , I " . 
~ l"'" '. _ /arRECTOR, FBI AND SAC NEW YORK 

(!Jrll' ' 
U. S. VS-5·-~CASES. ETC., CAPON SPRING ~vATER #1014.6; FBC #10053, 

• t _-_~ --

i; '. ~ 

CON'rEMfT:{'(,~ ' '1' . 

~ .~ , I 

OF COURT, OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE. REREP OF SA ROBERT N. ~'lINGARD G. 

2/12/53 AT ~vASHINGTON, D. C. AUSA ALEXANDER FEINBERG, CM-IDEN, NJ, 
, . 

ADVISED HE HAS NO INFORi.fATION RE IvfISSING EVIDENCE IN TdIS CASE OTHER 

THAN THE FACT THAT H,rIAS ADVISED THE EVIDENCE ;;lAS MISSING BY THE 

FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION IN ,JUNE, 1951, AND THIS INFO~ffiTION WAS 

P~SED ON THE U. S. DISTRICT COURT, CAI®EN, NJ, 8/24/51.' RECORDS 

CONTAINED I11f FEINBERGIS OFFICE REVIEfNED AND C01~TAnjED NO INFORivlllTION 

NOT AL&l:ADY SET OUT IN RERRENCED REPORT. RUC 

HOST.ETT~ 

END 

Approved: ___ .:....~-=--::::;...:..,:·'*::¥'~~rOJ'·~ __ _ 
Special Ag<;)fli£i"in Charge 

"" (l l't U ~ 0 ,IAAR I'd lJ'r.\~4}) o ~;:I.~; 

1 ? I 

Sent ____ , 

I 
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MA HOB 10, 1953 

SAO, NEw IORK 

AIR'lZL 

MAIL 

OIITED STA'lBS VB. PIn CASU, ftc. CAPQI_&l.BlIf911_~m" 

CO.TEMP! OF COUR'l, OBS!RtJOtIOIl 01' JUStIC.. BBBULB1' FEBRUARY 

fBRBK, IIIETBIX PIPfYTHRil. SUAIRTBL DA1'& OP REPORT SUBMlfTlD 

AHD'A~P UPOR~DfQ AGDt. BXPBDITB. 

BOOVBI 

69-6S6 

RECORDED· 123 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
ForrnNo.1 
THIS CASE ORIGINATED AT NE~1 YOFj( 

~EPORT MADE AT DATE WHEN PERIOD FOR WHICH MADE REPORT MADE: BY 

BST-I 

; _ U:SW YORK Jt,j~, 1 1 ;A;,~ , .. ~ , 2/27;3/1-5/53 
-- TITLE_ UNITT::;n STATes vPFive Cases, etc. 

I, 

CHARACTER OF CASE 

._ .... Capon Spri~ l'lator-;-iTb'12-6';- -
FD~L tlO_053 ---- - . 

CONTEl";PT OF COTJBT; 
OBS'rBlfCTION OF JUSTICE 

SYNOPSIS OF FACTS: 

i '! 
. ~ ~ , 

-
, I 
I 

" 

r4'ro. CHJ\RL3S HERntoJll\N, Chief, FDA, NY District, 
interviewed as well as inspectors vTho had 
assignn1ents on the case. Details set out. 
Records or USM's of rica reviewed and Deputy 
Marshall:1 ENRIGHT and TUBT·iAN interviewed. 
Details set out. Results of interview with 
11r. ANDRG"1 P. ST. THO HAS , rormer distributor 
for Capon Sprine;s, and Mr. .-";P.N~L~T J. IiI'":gYl.J and 
~'[ILLIAlii £It.:RBST, o:fricers 01' Norman storage and 
~rrucking Comp any, se t ou to. ~,.' _ I ... _ -r- " J ' • ~. 

f ,./ P - - \ ,,,,I-.. ~"'-,. ;" . . 
J "" .-"" - - P " I' ;~ ,.. ~ ~'I " - - "'" 

, :.1 , ", ,' t " /;;/ , :"'~ _ , : 

DB1'AIL::i: i' ,At Nevi york, New York ...-.." ', ~, ,. ,;'1':: ") 

' . .. .... - . 

Mr. CHARLr!:s Ht:;RRr1AN, Chief', Food and Drug AdministratioJ , 
New york District, advised that he rirst became acquainted with 
instant case when he was the Assistant Chier or the ~astern 
District stationed at the New York station. He advised that 
at that time he had no porsonal contact with the case but I 

tha t rrom his perusal ot' the riles and recollection or bac}.:­
ground in the case it was commenced in this dist:rict some time 
in 1943. He advised that samples of' the spring water had 
been taken by Inspector GRE8NLEE and that GR.F':<:NL'B!E at that 
time indicated rrom what shipments the sal'YJples t-Te:r-e taken .. 
Subsequently, according to r.r'r. Hf';RRJ.flLN, the remainder of the 
ohipments were seized by the United states Marshnl in June, 
1943. He stated that the assip;nment or the case to this 
district must have been by a letter rrom either vlashinr.~ton 
or Phi1adelpr. i~ eft that he does not have a coi~~- . o-f: !:t"!!_ -.:::-:-:::"=- __ 

. _'" ) } I 
COPIES OF THIS REP~T .-' I ......... , .. :J :.It:u 

5 ' 1 - jlbDEXEIJ,",'-;f~ "'Bureau ' ,_ -- ._ / '" \~lit 
3 N Vi k ( 6 9 ~ 3) :rf.. ~\ r:.( ~ +' - vi l' -; '':':.~:! J 1"""'-

. - _ew or -~~'~f ' ~ ~ . /," "_.-" .1 f, . /~ .',' .... -:,-a.. ... 1\)1 

I (I: ( ,. - ( It! \ I d. \, . " , ' , ' 

. t', .. _- - - -- - - . - " ;; 
, I ._:;'::.>"1/ : 

PROPERTY OF FBI - THIS ' coN'J:'?alillfiAi REPORT AND ITS CONTENTS ARE LOANED TO YOU BY THE FBI AND AR~ NOT TO BE DISTRIBUTED ,OUTSIDE Of . 
AGENCY TO WHICH LOANED. :;;;;;--~- . 

1< u.s. GOV~RNMENT PRINTING OffiCE - 1952-0'210616 16-;,!1255 ·2 ~,~i. -,,: . "/J'. ":f 
, I 

,,""" ' ."_" .' I 
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He recalls that the samples were brought in and shipped to 
l'fashington, D.C. whor'e tho clinical analysis of the water was 
made. From that time until the sprin~ of 1951 when a request 
was rGceived for tho New York District to ascertain if the 
seized property 1.yO,S still in the Norman storap.:e and rpruckin~ 
Company Warehouse, 10-13 Leonard stre et, New yor-k City, no 
inspections or work was aone by the New York DiI..;t'!:"ict 01'1'ice 
on this case. 

He stated tha.t Inspector Kf~)TDJICK r"T. COL'II! was assignec~ 
to contact the warEihouse and ' chec~.t the \orater and ascertain the 
condition of the contents in the bottles. He stated that 
subsequently Hr. COIB returned and advised. that the water was 
no longer on the prol11ises and that shortly after Inspector COLE 
accompanied by Inspector JOHN A. KEDZIOR returned to the 
Norman storage Co.rr..pany and made a thorouL;h check of the records, 
and premises and conferred with JJ.r. :~'P 'N~;BT J. VBYN, r·Tr.VTILLIAIIf 
H::::RBST and '[IIIr. JAI .f,·,B Knq:r~NS concerning the seized vla.ter. 

:M'r. H,~RR~"'llN advised that he is positive that the 
Food and Drug Administration had nothing to do with the 
removal of the seized water, that no samples were taken fro~ 
the seized t-Iater, that no arra.ngements had been me.de with 
any other ar;ency or organization to remove the ~Tater. It is 
h:i.s opinion the t the water could have possibly been inadvertantly 
thrown out by someone working ror the Norw~n storage and 
Truc~dng Company or in somt) similar manner. He stated that 
thEl Food and nrug Adminis t r o.t ion had no pOlv8 r to rele as El the 
goods but that they would have to be released by an order of 
the court. 

Hr. R;:':B'R:tL7AN made ava11able to thE) 't<Irit ~J r tho5r 
records ininsta~t case maintained in ~i10 No. 45453F which 
reflected that the seizure had been accomplished on June b.." 
1943, and that Jns-pector GRI3T~~·ITI.,,~J'!'! had on IJf.ay 27, 1943, collected 
sam:oles which were subsequently sent to "lashinp;ton i'or clinical 
analysis from portion~ of the shipment or Capon Sprinp; ~'later 
then on hand .• 

Except for information pertaining to the samplinB 
conducted by ~ ·~r. Cm::':E:NL"i'z and the seizure on .June 4, 1943, no 
corr'espondence relative to locating the instant water was 
noted in the file. The correspondence pertained principally 
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to medical and clinical analysis and the court trial. The 
fiI'st correspondence noted relative to the di~appearance or 
tho water was a memorandu.m dated l1ar-ch 26, 1951, f'rom the 
Division of Ro~ulatory Mana~0ment to the Chier, New York 
District, requesti(li:~ that that division ascertair.. whether 
the seized :.;.:tock was s till in the 'tvlJ.rehouse of the Norman 
storar:e and Trucking CorlJpany. This in.Cormation was reported. 
to thf) :3Ureau previously by l1ashinr.:;ton Field Office. 

All the ini'ormation,as previously furnished to the 
Bu::r·so.u and photostatic copies 01' it vTere furnished aloo 
concernin~ a rr.emo dated April 9, 1951; a memo dated P~ril 25, 
1951; a memo dated J1.'iay 29, 1951; and a memo dated January 9, 
1952., vIas also contained in the Nell v01'k District 'Pooo 3nd 
D;r'].lr: Adrl1inistr.s..tiQn i'ile·s. I\.dd:1tional inforrrstion contflinen in 
i':l1e-s 'of-li"DA wilT be suomitted in R future report. 

Mr. BBRFll!'AN advised that the complete file concerning 
this case is either in the possession of the Nachin~ton headquarters 
of the ? ood nru€ Administration or the Philadelphia ',istrict of 
the Pood and Drug Administration. 

JJfr. CHA'RLES L. (jR1. '.~ ,NL 1!E, Inspector, :pood p....:nd 1)ru(~ 
l\dministrn,tion, advised on March 3" 19S3., tha.t on the ninth 
of' Pebru.ary, 1943, pursuant to instructions i'rofl:. Ii,9:0 L. LHS13Y, 
at that tL~e Chief' Inspector of the Dastern District of which 
district th-;;: Ne'toJ' York o1'1'ice vTaS known as the .N \:1W York station, 
requested that a sample 01' Capon Spring v!n.ter be secu(icd fron: 
the 'tva tor then. located on the premlses of the Norman storap~e 
and nrul7, ~1Jarehouse. Ho advised that he had made preparation 
to securG samples but was unable to do so at that time. He 
stated that on l..fay 2,"/, 1943, he contacted r:'r. ~ ·;RNbST J. r:(~:YN-, 
Presid1m t of the Norman storan;c and rrruckinp; Company, and 
collected :::amples from mixed stock thon on hand. In cotmection 
llith this samplinr:; he advised that he placed on each case 
from Which (;1 sample wus taken and also on several other cases 
his initials and the date on which the ss''''1ples were taken. 
He advised that it is his r8collection that at this ti'~iO the 
cases i'r'om which the samples were taken 'V10re located in the 
southeast corner of the warehouse basement. He listed all 
the shipments wh.ich comprised. the lot then on the preniscc 
In viet-l of the fact as shipments cane in the cases were mixed 
with cases from other shipl1ents and it could not be detc;r"'linod 
ex~ctly from l'J'hich shipment tho se.mnles were taken. 

3 

- ----. -----------------=====-=~==~====~~~==~==~ 



'. 

NY 69-53 

}ire GR:;;_:~n:J;;'::;: stated that h,-, returned with the H. S. 
ro~aruhal HILLIll.li1) r.pTH-sIl'J on Juno 4, 19l~3, in order that he 
coule clearly point out to f>'ir. TTnrrN the :mercha.ndise -1-0 be 
seized. lie advised thut the Marshal ,!70nerally after he 
places an attachment on one of the cases of' the lot which 
}1aS seized, p;i ves ei thGr one or tl'J"O copies of' the monition 
to a representative ot the comnany on ~Jhose premises the 
seized goods wer'0 located. He b01ievea that in this case since 
Nr. IfcillYN vlas the person who vient with them vT.hen the sei zure 
was l11ade tha t r;~~YN had rec.~i ved Ht leas t one copy 01' the monition 
from the H. S. Harshal. Concerninp; this seized ~oods, 
lJTr. (lR:::~:NJ.Jf:;E stated that he had ascertained from Hr. T·18'X'N 
that no shipmGnts had been received by that compeny between 
I-iay 27, 1943, and Junu 4, 1943, and th<::;refore the seizuT'e 
vTU.[; made on all the ca3es then on the w'areboun0 premises. 
He further stated that his opinion is that the ]\,~arshal advised 
rJfr. MEn that the seized (;oo(ls coule not be re.:noved 1,l1thout 
an order of' the court. -

Concerninn; the du t.ies of: tho 'I"ood snd nrua; inspector 
in this cat1e, T·Tr. GR ~ ;,";~.JLl::~ stated that in viGI'1 01' the .fact that 
the ~;ater had beon seized by the l'iiarshal and vIas in the 
custoc'ly of th.e T"Tarshal on the promiseD of the 'l\!orman S i o!'ar;e 
and . ~.lruckinr,; CO!rnsny ~/arebouse that he as an inspector 'l.-J'ould 
not be ohlir:ated to reche,ck the f1r;rchand1se but thai; i1' it is 
to be d:> ne it shoulo be hU?:1dled by the TT. ::;. 1\1arshal 's Of'1'ice. 
Tn other Hords, acco"",d1 no' to I":r. (}R:-' :J:NVC', opce the 1';OOOS 1,re.17e 
seized it is T).O lon!):er handled by -,?ood and nrug Administration 
and they could not f,sJ::e samples from said aeized (;oods unless 
they received an order froPl the court. He concluded by stating: 
that his only other connection -vdth the case 11'a::1 -vJhen he 
testi f'ied in ~4t-,rch, 19~.!L, b(jI'ore .Tt1d~o CO}:t~'CR and since that 
time to his knoivledr;e, he han hud no further connect ion with 
tho seized water or-with the disappearance of' it. 

t.'TT'. Kl,I,,;or.nr:'K Gm~" Inspector, Food and nrug J\d:m.inistr~.tlon, 
advised on r,':arch 3, 1953, that -prior to recei vinfr, an assi!7,nment 
based on a memorandum from the division of X'er~ula.tory :r.mnfl.o:er .. 0nt, 
~Jashinp;ton, D. c. 'GO checl::: and at:ccrtain if thE: seized 'VIa tor 
1'las still on the premitles 01' the Norme,n Stora.,",:e Rna ~ruckinp: 
COO!Dany and. ascer·tain the condition of sa.id wator, he had had 
no connection vTith the case. Ho advised tht1,t upon receipt of 
thic assir.::nment hA went; to tho Norman :stor~l.F':e and 'rruclcing 
Com:pany and contacted J,'i'r. ,dPl')l,!;srp .. T. :Jj1i;YN, Pr'eu icJent, who 
advised him that he recalled the 'water havinr: b(:;on seized but 
that he did not knOl-l wher'0 it vras at that tirn9 but that h0 
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va(~ui)ly rOIt1e:r.1burs th:?t it vlas ship'Oed to PhiladelphIa, 
Pe nn;;.:yl vania. He e tut:)O that :-:r. ;1, ~'J' cheo ked an account 
book nnd advi03ed him that 1;he la~t date on Hhich t1.ev had 
t>hipped any materia] '"1 1'o.!' Capon Sprinn;s vms in Na,:r, 1947, and 
at tha·.~ tirr..e they ceas·)d businoss rulations with Capon Sprinn;s. 
Thu indications, 't"Iore accorciin'3 to TJir •. n;;"HN, that D.. t tha:: tIme 
all the stock 't-Ib.ich belonr;ed to Capon Spring:.> had boe!l delivered 
to loc~d customers 3'1d that all empty bottles have be(':m 
returneri. Fr. COL~"; stated thnt he suhs'';;ltucntly returned to tl-:le 
01.'1'ice and submitted a memo:r.>andu(Q rEYlectinoz this inf·o-rma.t:i.on 
on April 9, 1951, to the Chief' oJ.: the New York TIistrict. 

Mr. rjOt,~,: advh:ed that a memorandum was racEd ved 
by the Ne\-1 York Of.fice requestinJ?' an investigation be conducted 
to ascertain where the soized !Socds were located or in.i'ormation 
relt;ltive to the disappea~~ance; thflt he and Inspector .TUHll f. .• 
K'",;DZIOB contacted rl,r. jt,;';Y!f at the Norma.n stot'a>,;e and rrru.cking 
Company. 

lIe adolised ths.t ~ 'fr.·,:C-;;'YN ap;ain advised him o.f the 
discontinuance 0:"" business associ-ations with Capon Springs 
in rJ1ay, 1947. rjlhey r~quest£:}d fU:r:'ther rocords and T'lr. r:lF:'lN 
advised that at th3t time he had no Oth01:' records available 
but .. Iould s(,~arch hi~ 1'iles in order to secure any f'urther 
records he may huvo rela'bi ve to the Capon Springs account. 

He stated that on this date 11hich 1.1aS 1-1'ay 2l..!., 
19S1, that they wex'o introduced to Mr. tJIL,LIAM HB.:RBST" Vice 
President of Norm~1.n .3toraf~e and 'f1ruckinr: Company. i\.ccordin~ 
to COLB,r~r. }iuRI~ST advised tr...at he rej';'1~cmbored the seizure 
and took Inspectors COI. I~ and 1<'.t;DZIOR to the basomGnt l"1hich 
was in th'.l southeast c.orJ)er ot' the building and pointed out 
to them the area in which tho water had been stored. At this 
tiMe th~ inspectors were advised that the basernent vrus leased 
:for stora~e to anof:;her concern. Accordinp: to Insoector COLE, 
it was r,Tr. HERriS~'lIs bolief that a man with a badp;e had 
supervised the Y'0movinr; ot' the seized water several years 
after the seizure had been conducted. He s-cated that Hr. 'H' ;pT-r:;r:r 
did not know tl::le man who had the badge and did not knou whe:bh0r 
u r(:)ce int had been received for releas:tnr: the goods. After 
searchinp: the basement, '!v'r. cor,1t; advised that he and Insnector 
K:lnZIOR. alonp, wi th Nr. t"lILLIJ\M }ft;RBST made a thoroup:h check 
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of tl1e entire pre::n:1ses occupied oy the Not>m.;:m S-cora?,(1 nnd 
'l'ruck:i.nr; Company. ~'Ir. aOTJ \.: stated that sinc0 t!l.)y t-ler>o 
unable to locate the p;ood:.;: and Nr. HI~;R;k;T hO.d advised thai, 
a M'.lJ:l l'li tl-J. a bad;~e had removed th.e [?'OOd3 nnd record::; "t'fcre 
not available to bo checked on that' ci,9.te he and rn8pector 
K ~';,nZIOR proceeded to tho 1T. s. ~'!nrlJhal' s Of1'ice ~JhC't;O the.r 
chec!red the X'0cord.8 of' ths.t o:t1'ice l,u th 1,'r •• TOH~; T. SIGLINt+. 
'Phese rGCOrd3 ret'lected no inf'or~latio'J rul.'ttiv0 to an orde.r 
having bE::on received by the U. 8. ,Mr:'ro.::hal r s Or'tice to 
remove the r;oodG in qU0stion. He stat8d that they then 't'J"Gnt 
and checked record03 of' the H. S. Atbor'neyl:.; Oi'l'ice lJ"hich 
reflected no in1:'ormation concerning an O1'";(J.:~r ot' the court to 
release r;oods or that the goods had been mov0d. H0 advised 
that i. t "teJ"as his bel ior that he and rnspe ctor :IiliDZIOR then 
r~turned to the ~lorm:ln storage and T!'ucking Cor'1pany and 
advised 1I-1r. HIC<:YN to furnish to th.0m all records he had in 
hi!) possession and they did return and review them. 

He stated that he and Inspecto't> KBDZIOR returned 
to the 'Norman storaj;e liarehouse on T!ay 26, 1:-51 and 't"'eviewed 
all the records which wore furrdshed to t~em bv 1<.1;1". ~'HYN. 
1,11". r;;"",GYN advised that his records were not comolete and that 
ho had no records of shipments via Railway; ;XDl:>0.3S. He 
stated that in his and ~;r. KI::DZJOfn s presence ·t.fr. rJl1'iYU 
contacted on.e HI'S. ::;,HI~LEY GORSKY, 0. i'ormor clf)!'k 't"ho i'72.0 
unable to l'urclish any ini'ormation to "'!'r. ~"11;~l relative to 
the seized goods. On this dat(~ the inspecto:r>D talked to 
I!lr. KIMHJ.NS, Secretary-rpro:lnurer, who :;Jdvisod thom thflt he 
remem.bc!'0d tho seized Roods and it 'tlas his belief that the 
goods h9.d been removed ueveral yon.rs ai'tel" tha neizurc. 
Hr. COL~; stated that; thoy reVi01elOd tho :r.>ecord~ and located 
nothJ.nr: that wa.s p'3rtinont to tho disappearance or the 
soizu'l?e except that Inspector K::mZIOB made a copy of: the 
letter which vIaS located in the 1'i1es datljd April 25, 19i+,5, 
from A. "P. ST. rrlforJ/.i~S to th() Norman stora,Q;e :'lnd r:rrucldng 
Company. Hr. CO.L~,; stated that after> no information was 
revealed by a search of the records that fIJI'. M.2.YIII was advised 
by the inspectors that no one had received a ri/Zht to remove 
the seized goods. 

l\1r. COL'!::; ad'/ised t'ha t durin.q: the r:ene ral -procedure 
01' sampll"l").~ and having goods seized the inspector talces 
samples f'rom a lot, ini tiala the case or carton and places the 
date thereon. He stated that the inspoctor marks as many casos 
as he possioly can. Subsequently lll'tor th.e order han been 
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received the inspector generally a ccompanies the Harshal 
in order to point out to the J"~arshal the proper r':oods to 
be seized. He advised that once the goods are seized it 
is then in the Cu.s tody of the U. s. If;arshal a.l'ld it is to 
be removed on an order of the court. 

;'-1r •• JOHN A. KEnZIOR, Inspector, T.jIood and nruR 
Administrs.tion, advised that he acco'wanied tJIr. KENDRICK 
COLt:, Inspector, on rfJay 24 and 28, 1951, to the ITO!'l'nan 
storage a.nd rPrucking Company ·~Tareholl.se. He stated that 
he remembers that they conducted a thorout',:h search of the 
premises and wero unable to locate the Hater but he is 
not sure on which day the search was conducted. Concernin~ 
their interview wi th JV7r.l~lIIILIAt1 H .;RBST he advised that it 
was RliRHSTfs b(;)liet' that a man with a badge had been present 
when the seized goods had been removed, which to H3RBST's 
knowledge had been a year or two atter the original seizuro 
had been made. :r.~r. K.t:DZIOR furthor advisecl. that they checked 
the records of the Marshal's 0:'1'ice in order to ascertain 
whether a record of the releasing of t~e ~oods had been 
received by them and these records reflected no such order. 
He also, as previously stated by Nr. COI;fi.!, accompanied It1r. COI.'I~ 
when the reco,rds of the U. s. Attorney wer-e checked. He stated 
that he was advised by t!r. l''1'EYN ths.t their records were not 
complete and tbat there were no records pertaining to 
shipments by Railway Bxpress. The records, accordinp; to 
:r.1r. l(}ZDZIOR, shOt-led no information portaining to the 
seizure of the p.;oods nor a copy of tne libel or a monition. 
He s I;ated that trom his conversation wi th the officers O'f' the 
Norman Storan;e and Trucking Company it was his belief that 
the goods had been removed prior to ~'1ay, 1947, when the 
account with Capon Springs had been closed and that~s belief 
is that at one time or other the seized goods were Shipped 
back to ai the I" Capon Springs, \,:est Virginia, or Philadelphia, 
Pennsyl velnia. \v'i th reference to the lett') r which was retained 
in the file dated April 25, 1945 from .\. P. ST. 'rHOMiI.S to the 
Norman Storage and Trucking Company, Hr. K~DZIOR advised that 
he made a copy in longhand from this letter and had a copy of 
the letter typed when he returned to the of'fice. 

Both Mr. Kt:nZIOR and :Mr. COLF'! advised that their 
knoioTled~e of the disappearance of the seized cases had been 
fully reported in their memorandum dated Nay 29, 19.51, a 
photostat:tc copy of lV'hich ha's been previously furnished to 
the Bureau by the Washington Field Office. 
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~lr. hNn'R \t'l P.\ ', ST. TI-K':'ffiS, 1L~3-04 Cherry Avenue, 
Plushin~, l'rew York, pre 'sen tly a sales r0present~rt i ve 1~or 
Lincoln ;~9r~i'y; ld8~. Br6adlvay J and the '1ene:rul T!Janager of' 
t i'le Torrace Gables HO '"GI, Falmout Heights, ~.' >.D.a.chusetts, 
furnIshed the followinp; inf'orma tion: . . - -- - -

, , \ . /' 
\1r. S'J:1. ~HOll,'fA.S statp,d that J~OR'PJ;~ AUSTIN, a relative 

of' LOUIS L:/ AUSTIN, o'tmer of Capon Spr>inr;s Company, had 
ori~:tna11y ' ~'been a distributor for Capon Sprinl?;s \fater in tho 
~T~w Y~r_1f ar a but that he, 't-fr. :ST. 'l11f0 !L'TAS, took over this 
distributor hip in approximately 1941. Concerninp; the 
husiness associationn with capon Springs, ST. THOi,1"AS stated 
that he boue;ht the water i'roM. Capon Springs; paid the trttcJdng 
cha rgeD and ordered five tons in water in various size 
bottles wh~n he placed orders. He s ~ ated that the receipt 
for the trucking charges wer0 returned to capon springs and 
he was reimbursed fo r thODe charges. He sta ted that he 
r e calls havin~ been advised that certain case::; of Capon 
Sprine:s water had been seized and it j.s his belief that this 
i~t'or,ma tion vIas furnished by 'l\'7r. ),'8 N ,;,;''', '"(' J. JViF.Th, previously 
referred. to in this r dpot't. He stated that he does not 
recall rece i ving oi the I" a cop'y of the monition or libel 
from 'f'.7r. N:·,YN but if he did receive either one or both he 
definitely forwarded them to Mr. LE"I"IIS L. ATJSTnr. ST. THOlufAS 
sta ted that he had never seen the seized wate~; had no 
knolvledr;e of wher'e it was located; and never ordered it to 
1e removed nor did he ever receive any information to the effect 
that anyone had ordered the water to be re~oved. 

'II·!r. ST. THOW\S advised that durinr: the period as 
distributor for Capon Springs from approximately 1941 to 
1947 he had never ordered the Norman Storar;e and Truckinr; 
Company to dump OIly of' the water on the p,remises O'r' to 
remove it in any similar mannoI'. He recalls ihnt on one 
or two occasions he might have roturned a few bott10s to 
Philadelphia which he had received from the customers, 
because they had complai!led of sediments and impurities 
in the 't'luter. He further advisGd that on a t'ow occasions 
he may have advised customern to get rid ot' the water they 
had in thei~ possession and he either furnished thero a new 
supply or paid them for the water they had destroyed but 
he reiterated that this would be only a few bottles or a 
few cases. He advised the. t he paid the storage on the 
bottles stored at the J-J'orman storage and Trucking t<Jarehouse, 
believing it to be 1:;25.00 a month. This stora~e was for 
wha.tever lot he might have on the prePliscs at tha.t time and 
it was not for any specific storage paid f'or the seized 
goods. In other words, accor>ding to s'r. rrHC (';i~S , he simply 
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paid for th~ spac:e . in' the building and regardless of' whether c 

he had 1}0 water Q,ohand or 500 cases .he ~paid the sartle amount 
which he be;Lieved. to be ,$25'.00. He .. $ta,tedthat ·he took care 
ot all' local sales And' ,had a truckdriver who made · deliveries 
to hia c.~stomersand ,that· in general .the :·empty, cases were 
return~d to .. t4e Normap.~" Storage Company by l),.iscustorners by 
Railway Expra'ss • He,9-<lv.ised that whe~ he had a l,argeamount 
of empties he normallY made " arrange~merits with Mr. AUSTIN 
to' have the bottles returned to Philadelphia or west Virginia. " 

::;Concerning the disappearanee of the water, Mr. ST. THOMAS 
advised that he dafini tely had never CO,nsidered at any time dumpiJ;l,g 
or removing the seiz.edW-~ter andthati.'. ,he had never ordered anyone . 
to do so' . · Hestat.ed ·that his belief is that the wa terwas still 
on the premises' ot the Norman. storage ana, Trucking ,Compf;l.nY 
iri<1947. · He advi~ed that it is conceiva.blethEit the W'a ,ter 
could have peen' shlppedoutby Norman storage by mista'kein 
view of the fact that be .. called .his orders . into the . ,Norman ' 
St~r~ge Company and 'would; advise themtliathe. hada.deliveryman 
who was prepared to pick ' up . and make deliveries to local ' 
customers' and therefore, ' th~y could ~aye recei vedsome of the 
seized goods, however" i't;ishis. b~lief, ·that , Mr. LOUIS, AUSTIN 
would under· nocircums,ta.hces ~" rerno"ved · the water or ordered it 

. 1 

to be rel\)ovedbti. t he, ST. THOMAS , thinks that , the water was 
, possiblY : ln~~.'dv&pt:a;ntly throWl',l out. " ST. ,' THOM'JI.S ,st,ated that ' 
he had never received· ' a.nyremuneratiQn f"or,. the :'seized water 

. and he' does not recall if:1.,t ha.d been replaced- on order from 
' Mr. AUSTIN~ ' ' '. . ' 

. ' 
, , • " .... \, ";" <' . :~ : . - " . 

He 'stated" that the warentiuse should; hs,ve received . 
are'ceipt for eve:ry . shipment,' incomingahd outgoing. Congerning 
this, ST.'lHOMASadvised thllt"there had been no correspondence 
to ,his recolle'bt'ionbetween him and Mr-. AUSTIN which mentioned 
the 'poaalbiliuyofbreaking , the, sealson. the bottles that 
had beenplaoed there and havingtpemdwnpedj als.Q "t,hat no 
,ful1~ase.s .of: Cap.o.~ ,::;. Springwater had ever ;been d,Efstroyed in , 
thewarehd'USe' nQr 'hadhe· ·isaued any orders to . re'le.~se any wa te~. , . 

ST.T,HOI;f~. ,adv;ise<l that hediscont'!nued1>u.siness 
or 'his c011heqtlonBwpth, .pap.Q1} , SpringS ~ri .1947 but he rec~ll:-s . 
that he h~ci bVe,'~; " ve:ttif~w. co~plaint$ . conc,~'rning , sediment or .. 
impurities in '~he wkte,r t,hat , he .had delive'red;: the customers. 
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SI'f1. TT-TO:~.~S advised that he had at one time 
cO!r:ple te records on all the water stored in the Norma.n 
Storage vlar('}house and bad all pertinent information r01a tive 
to shipments of' I'ull bottles to customr~rs and. incon1inp, 
shipments and out~oing shipments to Capon Sprin~s and 
Philadelphia. It is his belie£ that only empty bottles 
and cases were shipped to Capon Sprin9;s or l'hilndelphia. 
HOliTever, he stated that he no lonp;'er possesses any records 
whatsoever pertaining to his distributorship for Capon 
SprinF:s. He f'urthor reiterated that it is his belief that 
no one ordered the vlater to be ren:oved or requested that 
SOF!eone remove the wat<::!r" but that the water in some manner 
or means was either thrown out as trash,conce5.vably 
inadvertantly shipped out to custcma:>s, or it could have been 
returned. 

T'Tt'. OTTO T. S1GLJNG, Chie£ Clerk, u. s. ~1arshal's 
O£fice,. H. S. Courthouse, Foley Square, made available the 
Nar:::hal's Civil [locket, Volume No. 9, which reflected on 
Page 79, Nar[1hal's No. 9-79, Court No. P..D127-241, the 
£ollo~Jine information concerning the seizure of: the Capon 
Springs water in June, 1943. This record reflects that a 
monition was issued on June 4, 1943, by GP;OTGf.i J. B. FOLLNj~'R 
returnable on June 15, 1943. The record rei'lected that 
this monition vTaS received on June 4, 1943, and delivered 
for service by' Deputy ~JILLIAN TUI'3~1i\N, New.York, on June 4, 
1943, and tha t the moni tion ~Jas re turned on June 9, 1943, 
to the u. S. District Court. TTnder a title, ItExecution 
of' Pro cos §u, m,he record re.flects tha.t on June 4, l .... L!.3, 
Depu tYW'IL,LIAr1 . ~rUB"M:1.N attached. 2 cases (5 gallon size), 
7 cases (6 bot-c es ea.ch) and one-:balf' p;allon size; and 9 cases and 
8 bottles (12 bo'ttles each) one-hali' gallon si.ze, in possAssion 
of Norraan storage snd Trucking Con~any, Inc., 10-12 Leopnrd 
Street, -Ne\'l. _Yo~k- City, and at the same time and place served 
I!:RJlTJ:!jS'I' G.\ r&YER, President. , , 

The following handwri tten me~no was attached. to 
Page 79, Volume 9: 

\tIm: letter of Nov. 7 

"4.5 ... 453F. 
Capon Springs vlater 

;'1 visited o1'1'ices 01' Norman 8tora.f;o Co~pany 
10 Leone.rd st. at 11 A]'1 this morninr;. 

10 
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" 

told me 
familiar 

" .. Ii. ( ' ." >,' 

. "Mr.ERNES:~.YE .. tR p;;;~\:;';ntofthe Company 
that he hand is rnatterandis the only 
wi th the: detai $. " 

tlMn.ME:YER however is ve r'yhazy and indefinite 
as to details. He said the merchandise was removed by 
goverment: order but ,11e , dosnt ever remember the year that 
said removal occured. He tliinks that Food and Drug , 
inspec to~Sy made the reJn.oval but will not swear to that. 

, He said wi thdrawal receipts were in his possession originall!, 
'but · that he no longer has them. He thinks he forwarded them 
to the Cap6~ ' Spri.,ngs Water eo .; when tp:e irmu tual affairs 
were concluded bu.t He said he is note-ven sure of this. 

lsi R. BNRIGHT" 

, , Another letter forwarding 1h is. information to the ' . 
United,States Attorney, Camden, New Jersey, attached , t 'o Page 
79, Volume 9, is as follows: 

"The United states,' K1;,torney 
'Camden, New Jer-sey , 

uSir: 

"November 14, 1951 

,"with reference to the 2 cases'each containing 
one demijohn,S gal1,.c;>ns ize ,7 cases. each'eontaining 6 ' 
bottles, orl.e. ~halr >gaJ.lon size and 9 cases each, containing 
12 bottles <;ine-hal.f gallon size and 8 loose ,bottles, ' 
9ne-half gall;on size, of' Capon Sprin¢s wate.~,·' which .,as 
attached by me on ,June 4;1943, at the , Nci'rrilan storage 
and Truc*ing ·Co. Inc. , of, ;1.0'-12 teonard: st., . New York, 
N.Y., pursuant to Mont.tion dated June 4,,1943, I wi's}) to a.dvisel,that 
this Cap9n Springs water cannot be found at ' the place of seizure 
and ERNEST , G; MEYER,President of s'aid company, is not sure 
what happened 't'()Ita.s · they no long&r have any records s1;lowing 
towq.om the 'bottles were <ielivered • . 

, " 0·-" 11 

"Yo~;r!§ " truly, 
, 

WILLIAM-Aio , CARROLL, 
u. s. Marshall, ' SDNY 

by, JOHNT. S IOLING 
Deputy" 
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lJ:here :'1ao also at tached to Pup;e 79, volume q, 
in tho iJ;arshal':.~ o.ffice D.. Clocwr..ent 01' s tlpultltion da:ced 
Jul y l~ , 19h5, ~i[, Yl0d 0y ';,l'T":{JW "t._ , C!\'i:j" 'J,Y, U. S. Dic tr'ict 
Judge, ati;orney for libelant JO I-J~~ III. ~.~ . HcGO:rL1:Y, and 
attorney 1'or claimant tJILLIA~~, ~1. KILCULV::.N eo This.:; ta ted 
in essenco that in vi0vI 0 1' the f act that tho C2.:Je had been 
dismJssed on July 13, 1945, on a motion of t h o claimant, 
the G-over'nrr~9nt vIas filing this stipulation to stay the removal 
of' the seized goods in view uf the .fact that th8 Governrnent 
was r:ojrg to appeal the case. The't"e vle't'e no f urthe r records 
mainta ined relative to the instant case or the disappearance 
of the sci zed 't<J'ater. 

1111'1:'. RAYlvrOr-ID J. BNRIGHT advised that hI"} had contacte d 
.T-1r. J:.7 :J;Y8B concernln~ the disappearance of the wat e r and 
upon review of his handwritten memo attached to Pa~e 79, 
Volume 9, Marshal's Civil Docket, he stated that that is 
eSGent:ially correct and he can recall n o further ini'ormation 
relative to tho instant case. He advised that on no other 
occasion h ud he eve r been ordered to conduct any investigation 
or to do any other vrork rel~tive to the seizure of Capon 
Sp:r>in r:;: ::a.ter. 

l'1r~ t'iILI.I AM TUB!fj\N, Deputy :t-lI'arshal, could reca].l 
nothin~ pertaining to t~e attachment and ~eizure which he 
conductod on .Tune L~, 1943. He stated that he simply placed 
an attachment orr one of the cases and handed a copy of the 
monition and libel to whoevor was the representative of 
the company on the premises at that time. !(he attachment 
he state'd is i'iled and sealed 'tori th the stamp of the United 
Stat es t'~ar~hal. 

f-1r. ALB8R'l' 'j:l;. CUNZ, Deputy Clerk, U. S. District 
Court, U. S. CouY'thouc e, 1?oley Square, made available the 
records that retained "li1i18 No. AD127-241." The file contained 
a letter to the Clerk, u. S. District Court, District oi' 
Hel-l Jersey, Camden, Hat-1 Jersey, dated April 30, 19L!.7 ., lJhich 
stated that pursuant to ot'der of this court (U. S. District 
Court, Sout.'rlern District 01' Ne'w York) on April 3, 19L~7, the 
follolloJ'ing admiralty proceeding has been transferrdd to your 
d:tstrict and in accordance wi th the order unde .r> two :Jeparate 
covers the follo1.'1ing filed papers are bein9; fort-larded. 

12 
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It loJas s i~led by ~lIL L.IAr-1 V. CONN 'L£ , Clerk, and receipt of 
the items was aclrnol·rledged and dated rJiay 1,1947, silZned 
t-JILLIAM C. KRAt-lli:R, l)eputy. rrhe 1'ile further contained tho 
stipulRtiol1 by TT. S. District Court, Southern District of 
NevI York, dated iI:pril 13, 19J-!-7, which in essence stated 
that an order to transfer the caS E; to the District of 
Nel'l Jersey, CnT(lden, NelrJ .Jersey, is approved. The file 
contained no further information. 

Mr. ~~RTBS'Jl .J. r~~YN, President, Norman storar;e 
and rrrucking Company, 10-12 Leonard street, NevT York City, 
was interviewed by the writer and SA .TOHN H. ,BJORKLUND, JR. 
~1r. tRYIf advised that he recalls the water havinf?; been seized 
by the Uni ted. states Parshal several years a'~O but that he 
does not recall whether or not he received a copy of the libel 
or moni tion or was personally with the 1>Tarshal when the water 
was seized. 

Hr. ~JJE,'YN advined that he does not recall Hhen the 
seized 't'la'G(;:) r vIas remove d but tha t it toJ'as prior to the time 
that bu~iness relations vTere severed vTith Capon Sprinp;!3. He 
stated that his knowledge of the removal was not firsth~nd 
and that he did, not see .'1nyone ~vit;h a badr:e rOT'lOVe the water 
from the pre:'nises nor CQuid he pos itively state thut the 
watur was romoved by a marshal or ins~ector or anyone else. 
It is his belief that there was an oroor for release of the 
wate r but he does not recall se~ inp:: it. Basically he stated 
that his knowledr~;e of the removal of the water comes 1'rom 
information he received either from tJ!r. Kli';?viINS, 0ecretary­
'Y"reasurer or j.1r. ; IILLJ1\J~ llii:RHST, Vice President. Hr. r,'(f<!YN 
advised that hE: kno'Vls he had l{nowlod,~e of the removal of 
the seized water at the tirn0 of tho r omoval but he does not 
knOlrT hOH he had tbiD kno't-r1edp~e. To the bost of his knovrledp,e, 
p~,per's were presented and the order to remove the water 

was of'ficial. fIe s -Co. ted that b ucause of tho information he 
recei ved from either }.ir. KIMM.INS or r,1r. l-lli'RPST he believes 
it was rfmoved by a man with a bad~e and it is his opinion 
tha t the man with the badge vm s from the Flood and Drug 
t.dminis tration because in the pas t when food is destroyed 
or removed it is r'oTl1oved by Food and nrup; Inspectors. This 
is the basis for his belief that the water had been re C'loved 
by a ~ood and Drug Inspector, however, in the other instances 
in which mat~rials were either condemned or destroyed the 
Wood and Drug inspectors had a.one so t~,nd there had re vel' been 
an OCCe.B ion for destroying seizure p.;oods. 

13 
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r;;-r. ItL,YN stated that i1:' he received a receipt it 
rTould have been l'orwarded by him to Pre ST. 'iHOViJ\!':.' and also 
ru:ly cop:y of a monition or libel be 1nt::'y have recei vaCl would 
have been referred to ST. 'flfOl'1l,:;:. Hr. VBYl"r stated thAt he 
could not positivoly assert an inspector or marshal did 
remove the goods l''Pom his firsthand knowled{':c. He I'urthGr 
stateci that he n ';:lver told ei tber Inspector- KEDZIOR or 
InGpector CO(.!:!; thnt the seized ~Tater had bcc.::n returned to 
Capon SprinRs, uest Virr;inia, or to Philudelphia Office 
01' Capon Sprin?~s. 

~1ith respect to the dutnPinr; or destroyin~ of any 
wat<::r on the prenises or the return 0.1' any water on the 
premises, ~v1r. i·i:':;:YN advi~ed that to his kno't11cd~e there ht'l.d 
never beon any order::> ~jven by anyono to either rer.1ove CHses 
or wat0r other thun thOSE: seized 01" to destroy any water on. 
the premises. f':1 r. t~'Tr~YN advised that he served in the armed 
services 1'ro'(;, December, 1941.1., to Hay, 1945, e.nd he is positive 
that the removal tool{ place after his return frorr the service. 

lu'fr. rnI.I.Til l!,' Ff :.c:R8c; ~r advised. that he recall~ that 
about two or threo years aftur the seizure oi' the goods an 
elderly man who had some kind of a badr,e whom ho believed to 
be a ,' l inspec toY' or marshal; came to tho Norman 'Storap;0 and 
rrruckinr.; 't'lareholJ.so and prosented in the ofi'icc of'f'iclal 
papers to remove the seized. [Soods. He recalls that on the 
next day this (,;entleman retumed and he, rrr. H : ,~n'3Srp, contact0d 
j.1 r •• T/\} ::" .£S KI:J,f4INB, Se cretary and Tt>casury, and asked him if 
it 1'1as rir;.:ht to allow the seized :7,ood.::> to be removed. Mr. 
T·tmRsT advised tha.t r.ra>. Kn' ,r'~IJlJS stat ,C)d th. .. lt the p;ood::; had been 
releazod. 

r,~r. Hl:iRRR'1l advised that this ;~entleman to hiG knowledge 
is well knmID in the neip,hborhood and that he ha0 a tr-uck bac~ed 
into the platform and had three or four men, with him and after 
he, Nr. B.-,;rn:-',ST, hfl.d contacted TfJr. KI ~nl\TS and veflii'iod that 
this r;entleman could r0move the p:oodl;:l he a nd th:ts individun,l 
lJho posseu,sed a badge went to the bu.sement Hhereu'Oofl they had 
one of the err;nloyees load the /coods on 'Palle ts, roll them 
into the elevatot> &nd he, 1,lr. H(~Rl-IST took the goods up un the 
eleva tor to the pIa ti'orm and nlaced "!rem in the rear 0.1' the truck, 
whore they were loaded oy the individuals vrho had accompan:i.ed 
this man 1'1itb. the badr:e. He stated that it t'TaS a whi.te naper 
0""', one 01' the cases 't-J'hich was to his trnowlndse, the attachf!1("lnt 

--- - - ---------~---~~=======~====~ 
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l<lhich this man took off tho case boi'oro they 1'1')'('e r,.)moved. He 
adviuod tha I: it v1as his bolief theX'o t'l0X'0 two or three pa llets 
loaded vlith the vHl.t ,; r and thl..'t a1 thou"',h the cas~s W0T'e in 
good condi tlon, the bottles appearcd to be ver>y dirty and dUG ty. 

J';'r. Tj ,:';'R.HST advised that he never sau the :r.'oleaso 
ptper and h0 based his beliA!" that th:i.s Tf1an ';-las a r''''arshal or 
Food and Drup, J'ld'ninistration Inapoctor because it had always 
happened in the >::>a;:;t that when n.n i:'1dividual C:J.1'10 into destroy 
goods it had been an inspector f'or ~ood and Orup: /\dministration 
but in those cases there had never boon a qU0rltion of seized 
p;oods. Hc is positive it was a man t-Tith a btJ..dr':(} 1.mO is kno't-m 
to o 'the r busine ss concerns in the noir;hhorhood. Conccrnin~ 
this man Hith the bado;e, H,·;RBST stuted that ho had. never come on the 
premises on any other occasion but advi~ed that he would reco~nlze 
him if he saw him. The follOlrJ'in8 is u description of t'his 

,~entleman: 

A~o 55 - 65 
Wace Full, heavy JOHls 
Heinht 5' 7" 
\1eight 185 
Complexion - dark 
Characteristics - ~enerally wears suit and hat. 

Ho stated that it is his belief thnt this man was 
knoYln in tho neir;hborhood as he on occa.sions ca:ne in and 
romoved or destroyed v.:0ods and from his kno",lledge it was his 
belief' that this lo1a3 normally done by a ma.n f'rom the Food and 
Dru~ Administration. 

, Hoth Jvfr. l{:jiRf3S'J.1 and Mr. MI"~YN advised that they had 
never met J\.NDR ;;;;j P. ST. THOl~S, the distributor for Capon 
Sprinr;s ~'later, and to their knowlcd~e he had never been on the 
promises. 

14r. t,f,.iYN advised that Capon Sprinf;s was billed for 
storage and carrying charges which "las for all 't1ater handled 
by them and that these charges were fO:r'tJ'arded to r·~r. ST. rrif01''''t .. 3. 
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Concerning shipments· of water, Mr. MIEYN. advised that generally 
an indivi,dual by the name of MAX GREENHUT d.elievered the water 
to Mr. ST. THOl"lAS' customers, and the: t these orders ' ,we,re placed 
through Norman Storage ' Company telephonically either to a ,-, 
Miss MARIE GORSKY or through one of the other officers and 
that they delivered the goods to MAX GREENHUT upon receipt 
of orders. from l'1r. ST. THOMAS. Hr~ MEYN stated that Mr. JA,JVffi:S 
KIMMINS is presently on a '.tour of the country and will ,be gone 

. for the entire month of March and that in view of the fact that 
Mr~ KIMMINS will not be in one place he cannot at present 
furniSh his address. 

Mr. MEYN made available all the records that he . 
possessed which records consisted of an account book, ledger 
books,and a file on the capon Spr.ings water Account. The "' " 
file contained numerolis receipts rorsh:+pments delivered by 
MAX GREENHUT to Mr. ST. · THOJVfAS' customers and also shipments 
of empty bottles to Capon Springs; west Virginia. Ther'e were 
no .:records of water having been recei'Ved rroPlC,apon Springs 
in west Virginia 'Or Philadelphia and a ledger ·balance couid 
not be }:)repared 'to ascertain the amount of ;,incoming shipments 
of water and outgoing shipments of empty bottles. Mr'. MEYN 
~dvised that the letter sent to the Norman StorageCompaily 
rrom Mr. A. ,·P. ST.' THOMAS dated April 25., 1945, as well as 
an envelope bearing the return . address · cif the U. So' Marshal's 
Of rice , hf#;d been r()rWarded to Mr. LOUIS · L. AUSTIN in ' 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. 

Mr. ME~N' furnished the rol1o~1ng list ofernployees 
who may have had Jenowledgeofthe · seized .water: 

Warehousemen 

ANTHONY GWOZNIK 
1224 E. 88 Street 
Brooklyn 

SALVADORE .BRA V~TA 
498 McCl.ean Avenue 
Sou th Beach, Staten Island 

EDNA REINSTEIN 
309 East 170 Street 

;-: .. 
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MRS." SHIRLEY' GORSKI 
, 285 Cypress, Bronx 
'. ' . 

TIMOTHY clu,AAoNS (NE8-.5596) 
293 Pro spec tPlace 

. JIMMY TAYLOR , 
:,78-J4· 61 street, 

. Glendale ,Brooklyn • 

. '~ 

p -

\ 
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Cot'T'Elspondence was located in the 1'i1e:3 of' the 
wood :mel Drv;:; Adm:i.nistration and also of the .files oj:' t h e 
l'Iorw..an storape ana I)'trucking Company, Inc., 10-12 Leonl'1.rd 
stre(~ t, NetoJ' Yor-k C:tty, which has not been oreviously 
reportud. Photo~tatic copies ar~ bein~ mad.e of this cOr'r0spondence 
ond information theY'ein will be incorporated in a future r0p01?t 
as well a G photo!Jt a -cic copies of this correspo ndence bDinp, 
forwarded to the ;~reau. 

L8ADS 

.NE~l YORK 

At New York, Net-I York 

~lill contact all employees of the :r:~orman Sto't"ap,0 
Company 't'rno l11n ,y hu VG had knowled",;I._: 0" the s e ized wa tor in 
ques tion as .t'u r'Cli:;hed by Mr • . ,,' fm ':::;;J 'l ' .T. ';":' ,.nr and listed in the 
details. 

\1i1l aocertu in f rom Mr. i:.F:N;';ST J. lv'1J::: YN the address 
01' .Tlv 'E3 KI j;' : :n~e and set forth a lead to have him intervie't'led 
or if no addr:~ s:J is available inte rvie w' nr. KL.::r4INS upon h i s 
return to New 'lork City. 

1·:LLl contact Novick IT'ranst'er CO!i1l:Hlny, 41L~ ~!et1t 38 
st't"eet, NetoJ' York City, in order to ascerta.in any ini'ormat:ton 
they may have available relp..tive to the mis3i").~ water l'Jhich 
had been seize d.. 

'Ii ' ,~ii' ;-~P.SNC ; __ i : '8ule t to viVO, 2/3/53. 
'Roport of SA 'Rogr~:RT N. V'lEIJ'GARI) , ~'iI~'O, 2/12/53. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF· I NVE.STIGATIC)'N 

'FOrm!io;l 
THIS CASE·O.,IGINATED AT NEW YORK 

OATIEWHEN 
MAPlE . 

3-10-53 

I'IiEPORT MAi:IE BY 

,MICHAEL J. ROCK, III 

CONTE.MPr OF.COURI' 
OBSTRUCTION OF 

'.SVNOPsII,~,OFFACTS: Additional informat1.on furnished by Mr.I.DTJlS 
. L. AUSTIN, Capon Sprin~ w:ater, and Hr. ROBERT C • 

. -STA1iIF~,FIl&I.;, Philadelphia, s.et forth. 

, ./ ~;:1tt':f" - RUC -b. I.R~~S 
;i. I') () . / ). 3"'~ • ,. , . 

DET!!LS: '·IT ~HIIADELPHIAt PA. C&lilDI~ ~ t6 
'on February 24, i953 Mr. roUIS~USTIN' cap~n spri:g ~ater, 

1427 .S~ruce street, telephonically O!ntacted or~~g Agent and ~ta~ed that 
.in go~g thrOligh anothor file in instant cas j. e haa. come upon some . letters 
in which hethou&ht reporting Agent wauldbe iht«;lrested.Mr. !USTINwas 

. advised, that reporting Agent would stop for these letters· on Febrl,lary 26, 

On February 26, li53 Vdss MARY T. E$GAN, Bookkeeper, Ca,pon 
Spring Water, ,me,de ava5_lablE.: the letters which had been left with her'by Mr. 
AUS'rIN., Thes:e letters, pllPtestatic copies of which are being fUrnished as 
enclosures to 'this report, were as follows~ . , .. 

'A letter. dated September '6'1951~r. ERNEST J. MEW,' , 
Nor-mn St.orage. ~~d .. Tr"Ucking?o.~ ~c. tCl:~.~' L~·L· ',STIN, Ca.poX; sprin .. gs:, an.,d O" •. 
Farms I . Capon S1?:c~ngs ,.We_st V1rgrm a. It 1S to '. oted that tins letter ,T---.."--t--
en,closed to Mr. AUSTIN a letter which Norman Storage. and Trucking Gompanyhad 

.•. received from Mr. A.P .. ,ST. THOMAS, Dealer~, Capon Springs water, New'YOrk .. 
and an envelope, which Ur. MErNstated in .this letter, must have contained the 
official order when the seiz'Ilii:,e of the water was made. It has been 'previo'\isly 
reported that Mr. AUST:N st9-ted th~t the·J.~tter of :Mr. ST., THOMASqated.. _'.~"'PI 
tp1"1125, 1945 and the U. S •. Marshal's envelope ·were,accor(;lip.g to Mr. 'ST. 
THOMAS,.re~ived by hinl in a letteri'rom the Nor~n Storage and TruckihgvVJJl.I.JCWJ 
dated September 10,1951. A:ppa:f~~tl:y ,-Mr~.USl'.INwas· in error inhl,s .in! 

ITS CONfENTS 'ARE LOANED TO· YOU BY tHE 

u. s. GOVERN,r.u:~T PRIIO'IIIG OffICi!: II!I2-o-~10818 
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and these it('IDS were r4::ceived as enclosures with the letter from the · Norman 
Storage and Trucking Company dated September 6, 1951. In this letter, Mr • 

. METIJcontinued, ''We believe the seizure order and the receipt when the 
r.lerchandisewas picked up from our warehouseIInlst be somewhere in your 
records. " 

Another letter was made available by Mr. AUSTn~ through Miss 
REGAN, which was Mr. : AUSTD.rr s reply dated September 9, 1951 to the above 
mentioJ;l.ed letter. In his reply, Mr. tlUSTn{ asks certain questions 0f Mr. 
MEYN of the Norman storage and Trucking Company. This letter reads in part 
as foll(lws: 

"If, as we understand .. you released the water in May 
or June of 1947 to .someone from the U. S. Marshal's 
office, can you not obtain the particulars from the 
U. S. Marshal's office? Was it not released upon 
order of the . Food & Drug Admiriistration, Which had 
first seized the water in June of 19431 

"InasI!IUch aswe did not orde,r the , water' removed (having 
no authority to do so) and had no knowledge that it 
was removed until la;st August 24th, your statement 
tha t I the seizure order and the -receipt when the mer- . 
chandise: was pi9ked up .from our warehouse rust be some­
where in your records I is mystifying to us. Are yOu 
inferrir..8' that we removed the water?" 

There was also obt.3.ined frOIllMiss REGAN, a copy of a letter to. 
Mr. A.F. ST. THOMAS from Mr. LoUrS ·L. AUSTIN dated September 9, 1951, wherein 
Mr. A.USTINasked Mr • . Sf. THOMAS .if he. had any inform tion regarding the dis­
appearance, of the water. 

MissREGiN also furnished another letter from Mr. A.. P. ST. 
THOMAs .to Mi-. AUSTJNaa.:ted September 11, 1951, wherein Mr. 5T. THOMAS state~ 

. .in part as follows: 

"Talked with Mr. Mein of Norinan Storage today. He feels 
quite certain the Gov 1t. removed the wa'ter, and 1 1m in­
clined to agree with him. My aNn feeling is the water. 
might have been taken away at, "or ,shortly subsequent to 
the court action. However, Mr. Mein could locate no' 
records to substantiate such a conclusiOri. .. 

- 2 -
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"Furthermore, all records were turned over to 
Porter at the time he took over. 

"Is it p()ssible one of us may have handed or mailed 
some of this information tc your attorney of record -
a t the time the actipn took place." 

. On i'iJarcr.. 2, 1953 Mr. IDUIS L. A.USTIN advised reporting A.gent 
that Dr. DCWNS mentionE!d in the first of the above described letters, is Dr. 
WINFIELD SCffiT DONNS, who was a personal friend and an editor wi th the . 
American Historical Company, NUN York City" Mr. AUSTIN ,stated that Dr. DCWNS 
resides at 142 Glenwooc. Avenue, Ridgewood, N. J.Mr.A,USTIN continued,that 

. shortly after August 2L, 1952', he had called Dr. DONNS a.nd asked him to con­
tact the Norman storage Company and obtain what information he could regarding 
the missing water in ttis case. Mr. AUSTIN also volunteered the information 
that he was now in the process ' of placing the handling of Capon Spring Water 
in the ha.nds of a non-profit organization, to be. knCltTn as f!lTh~ Partnership 
Foundation." He stated that plans had not yet been completed with regard to 
this matter, but. that he expected that such wC'.lld be completed during 1953. 

By letter dated February 27, 1953., Mr. ROBERI' C. · STA.NFILL, 
Chief, Philadelphia District, Food and Drug Administration, advised reporting 
Agent as followss 

"I find that a!llong the file jackets on the Capon 
Springs Water case on my table was one which I 
did not :recognize when you were here. It is the 
original 145-453 FI sample file jacket covering 
period from May 24, 1943 to April 16, 1947 and 
was forwarded to us from our former Eastern Dis­
trict office in New York when the new trial was 
assigned to Camden, New Jersey. In the event you 
want to ascertain what is in this jl. cket you are 
at libert.y to call again. 1t 

On March 2, 1953 Mr. T. C. MAP.AVIGLIA, Chief Inspector, fhila­
delphia District, Food and Drug Administration, made available the file 
referred to above by Mr t. STAlWTI..L. This file, among other documents, contained 
a Memorandum of Interview, dated August 7, 1943, which was prepared by Mr. A.. G. 
MURRAY (WashingtonOffic.e, FDA). This memorandum reflected thaf present-at a 
meeting regarding this case were .Mr • .. EDWARD H. HORTON, Department of Justice, 
Washington, D. C., and Mr. A. G. k'URRAY. This memorandum stated in part, 

- 3 ...; 
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"Mr. Horton said that Mr • .Aust¥li's perfedtly Willing to remove ~11 
objectional statements fromt,~).3.bel. ••• , Mr. Horton intimated . tba~if, 

; "e ' con:tirmed to harraSs wr. Austin, the Department , of Justice may s£ep 'i4 ' ; 
, ~ith a restl'aininghand. I di$i not comment on this remark. n 

" " According to this memorandum, Mr~ HORTON- said that' 11r. A.USTIN 
~ioesnotwant a record of judgment against his product and that he,will 
fi,@1t if the case cannot be dismissed. ' " . 

Also cont.ained , in this file, W4sa' copY:'"of a letter dated 
DecemberJl, 1946 from WA:TSON D.l4IL1..ER, Admini~trator~ Federal Security , 
Agency, to "DearJACKl',(probably JOHN B. I<ELJ'JY,' Seaboard Radio Broadcasting " 
Corporation, 1423 Walnut Street, Hliladelphia, to whom, aecordingto the , ' ," 
copy, the origi~l had been' sent). This letter stated in part, "Mr. Austiil 
wrote -u.s re.centlvtha.t the labels on the bottles , are new more t,hanthree 
years dea~. He ~pparen1ily" interided to ,sem usthe~Urrent labelling for 

.... 

the water ' but did not do so." 

There was ' also contained in this file, a copy of a Memorandum 
,of Interview dated M,areh . :~O, 1947, which had 'l)een prepared byGEOaQE P,. 
LARRICK, Food ,and, Drug -kdmiriistra t ,j,on. Ace ording to this memorandum,' thos e 
:,Present were)f.r •. LOUISL.!USTIN of the Capon Waterpompany, Capon Springs, 
West Virginia.~, Ju,. , HORTON,' Attorney, Mr. IEVY~' 1tto'rIl.ey, "lit .WATSOND. ,M:r:tmR, , 
Administrator, : FeA., and Mr .-GEORGEP. , IARRICK, ,FIlA.. '.lccordingto this memo­
ran9-um,bothattorneys ,asserted that. they we,re' aopeal'ingiIi' ,this matter as 
friends of Mr.. AUS'T;IN and ' not as legal, cOUIlsel. This memorandum stated in 
part, nThevisitors . ass49Tted that they were quite willing to have a termi$­
tion'Of th'e pending se'izure if some plan' cQ41dbe invoked whereby a Court 
Order would not inelude the condemnation of the seized water. Mr. AUSTIN 
regards the ~mplOyD,.Emt e)f .theterm 'condemnation' lnthe Court Order and in 
a ,subseq,uent not-ice of ' Judgment, a,s a serious reflection upon the watel', upon 
the t:'esort maintained a1i the Springs, and upon himself pen30nally. He ' 

-asserted that he must Q() ~V6rytb,,ing possible ,to 'prevent the ' t' eri1iinati~n of the 
, case under any cli'ctimstetngeS w?ere ,the water wdhld be condemned." .; •• 

.. 4 '.. , , ' "' ; " "Mr. AUSTIN was sOmeW:hat vehement in his statement that the 
.. ' GQvernmerit has co~istently presented thel.ir evidence through the , opinion of. 

testimony of physicians who have notusfild the water. Htis , convinced that 
he will -win the ' case ;in Camden 'when his testimony is pred'ieated upon actual 

, , use of the water by qualified physicians." 

... 4- , 

_ .. r,r 
•. j ", 
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Mr. JIlRA..'JIGLIastated that he believed that the above 
described docume,nts we~~€ what liar. SWTFn,t had in mind inasmuch as they. 
reflected the fr~e of mind of Mr. AUSTIN. Mr. STANFILL was not preaaf.-l;t 
on March 2, 1953 at the :.r;'oodand Drug Administration; Philadelphia, and . 
could not be interviewEld. . ' . 

Mr. MARAVIGLIA. stated it is to be noted thatr':p:r;ior to approxi-: 
mately 19L.8, Mr., A.USTIN was desirous 'of having the case c;iismissed as long· 
as the dismissal did not inc.1ude a condemnation of the water, but subsequent 
to 1948, he has. opposed. dismissal of the,. case." 

. On Uarch 3, 1953 repor~ingAgent contacted Mr. ROBERT C. ' . 
ST,Al!FILL, who advised that, .the above deiscribed documents were 'what he ref~rred 
to in his lett€r dated February 27, 1953. Mr. STANFILI~stated that he 

. believed these ite!T.s were pertinent ,.to the case, in that they re.t:).;ected the 
attitude of Mr. AUSTnT. 

F.lTClDSUHES .~. TO " THE BUREATJA11DNEv{ YORK 

1 copy (photostatic) each,' of the 
folloWing items: 

.]:.etter from F:RNESTJ .MEYN to Mr.L. L.AUSTIN 
do. ted September 6, :1951. 

j • 

l.etter. from L. L •. A.(AUS'l'D~yto Mt.' EP .. NEST, J. 
1~ dated September 9,1951.. . ' ' 

I£tteriftomLOUISL.AUSTIN to Mr.A. P. ST. 
1'HOMAS, dated September 9Jc'1951~' " 

~tt.er from Mr •. i.. p. S'l'. THOMAS to Mr" A.USTIN 
d.ated Sept.ember 11, ),951. 

Rue 
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Dear ~!r. J1.ustin 

A. P. ST.THOMAS 

~oo FIFTH AVENUE 

NEW YORK 18. N. Y. 

September 11, 1951 

:;<'irst let tell :),ou how terribly shocked I was to learn of 
the accident re t::"nc in ?:uth' s death. :: sincerely hope Porter 
pulls out of it ~~d real soon. 

' ty"'.. Abol1 t the 
I, F cv.+ . 
¥- . ~' "1,,,0 ;::a~ns a :non 

\jot "",/ occu~)led and of 

~
' , j siezed lot. IT 

f/ ever hav~.nc 
.,IlK lot in question 

~f I(U , 
\ .' 

(\-- {~\ \" 
\ ; ( / \ ~ 
.' - certain the Gov 

hm. :."y ovm f 
shortly sub s 
locate no re 

he over. 

Is it pos 
information to 
place. 

AI'li'ul1y s 
,,;hile let us 

rindest 

torase charges - as you mow we 1"1'ere accustor.1ed 
charge to Eorman storaee Co. for the space 

course no extra charse was made to us for the 
ther cC'n the Forman storage Co. find any record of 

the U. S. Gov't for the space occupied by the 

~Cr. ~,~ein of Noman storage today. He feels quite 
t. rcmovf;;d tile vrater, and I'm inclined to agree with 

is the water might have been taken away at, or 
to the court action. However, Mr. Mein could 

to substantiate such a conclusion. 

, all recorjs were turned over to Porter at the time 

one of us may have handed or mailed sooe of this 
attorney of record - at the time the action took 

y ::: ~an' t be of much as dstance at this time. 
e a.n.d ~)ray for forter's early recovery. 

Sincerely you~s, 

l.Iean-

':r. :'ouis L. :'..u tin 
CaT.')on C;~rinGs 
':ie:::t Virginia 



s.,t ..... 9\h. 1~1. 

Mr. Ern •• t J. MeJl'1" 
Norman ."or ... & TruolclDl 00., Ino. 
10 Leonard f;t.. New Torle ott.y 1,. 

I apprec1a'e Yer, Jalch lettl~ your letter of 
Sept. 6th, "it.h 111010 .. ,,", 

We would be glad to ,.t t.he to:lowl"1 information' 

1. "ho pale! tho -m.hl.y norl"!,e .hAr,,,., "hioh JOU 
etat_ were pald aa la' e aa May 01' June of 194Tf 

·2, II, a. we under.tand. "'" 1'010"-',10<1 t.he .... lD 
!'.4&y cr lune f!II 1947 t ...... troa the u. s. 
lIu'.bIll'. f!IItl00, OlD ,CIl not. obtain ~ pani.­
ulan from the U. s. Manhal'. ottloe' We'" 
not. I'el .... upon .. d.r ot the 'ooeS • DrUI Ad­
milllnnt 1 on, whloh had tim •• 1... "he w.... In 
... ot 19't" . 

,. IDd1RJoh.a ... dld not. oreler the ntel' relllOY" 
(haYiDI DO authorit,. t.o .0 .0) and bad ... Imowle •• 
that it •• r .. '" untll tan Aucuat 24th, J'O'II' 
•• ,, __ that 'tbe •• 1.ar. or .... and tbe r.a.ipt. 
"he the ... 0 .... 1 .. waa picked up fro. ClUJ' wareh ••• 
• at b ..... h •• tD JGW" reoord" 1 • .,nU71D1 to u. 
II. JIU lDterr1lrc t.hat.!.! r...., .. t.h. water' 

Wo wl11 bopo tor more dotlalt. intormation tro. ,aut 

81ft •• r.l,. 
Oapon ~pr1Dc' Pltneral •• tor 
B~ 

L.I.. A. 



T ,. 1~ 

, , 

~. A. P., at. !h0llB" 

Dosr MiI'. at. tbel" • , 

_ 'The "atel' that Wtt& "1.e4 by the Food &, Onac Act .. ' 
In June of 1",., at the lformen8tOl'age and 'fNotdllg 00., 
10 Leou.r4 st.. Now York OttJ, has apparen'l, lll)'Ilterlouel, 
410appcuect an« we ape '.l'hI to learn • ...uatas eM t'. 
4188p'....... leu., be able to help •• lt ,. 11111 
1d.adlr GftSweJ' tbe tollowbg ,ase'lGntU 

, 1. Do fGll know who paleS .tho notago obarl" oA~b1a 
pa~lo\llar 1. of water t wblqh tbe Doran at ..... people ' 
sar flaa paleS up to May OJ' lune of 1941t 

2. Do ,qa know, IInJ\blDa eM the all .. _ dtWn_l 
- Of ldlie partiCUlu- lot Of _, .... "blob the .... 8hau •• people 
~1~~ •• rem_ •• bOtlt r~1 OJ" lune til 19471 It JCU ... 
plea •• adds. ill all the pUtlculari.· - - -

lftaallUoh as ~lme 'le 1mpor\~. "e would apP.8011lte 
aft lmu4la' •• n.. P1-.0 use the QIloloeed ,.1" da" ••• eel 
enyelope. 

lou dll be 101''', to hGar. I am .. ro. tbat Por\or .a. 
Ira • .... eer10U8 .0oUent 1ut Fr14a.1, anel && aft at the 
lIAr.leWI'& Boepltal. 'enaeJl...s.a. with .everal ....... 

___ ~.cmaJ'etU_bU\ "s.~~ -'-'.ao.~ o~~t~_oome t!1l'~_' ~~. ___ . 
wlf. Rut.h .. lne\antl:v tel11 .. iqr the 8001 .. '. ' 

With klnd r.~.8. 

a lDo_rel" 

Loui. L.' Aunl .. 

. . ,'. " '" . . ' 
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J/O'lman StO'lage &' ~ucking CO., !inc. 
s: 'lUcking .. .. g O'lUJa'Lding - • CW a'Lehousing 

10-12 ..Leona'Ld Sheet 

Mr L.L.Austin 
Capon Springs and Farms 
Capon Springs West Virginia, 

Dear Mr Austin: 

~eUJ QjO'lk 13! ~. Qj. 

September 6 1951 

fJ)ist\ibutiol1 

Specialists 

,..-. 

At the request ot Dr.Downs who visited me lest week regarding 
the water that was siezed by the Food & Drug we are enclosing the lette 
reoieved trom your representative Mr A.P.St Thomas dated 
April 25th 1945. 

Also enclosed is the envelope which must have contained the 
otticial order when the seizaure was made. 

We believe the seizure order and the receipt when the mercha.diae 
was pioked up trom our warehouse must be somewhere in your 
records. 

----Trusting this intormat-ion---may-b&-4--value-t0---10~- u_ 0--

Very truly yours 

Enol. 

Ernest J.Meyn 

Nor:g=tJ~ 
Co Inc. 
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WASH 15 FROM NEW YORK TOR URGENT 

f', r, , , 

, 
, " ~ 1 

' .. i" 

18 

b- / / 

US VS? .... F I~E __ C!~_ES ETC. CAPON SPRINGS WATER, OURT, C/~yc-

OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE. RE a-ONE FORM, THREE SIXTEEN FIFTY THREE!. / 

BUREAU FILE SIXTY NINE DASH SIX FIVE SIX. REPORT INCLUDING ALL ;.----

INVESTIGATIONS WILL BE SUBMITTED THREE TWENTY FIFTY THREE EXCLUDING 

INTERVIEW WITH JAMES KIMMINS, SECRETARY TREASURER, NORMAN STORAGE AND 

TRUCKING CO.,WRO IS PRESENTLY ON TOUR OF COUNTRY AND ADDRESS CAN NOT 

BE OBTAINED. 

.UED-79 
BOARDMAN 

rt / - {:'.5& - ,1:3, 
--.....-~-~ ~..J 

~~ tv'AR 2~l~~~'1 ~ 

~ 
I 

HLD 

.... <e .. IiJ 



. " 

' . . .. !.c . ' 
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r~ 
1M-iff ,() 1~- 53 ' 

'.~~:1) - "l"Vnw 
• ~ ' -' ,}. r.r.'O-

FROM NEVi YORK 18 WASH 4 4-22 PM 

URGENT 

~"!)=V~ I 
RECORDS -OF' ' .. - _1 

.1 ' 

NOVICK TRANSFER CO. NOT AVAILABLE, NYC. RICHMOND REQUESTED TO REVIE~ 
~)-: 

RECORDS or NOVICK TRANSFER co., SEVEN HUNDRED NORTH CAMERON ST., /. 

WINCHESTER, VIRGINIA, RELATIVE TO ANY FULL BOTTLES OF CAPON 

SPRING WATER SHIPPED TO WEST VIRGINIA OR PHILADELPHIA. BNDED PAST. \ 

EXPEDITE. ' {(['-, 

BOARDMAN 

RICHMOND ADVISED 

HLD 



/ 
FD-86 • ' 

el'EDllRAL BUIlEAU 0" I~VJ<STIGATI •• 
I 

1 ",'F',:. I, :' 

. ~ " ': _~. i , 

~ 'I; ~I 
, . . 

UNITED ST~~~:_D~~~~~~~_OF JUSTICE 

Transmi t the following TeletypeA!:!~ge--to: (z~-:Z;:1'~-=--.I~~: (!J~ 
Im

I RICHMOND 3-21-.53 ~G' 1---;;;' i;" .• r.:. II 
__ > ____ -1\, ".0 :""\o~ , 1. 

-~ __ ~ __ .' ~['>., I ~'~ l! 

DIRECTOR, FBI AND SAC, PITTSBURGH 
<:::r::::> 

UNITED STATES VERSUS FIVE CASES 1 ETC., CAPON SPRING _ 'Ii ~;R~cqrO'.--

10126, Fro~ }TO. 10053, CONTEMPT OF COURr, OBSTRUCTIOf~,..tl}Cm~2.J - ' \ 
RENYCTEL MARCH 18 LAST. JOSEPH W. HERSHBEIDER, EXECU:TIVFQ ~fCf ,_, _ ' 

PRESIDEN~, NOVICK TRANSFER CO., WINCHESTER, VA. ADVISED ~ lMARCH-'"' I 
20, 1953 THAT IN AC-CORDANCE WITH ICC REGULATIONS- THEY IX) NOT 

RETAIN RECORDS BEYOND THREE YEARS AND THAT THEY ARE UNABLE TO 

LOCATE ANY RECORD ON INSTANT MATTER. COMPANY OFFICE MANAGER 

REPORTS HE HAS SOME NINETEEJIT FORTY EIGHT RECORDS BUT THAT IT 

WOULD BE NECESSARY TO KNOW ~TE OR MONTH OF ANY SPECIFIC SHIPMENT, 

WHETHER PREPAID OR COLLECT AND NAME OF CONSIGNEE BEFORE HIS 

LIMITED RECORDS COULD BE SEARCHED AND THEN POSSIBLE NO RECOR]) 

WOULD BE FOUND BECAUSE INCOMPLETE. RUC. 

JOHNSON c} _ /;;r:" (}?c{J~,r.-",~ (""-
._ ., ~ "'" r" .A.),...I".A.A.,...v..-ti~J A I 

~ ~' r J ~ -' !Y1;~!1 ~-:,fe> WHP: dtd 

) 46-619 

REGULAR MAIL 

CC : PITTSBURGH (REGULAR MAIL) 

RECORDED-Y/bJ- tS< -tv -- -

~APprOv.~d: ~ 
\ r . \ i. \ " SReclal Agent in Charge 

Sent ___ M Per ---
6 H 'APri 10 t~3 



./ 

.. AIR-TEL f 
FEDERAL BUREAU ~NVESTIGATION 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

NEW -~~~~-3-;1V§ ( \~L 
Transmi t the following Teletype message to: J"UREAU ~",.z -/ 

FD-S8 

... "'_. r • . ' 

I 'I 

Q ,'\ 
US VS FIVE CASES, EY~.; ~APON SPRINGS WATER, CONTEMPT OF 

COURT; OBSTRUCTIO~ OF JUSTICE. REBUAIRTEL 3/10/53. 

OF SA MELVIN J. CALD~mLL BEING SUBMITTED 3/12/53. 

RECORDED-6Q 

0- Bureau (REGULAR MAIL) 

MJC :ECH (#5) 
NY 69-53 
Approved :---....:::..Lj~~f::::.-----

5 3 M~~1195!tleci 

BOARDMAN 

Sent ____ M Per __ 

.1 

I 

I ' 
• 

/ 



/-

Nichols_ 

Assistant At1;orney General 
Warren Olney III 

Director, FBI (69-656) 

!o l') { t, 
~, '}-',"'"' '''''' 11' l!/ :', / ' 

UNITED STATES v. Five Cases 
etc. Capon Spring Water 
#10126, FDC ;:10053 
CONTEMP T OF COURT 
OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 
(Department Ftiles 22-48-478 
and 22-83-47C1) 

• 
March 24, 1953 

Referen(~ is made to the Meaoranaum of Assistant 
Attomey General Charles B. Murray dated January 23, 1953, 
in the above-capt:loned matter. 

There i~1 being enclosed herewith a copy of a letter 
dated ~arch ?.L...!.2;~.1, from Louis L. Austin to Special Agent 
Michael J. Rock of our PhIladelphia Office. 

For your' inforrna tion, Special Agent Rock did not make 
any state"l1ent to J~ustin as to the extent of the investigation 
and specifically did not promise Austin that personnel of the 
Food and Drug Ad."Il1.ni8tration would be viewed by Mr. Herbst. 
This has been callad to Mr. Austin's attention. 

with reference to Mr. Austints statement "that the 
records have been altered or rendered incomplete in an effort 
to deceive any but; the most thorough investigator," Mr. Au.stin 
W'8.S recontacted b\.1Lt was unable to furnish any specific 1nformation 
that records had been changed. 

~f~;::'== Wi1;p ,regard ,to the laat paragraph of Mr. Austi~' ~ 
~~~~~n-== letter to the etfElct tliat he has ev1.dE.l,nce which, if follojec:L; 
~;:;; , through\~Y the FBI, w1ll elftablish ttieit the Food and Drug"l:: :,. 

!~} 

I 
)". '" tp'" 
\. ; 

\. . .1 

~~f:;;~d a ~p/&X'~U~,-. 19; 5fCtlMM!= fBI \ 
' f,iT -, hi ') r; for"".t ~:~t;;.~__ ' ' e r ' ' Ylh, \ .... u ~;Ju 

\J ' .---JV1AllED 28 
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Tolson _ 
Ladd __ 
Nichols_ 
Belmonl_ 
Cleu __ 
Gla.in __ 
Harbo __ 
Rosen __ 
Tracy __ 

La.~hlin_ 
Moh, __ 
Wialerrowd_ 
Tele. Rm._ 
Holloman_ 
Ga.dy __ 

Assistant Attorney General 
Warren Olney III 

• 
Administration reaoved the water and rigged their reoorda to 
avoid detection, Mr. Austin was recontacted to determine it 
he h.ad any additional evidence or information relating to tile 
removal of the wa.ter. Mr. Austin said he kne" ot a ·peculiar 
chain or events" which he believed indicated that tne Pood and 
Drug Administration had removed the wate~. Austin said that 
thia material val. not readily avaIlable and that he vould have 
to get it togethe,r anel did not know how long this would take. 

!'he abe,ve is being furnished tor your inror ... ation. 
The memopandum of Assistant Attorney General Charles B. Murray 
dated January 2), 1953, and the report at Special Agent Robert 
M. W1ngard dated February 12, 195), at Washington, D. e., 
reflect that Loui.s L. Aust1n h.aa made a nWllber or complainta 
to the Department and the Federal Securi t,. Agency 1n 
connection with this "!latter. 

Upon tbe receipt of reports oompleting this investi ... 
gation, .arne will be rorwarded to the Criminal Division. 

~. 

- 2 -



• Office Memorandum • UNITED STATES GOVER 

TO ' z Director, FBI 

PRO~ SAC, Philadelphia (69-28) 

$UBJBCT: UNITJ',P STATE:S v. Five Cases 
e .. tc f--tapon . s:.erin. gw .. ater 
#10126; FDC !flOOS3; 
CONTEMPT OF COURT, . 
OBSTRUCTION ·OFJUSTICE 
(New York - Origin) ' 

DATB: March 16, 
Mr. Rosen 
Mr. Tracy 
Mr. Gearty 
Mr. M&ht_ 
Mr. Winterl'O 
Tele. Room 
Mr. Holloman 

·:Mr. Sizoo 
Miss Gandy 

Forwarded herewith are tv copies ofa .. letter~· t'rom 
LOUIS L. AUSTIN to SA MICHAEL J. ROC .. III, datea 'M .. rc~:?, ~.u 
1953, and two copies of .the memo of SA ROCK date:4Ma:rch' 16, 
1953, rela,tive . to Mr. AUSTIN's letter. ..~.. :' ,_, 

;. . . ; '1 _ ., 

! ". .~. . These are being furnished the Bureau t.':pr mf~.matlon, 
' . .. ~ . . since It is believed Mr. AUSTIN will probably eomun'icuitevlth ' 
" . ' .' . the Director . in this o8;s,e,l?artlcularly Iftheinveastigation " . 
> ..... . . .. .... ' ..... ' . e .. i ... ng . . . c .. o.n<iu._. ct .... •. d by t ... hiS B'1,lr .. ~a:U" .. doe.8. not refle.ct tha.'t . t. h.e. fqo..,d., .:; ~ 
~ .. !li .... -~.,~.~~ .. . ~. : ".d'.l;~.~. u. § .. r~.:';~ .. ft ;i!Si~,:~~.·.~. s .. !;.":~. " ,.pon. S ... ~ ... ~.~ .... ~ , f0±:::n!.~.~\P:e. ar&!!. ~.' •.. '.~<' . , 
. ~"'\ ~J' " . ~.'1 , . " , " t ' . , . ~ .. q: - ..... :"dLSE!" --... 
' .. Il. 'i " . . .~. ". P.l. 3l'IB." . ""':.' . ',' , . " ~ ,',; i, 'C, " : I ·i· · .'" , • .' "', '. , 1) p." .. · i,,,: <~ ": . : . ( 

~ .... ~~~ ~\" .' c·~Nure8!~4) : ~EcqRDEO . 2~ ! . 

~ ··t~~b~Y1 .<~i. ' ~.~,·.·· . ,~~ G ~' 11 •.. .•.. . '.. ~~.3':7,] . ;1 MAR 8J} 1963 ,ot' .. ... '. 
V l\fi\ . • , ' 



-. • 

Mich~cl J. Rock, Esq. 
FederCl.l Bureau of Tnvesti gat:i on 
~hi12delph;a, Pa. 

Dear Mr. P..ock: 

C 

• 
o 

p 

llarch 2nd, 1953 

You w'i_ll recall my as~(':i.ng you this morninB 1.f there YJas any 
h<'I'J11 'in my gctt-lng in touch V'ri. th both St. Thomas and thE; NorfHan Stor-
~ge & Trucld_ng Company, wtth the v:i ow to Dscerta-ln~nB the nA~Urp. of: the 
i.nvestigation being conducted by the FEr in New Yorl~ into the disappearance 
of the rns i.n our case. 

You very uroperly IIDs .... rerecl thRt .; t was not un 00 :rou to advi.se 
one way or the 0 ther, but you seemed sure tha r. the i nV0rrtir;ati on 5 n !J ew 
Yor~t was well under way, and that H8rbst, VP of the RomRn Storage & 
Trucking Company, would ;n all probflbil:ity be gi.ven opportunity to identi­
fy tbe Food & Drug inspector ",'/ho rer.~ovec the res, and "hor;). he %2ted he 
would recogn-izc anywhere. 

T owe -; t l:,o ~rou to Advise that T phoned t.he ~~ormon Storage 
&: Trucldng Company late thl s afternoon, and )'{r. )f~~yn adv~.sed l',e th2t 
he hAd not been called upon by the FBT, that he h,d no i .dea an i.nvesti.­
g~ti on was be; ng conducted, ~nd ['3 n m."t (,:~r of fnct, he thought, nOG 
hC':'lrr:g anyth-ing further nfter IllY v-'is-its In-;t ~;ovc~b('!r, th<,t the case 
iCJG':1 clropped. 

You 8mmred rl'J th:1t th-i s 1C!~'8 no un; Ipteral ; nvosti gat; on. 1: 
·.velcome bo;.ng ; nvest-i gflted, and T surely vr:mt st. Thol118s ~nd thE:: Tare­
l-.ousp. I)80ple invont; g~t8d. ~1Ut as T to!~cl ~!ou rep("at('cly, r:fte!' all of 
us a.re eJ if.lin~ted 1"15 hflV; ng had ar.ythi ng to do "Iii th the d-i.sa.1)oearance of 
the res, T am count·j ng on a. most thorough i nve,Jt-i gnti.on of the part; nlayed 
bv the Food & Drug Adm~ni stratton i.n t;hp removal of the res from the ware­
house. 

There is no rioub+; in my mind that c t.yp; cal FBI in­
vesti g.qti on vri 11 surely d;.3close. thnt thE' Food & Drllg Admini.stra t:i.on 1) 
r0l!1ov8d the -,vater from the r:omrlD Stor:-1ge &~_Trucking Company; 2) that , ·-:rr­
hans from s; x to ten employees of the Jfood R,c Drug Admini.strHtion Imow this; 

( 



• • 
- 2 -

~~i chael J. Rock, Esq. 

3) that thp. records h~ve bee~ altered or rendered incomplete in tin 

effort to deceive any but the r'lost thorough invest-tgE'tor; 4) that p~rt 
of the plfln was to make it apoear that we oUTseleves reffiovGd the res. 

The fact thA.t th1.s investigation has bGen centered on us is 
not what dtsturbs us. l:t is' the impression we have derived that your 
personal work has been PS far ae we h~ve been able to tell, restricted 
to determining what part we (St. Thomas, the warehouse people and my­
self) played in causing t,he res to disappear, that is causing us concern. 

fhe oft repeated asserti ons T have made to you th!3t T have 
the evi dence, whi ch ';f followed through by the FBT, >'fl11 establish beyond doubt 
that the Food & Drug Administration rewoved the res And has r:tgged their 
records to avoid detection, have been ID0t by you with the confi.dent assurance 
that the FBT has every thing t have, and has In all probability investigated 
it already. \!!fere you in my place, T believe yoU Vlould be no happier about 
thl s situati.on than T am. 

Respectfully, 

Louts L. Austin 
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MEMO, SAC March 16, 1953 

He: UNITED STATES v. Five Cases, 
etc. Capon Spring Water 
#10126; FDC #10053; 
CONTEMPT OF COURT; 
OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 
(New York - Origin) 

He letter from Mr. LOUIS L. AUSTIN to SA MICHAEL 
J. ROCK, dated March 2, 1953, copies of which are attached. 

In accordance with my conversation with SAC H. J. 
ABBATICCHIO JR. on March 10, 1953, I visited Capon Spring 
Water, 1427 Spruce Street, which is the office of Mr. AUSTIN, 
on March 11, 1953, in order that I might refute verbally the 
false statements, half truths, and cunning innuendoes contained 
in referenced letter from Mr. AUSTIN. 

I was accompanied by SA ROBERT J. LAWSON, and inter­
viewed Mr. AUSTIN from approximately 10:55 a.m. to 11:40 a.m. 
on the above date. I verbally acknowledged receipt of Mr. 
AUSTIN's letter to me. 

The following represents my comments regarding 
referenced letter, which were not conveyed to Mr. AUSTIN, and 
the statements I made to' Mr. AUSTIN: 

Re 1st Paragraph of Referenced Letter -

" I 

~ -- -- -

My Comments: The first paragraph of Mr. AUSTIN's 

MJR/jfm 
69-28 

letter is true. He did ask me the 
question indicated. It is to be 

noted, however, that Mr. AUSTIN apparently desires 
to be kept abreast of the investigation being 
conducted by this Bureau since he stated in this letter 
that he contemplated telephoning Mr. ST. THOMAS and 
the Norman Storage and Trucking Company, both New York, 
"with the view to ascertaining the nature and scope of 
the investigation being conducted by the FBI •••• fI 

J ' 
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statement to Mr. AUSTIN: I advised Mr. AUSTIN that, in 

previous interviews with him, 
I recalled that he did ask 

whether he might contact New York, and I replied 
it was not up to me to advise him one way or the 
other. I ~urther advised Mr. AUSTIN that, by order 
of the Attorney General, the records o~ this Bureau 
are confidential and that he would not be apprised 
o~ information contained in our records '. 

He 2nd Paragraph o~ Referenced Letter -

My Comments: The second paragraph ~rom "You" 
to the word nothern is correct. 

I answered it was not UP to me to advise Mr. AUSTIN 
one way or the other. Mr. AUSTIN continues in his 
letter, Ubut you seemed sure that the investigation 
in New York •••• n· I made no such statement to Mr. 
AUSTIN, and he does not state that I made any such 
statement. The above is a conclusion reached by 
Mr. AUSTIN. I made no statement to him as to the 
extent o~ this investigation. 

Statement to Mr. AUSTIN: I advised Mr. AUSTIN I did not 
promise him that personnel o'f 
the Food and Drug Administration 

in New Yor'k lvould be viewed by Mr. HERBST. I told 
him that I recalled that he asked me whether this 
would be done, and I replied to him that the investig­
ation would be complete and thorough. Mr. AUSTIN 
admitted to interviewing agent's that he had asked 
this question himself, and my reply had been as 
indicated above. 

He 3rd Paragraph o~ He~erenced Letter -

My Comments: 

Statement to Mr. AUSTIN: 

This paragraph contains a statement 
of Mr. AUSTIN which does not concern 
me. 

I told Mr. AUSTIN that this paragraph 
represented a statement made by him 
and that it did not pertain to me. 

- 2 -
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Re 4th Paragraph or Referenced Letter -

My Comments: Mr. AUSTIN makes the statement, 
It You assured me that this was no 

unilateral investigation." I did not use these 
words but, in the course of the interview with Mr. 
AUSTIN, he emphasized he wanted a thorough investiga­
tion of FDA, and I advised him a complete investigation 
would be conducted in this case. In the second 
sentence of Paragraph 4, Mr. AUSTIN states he welcomes 
being investigated and that he wants Mr. ST. THOMAS 
and the warehouse people in New York investigated. 
The remainder of Paragraph 4 is a conclusion and an 
opinion of Mr. AUSTIN. 

statement to Mr. AUSTIN: I told Mr. AUSTIN I did not recall 
having used the word "unilateral" 
and that I told him a complete 

investigation would be conducted in this case. 
Regarding the remainder of this paragraph, I told Mr. 
AUSTIN that this represented an opinion and a conclusion 
of his and that I was only too anxious to receive 
information or evidence which would substantiate this 
conclusion. 

Re 5th Paragraph of Rererenced Letter -

My Comments: This paragraph contains charges 
and opinions of Mr. AUSTIN which 
he was unable to substantiate in 
my interviews with him. 

Statement to Mr. AUSTIN: I told Mr. AUSTIN that this 
paragraph represented his opinion 
and conclusion. I told him he 

stated in his letter that records of the Food and 
Drug Administration have been altered or rendered 
incomplete. I asked him if he had seen records which 
had been so changed. He replied that he had not. I 
asked him if anyone told him that FDA records had 
been altered or rendered incomplete. He stated no 
one had. I asked him what his basis was for making 

- 3 -
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such a statement and what evidence or information 
he had that would prove such a statement. He 
replied his only evidence was a "peculiar chain of 
events" which originated in 1943 and continued to 
1952, and which he thought represented a conspiracy 
against him by FDA. He stated he did not know that 
changed records existed, but he thought that the 
FBI could discover such.-

Re 6th Paragraph of Referenced Letter -

My Comments: Mr. AUSTIN states, HIt is the 
impression we have derived that 

your personal work has been, as far as we have been 
able to tell, restricted to dete.rming what part we 
(ST. THOMAS, the warehouse people and myself) played 
in causing the res to disappear, that is causing us 
concern. " 

In Paragraph 4, AUSTIN stated 
that he welcomed an investigation of himself, 
ST. THOMAS, and the warehouse people, and in 
Paragraph 6. an investigation of these people is 
apparently causing him c·oncern. 

It is noted in this paragraph 
that Mr. AUSTIN makes no charges against me and, as 
is his wont in dealings with other Government 
representatives, he expresses his impression of my 
personal work. AUSTIN is judging the investigation 
by my contact with him in Philadelphia and is 
apparently disregarding the facts, in that J the major 
portion of the investigation in this case is being 
conducted in New York. 

During interviews with AUSTIN, 
he has repeatedly endeavor-ed, through questioning 
and making statements with which he hoped I would 
agree, to ascertain the complete nature and scope 
of our investigation. I have been extremely cautious 
not to divulge to Mr. AUSTIN any information o~ a 
confidential nature and to make as few statements 
as possible. 

- 4 -
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Statement to Mr. AUSTIN: I advised Mr. AUSTIN I interviewed 

him in order to obtain any informa­
tion or evidence he had relative 

to the disappearance of the res in this case; that 
such other persons would be interviewed in the course 
of this investigation as would be necessary to make 
the investigation complete; and that the investigation 
was not being restricted to him. I advised Mr. AUSTIN 
again that, because of the conf'idential nature of 
our records, I would no.t disclose to him the names 
of other individuals who have been or will be inter-

. viewed. 

Re 7th Paragraph of Referenced Lette~ -

My Comments: This paragraph contains assumptions 
and conclusions by Mr. AUSTIN. 

Statement to Mr. AUSTIN: I advised Mr. AUSTIN he stated 
in his letter that he had the 
evidence which, if followed by 

the FBI, would establish beyond doubt that the Food 
and Drug Administration removed the res in this case. 
I told Mr. AUSTIN that, in previous interviews with 
him and during the present- interview, I desired any 
and all information he possessed relative to this 
matter. 

I asked him if he saw anyone 
remove the water. He replied that he had not. T 
asked him if anyone who removed the water had told 
him, AUSTIN, that the water had been removed. He 
replied he had received no such information. I asked 
him if he had any other evidence or information 
relative to the removal of the water. He replied 
that he had tla peculiar chain of events" which he 
believed indicated FDA had removed the water. I 
asked Mr. AUSTIN specifically to furnish this upeculiar 
chain of events." He stated it was not readily avail­
able and that he would have to get it together and 
did not know how long it would take. 

r pointed out to Mr. AUSTIN that 
he stated in his letter that I told him the FBI had 
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everything he had. I told Mr. AUSTIN this statement 
was not true and, if such w.ere the case, ! would not 
have interviewed him in the ~irst place. I told him 
that, on the occasion of my first interview with him, 
I requested all information and evidence he had 
relative to the disappearance of the res. I further 
told him I recall that he had asked me whether he 
should get in touch with our New York Division in 
order that he might furnish information to them which 
they should have in investigating this case. I 
informed AUSTIN that, on this occasion, I told him 
to furnish such information to me, and I would see 
that it was received by the New York Division. I 
further stated I told him on this occasion that, if 
our New York Division desired information from him, 
the Philadelphia Division would be advised and he 
would be reinterviewed. Mr. AUSTIN stated that 
my comments as given above were true • 

.r,. ~~ -3~ 

Mr. AUSTIN apologized for the interpretation taken 
from his letter and stated that he did not intend it to reflect 
upon my personal work, and he added he believ·ed I had been 
courteous and unbiased in my dealings with him. He stated 
that the sole basis for his letter to me was the fact that he 
was somewhat upset after calling Mr. HERBST, Norman Storage 
and Trucking Company, New York, and ascertaining that HERBST 
had not as yet been intervielved. 

Mr. AUSTIN volunteered to write a letter to me 
clarifying his first letter and pointing out that he intended 
his first letter as no reflection upon me. AUSTIN was neither 
encouraged nor disc,ouraged to write a second l ·etter. 

AUSTIN displayed to SA LAWSON and the writer a letter 
dated March 2, 1953, which he had written to J. EDGAR HOOVER, 
Director, FBI, but which he had never mailed. He stated he 
did not mail this letter because he did not want to go over my 
head. This letter contained a general summary of his case and 
included the usual unsubstantiated charges which he has made 
over a period of years against the FDA. 

- 6 -
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In the last paragraph of this letter, AUSTIN stated 

in effect that it was his opinion that SA ROCK had been 
limited in his investigation by some higher authority in this 
Bureau~ He also stated that SA ROCK had been thorough and 
courte.ous 1n his invest"igation at all times but, since he 
~OO~ that no investigation had as yet been conducted at 
the warehouse in New York, he felt the investigation was being 
restricted to de.termining his part in the removal of' the re's 
in this case. 

Mr. AUSTIN was questioned concerning the last 
paragraph of' his letter, and he stated his telephone call to 
the warehouse in New York was his only ba·sis for believing 
that I had been restricted in my work by some higher authority 
in this Bureau. It was pointed out to AUSTIN by SA LAWSON and 
the writer that tne investigation had not been restricted by 
anyone in this Bureau and that a thorough and objective 
investigation is being conducted by the FBI, as is done by 
this Bureau in all cases within our investigative jurisdiction. 

Mr. AUSTIN is, in the writer's opinion, unreliable, 
cunning, and extremely vindictive. He impresses the writer 
as a psychopath who will stoop to anything if it benefits him 
or his case. He is a past master at forming conclusions and 
distorting facts which will allegedly support those conclusions. 

The files of the Food and Drug Administration, 
Philadelphia, and the files of Mr. AUSTIN indicate that AUSTIN 
is a prolific letter writer. These files are replete with 
letters which he has directed to various high-ranking Government 
offiCials, such as a Presidential Secretary, Depart~nt of 
Justice, Federal Security Agency, Food and Drug Administration, 
and various other individuals, including RUDOLPH HALLEY, former 
attorney f'or the Kefauver Committee. In all these letters, 
Mr. AUSTIN is vitriolic in his attacks against the Food and 
Drug Administration, charging them with corruption and dishonesty. 
He has repeatedly stated in these letters that he has evidence 
which will show his charges to be true. Mr. AUSTIN, in inter­
views with me, has been unable to furnish any information to 
SUbstantiate the charges he made. 

AUSTIN expressed opinions as facts ,. and appeared to 
be unable to distinguish between an opipion and a fact if the 
decision involved Capon Spring Water or himself. 

- 7 -
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It is believed that the Bureau should be advised 

of the full facts in this matter inasmuch as there is no doubt 
in 'my mind that it is only a matter of time until Mr. AUSTIN 
will communicate with the Director. 

It is my opinion, and the opinions of SAs LOUIS B. 

., 

PIECHOTA and ROBERT J. LAWSON, who have at different times 
interviewed Mr. AUSTIN with me, that Mr. AUSTIN believes our 
findings will definitely show FDA removed the res. He believes 
our investigation will assist him in winning his civil suit with 
FDA. It is the opinion of the above agents and myself that, if 
our investigation does not find FDA responsible for the 
disappearance of the res, Mr. AUSTIN will level abuse upon this 
Bureau, as he has done with other Government agencies, and will 
charge a conspiracy against him. 

The report of SA ROBERT N. WINGARD dated February 12, 
1953, at Washington, D.C., and my repo~t dated February 24, 
1953, at Philadelphia, and enclosures to those reports contain 
ample information regarding the opinions of others, including 
Attorney General McGRANERY and Mr. OSCAR m·JING, former Direct'or, 
FSA, regarding the attitude of Mr. AUSTIN. 

I have had almost twenty years of working eXperience, 
over five of Which have been in the employ of this Bureau. The 
fact that Mr., AUSTIN was analyzed correctly the first day I 
talked to him is proven by the fact that, on my second interview 
with him, I took another agent with me as a witness. 

The above may also be demonstrated by the fact that 
I gave a receipt to Mr. AUSTIN on February 19, 1953, for the 
items borrowed from him. It will be further noted that I 
obtained this receipt from Mr. AUSTIN on February 24~ 1953, 
when I delivered the borrowed items to him. The fact that I 
did not trust Mr. AUSTIN will be further noted from the fact 
that I had him write the following receip.t on rryy receipt: 
"Return of the above items acknowledged, Feb. 24, 1953, 
/s/ LOUIS L. AUSTIN." This item is contained in lA-4 of the 
Philadelphia file. 

My report dated February 24, 1953, Page 11, last 
paragraph, gives information furnished by AUSTIN regarding 

- 8 -
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a letter from Mr. A. P. ST. THOMAS to Norman storage and 
Trucking Company, dated April 25~ 1945, which bore initials 
"JAK" dated March 28, 1951. r.ffr. AUSTIN stated these were the 
initials of Inspector KEDZIOR, FDA, who, he alleged,. had taken 
this letter from the files of Norman sto~age and Trucking 
Company without permission. 

. That I did not trust Mr. AUSTIN may be demonstrated 
by the fact ,I initialed no exhibits borrowed from him, but 
rather initialed and dated a tab of paper which was placed 
on the document when it was photostated. This was done 
because it was realized at the time that, if AUSTIN made 
charges against KEDZIOR, he might do so against me unless 
foresight were exe~cised. . 

r feel I was aware of the unpredictable character 
of Mr. AUSTIN from the time of my first interview, and I know 
I was extremely guarded and cautious in any remarks made to 
him .. This may be demonstrat'ed from Mr. AUSTIN's letter, wherein 
when he quotes me, he quotes me correctly, and wherein it will 
be noted that his innuendoes are based on his opinions. I feel 
I have made no misstatements in my dealings with Mr. AUSTIN and 
that maturity of judgment was exercised. 

As further evidence of Mr. AUSTIN's character, on 
March 3, 1953, AUSTIN advised me in a rather sheepish, abashed, 
and almost guilty manner that he had information he had not 
given when previously interviewed because he considered it of 
a delicate nature. He stated he should have furnished this 
information during previous interview. This information is as 
follows: 

Mr. AUSTIN mentioned the retrial scheduled for 1952 
in Camden, N.J., and stated that he had primed his counsel to 
be on the alert for a Government move to dismiss the case. 
Mr. AUSTIN was asked what prompted him to do this, and he stated 
his attorney, HmfARD BURT, had told him in July 1952 that 
attorney COOPER BROWN, who represented him~ AUSTIN, in Camden, 
N.J., had said he had uncovered a flaw in the FDA's case and 
that he could have the case dismissed for a $1,000.00 fee. 

He stated that, after the appearance in court, he 
interrogated BROWN as to how he had uncovered the flaw in 

- 9 -
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FDA's case, and BRmVN said the information had been "leaked" 
to him by Assistant United states Attorney FEINBERG. However, 
BROi'lN said later that it was not FEINBERG but Federal Judge 
MADDEN who had "leaked" the information to him. He stated 
this was the reason he had told his attorney to be on the 
alert for a dismissal of the Governmentts case. 

AUS.TIN t s manner in rela t:ing the ab ove was not forth­
right, but rather cunning, and it appeared to be an obvious 
attempt to cast aspersions on a Federal Judge and an Assistant 
United States Attorney. 

I did not set forth this information in my report 
dated March 10, 1953, at Philadelphia, because I believed, 
due to the delicate nature of the above information, it should 
be furnished to the Bureau by letter and not in report form. 
I did not set this forth in a cover letter because this memo 
was in preparation at the time, and the information is reflected 
herein. 

It was amazing to the writer to see how much information 
Mr. AUSTIN has obtained from Government records by writing 
letters such as this to Government agencies and officials, and 
by receiving bit by bit information that properly belongs to 
the Government in replies to these letters. 

'/ /ill /2 /J§ 
11tL~)~~ kPt~G 
MICHAEL J. ROCK, III 

Special Agent 
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THIS CASE ORIGINATED AT NEW" YORK PJS 
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'r Trn.S t) CHARACTER OF CASE! 

UNITED STATES v. Five Cas~ etc. CONTEMPT OF C~~T; 
£ ',~ Stia0#~~~ng Wat~~m:.g1; OBSTRUCTIO~ OF/JUSTICE 

_a..1 ~JI 'U 3-/ 
/ SY.NOPSIS OF FACTS: 

I 

, . 
DETAILS: 

, ' 

Records FDA, NY District, reviewed ~ i~or~." ' I 
mation relative to seized water set out. 1 ' 

I STANLEY H. LOWELL, former AUSA, employees 
and .former employees o.f Norman Storage and 
Trucking Company interviewed. Details set 
out. Neighborhood warehouse men contacte~ 
concerning individual whom Mr. WILLIAM 
HERBST described as "man with badge tf who, 
according to Mr. HERBST, removed seized 0 ~ 
goods from Norman Storage end Trucking \ \, .. -
Company premises. Details set out. \l • 

r:n:1;"'~ 
~T:\':<~~~i?!;":';1t 

.... ~-0.1~~ ----~j'-1 , '-.t'" - p -

Mr. CHARLES HERRMAN made available .files of the 
New York District Food and Drug Administration, 
File No. 45453F, which file re.flected that on a 
sample summary report submitted by Inspector 

CHARLES L. GREENLl"::E, he indicated that the F,ood and Drug 
Administration was to be billed for samples taken by a Mr. 
GREENLEE on May 27, 1943. 

-, 
The file failed to reflect that the Food and Drug I~ 

Administration had been billed for such s,amples and Mr. HERRMAN 
advised that to his knowledge the Food and Drug Administration had 
never received a bill for sampling the goods as indlca.ted. The 
.following correspondence, not previously reported to the Bureau, 
was located in the .files o.f the New York Distriet Food and Drug 
Administration, and photostatic copies o.f each piece of 

r;. ~ 

PROPERTY OF FBI-THIS COfiFIDENTlAL R~PORr~~' ~ CONTENTS ARE LOANED TO YOU BY THE FBI AND ARE tlDT TO BE DISTRIBUTED OUTSIDE OF 
AGENCY TO WHICH LO/iUEQ.:) Apn 1" 1 (el , to it 1\, '1 ~!GOhRNM"'T PRINTING O'PIC! lo-aU261H1 
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correspondence is being forwarded. 

A Report On Seizure Accomplishment dated June 4, 1943 reflected 
that the following goods were seized on the premises of Norman 
S,torage and Trucking Company, Inc •• 10-12 Leonard Street. New York 
City: 

2 cases of 1 - 5 gallon demijohn each ;: ~ 5.00 'jll 

9 cases and 8 bottles each 2 quarts 
(12 to a case) 35.00 

7 cases - 2 quarts 6 bottles each 12.00 

$ 52.00 

This seizure accomplisbment was signed by CHARLES L. GR"8m-IL6!F!, 
Food and Drug Inspecto~, and the report reflected that he accompanied 
Deputy United States MARShal \i'ILLI~1 TUBUAN when the seizure was 
accomplished. (Enclosed FDA New York No.1) 

A s8.l.'1lpl,e summary and analytical report showing the source of 
the water on which analysis was made~ and a report of the analysis 
was contained in the file. A photostatic copy of this report is 
being submitted as an enclosure. (Enclosed FDA New York No.2) 

The file contained a letter dated June 13, 1951 which reflected 
that l·w. STANr.lEY H. LO~vE~, 113 \iest 42 Street, New York City, ha.d 
been contacted by Inspector JOHN A. IGDZIOR. (Encl.osed FDA New York 
lilo. 3) 

A memorandu..1l1 of a telephone conve-rsation between Hr. GILBERT S. 
GOLD~1ER and R. L. HORST on November 9, 1951, reflected that Mr. 
HORST was requested to contact the United States Marshal in order 
that they could conduct an investiga.tion and f'urnish the information 
to the United States Attorney at C~mden, New Jersey. (~nclosed FDA 
New York No.4) 

A letter dated Uarch 24, 1952 in the file, contains information 
relative to the instant case and a photostatic copy is being furnished 
as an enclosure. (Enclosed FDA New York No.5) 

I~. HERRI~W made a check of his files of all inspectors employed 
by the Food and Drug Administration from January 1, 1943 to the 
present, and he stated that none of the inspectors hired by the New 
York District during that period were of the same general dssc:ription 
as that furnished by I4r. llILItIAM HERBST, Vice-Presulent of the-Norman 
Storago and Trucking Company, Incorporated. Hr. llSRRHAN advised that 

- 2 -



• 
~NY 69-53 

thore have been only a handful of inspectora over fifty y~ars of 
age during this period, and that none of these nen even remotely 
fitted the deocription furnish by Mr. HERBST. He advisod that he 
had been personally acquainted with All of these insl>ectors 8I.1d is, 
therefore, qualified to make a con/parison betwoen them nnd the 
individual described by BERBST. 

~~. HERRtUU~ advised that to his knowledge he has furniched all 
the information he has in his possesGion relative to the seizure 
of the Capon Springs water and of any investigation thnt may r~ve 
been conducted by the New York District of tho Food and Drug 
Administration. 

IvJr. ERNEST :I. M:GYN, President, Uornan Storngealld Truclring 
Company, Incorporated, 10-12 Leonard Street, New York City, roade 
available the following correspondence retained in his Capon Springs 
file: 

A letter dated March 20, 1952 to ¥Jl'. E. J'. r&"YN, Normp..Jl Storage 
and Trucking Company from Mr. LOUIS L. AUSTIN. (Enclosed Norman No.1) 

A letter from E. J. ¥~~ to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN dated Septembor 10, 
1951 which reflects Capon Springs paid all the invoices for merchandise 
and that the last invoice was dated May 31, 1947. The letter further 
stated that th~ reeords of the Norman Storage and Trucking Corr~any 
did not reflect in what manner the water had been removed from the 
premises, and that it is believed that the Food and Drug Administration 
hB.d ordered the removal of the 'flater from the warehouse and that 
possibly the reeeipt for the removal may be in the possession of 
!4r. L. L. AUSTIN. (~nclosed Uorman No.2) 

The file contained a letter dated September 9, 1951 from 
LOUIS L. AUSTIN to r4r. ERNEST J. MEYN in Which I1r. AUSTIN posed 
several questions requesting information as to who paid the monthly 
storage charges and other questions coneerning the removs.l of the 
seized water. (Enclosed Norman No.3) 

A letter from E. J. Mh"YN to r~. L. L. AUSTI~ dated September 6, 
1951 stated in part that a letter received rrom Mr. A. P. St. THO}mS 
dated April 25, 1945 and an envelope Which V~. MEYlT believed to 
have contained the official order when tbe seizure of Capon Springo 
water was aecomplished, was submitted to Hr. AUSTIN as an enclosuro 
to this letter. (Enclosed Norman No.4) 
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A letter dated August 29, 1951 to the Norman Storage a.nd Truck­

ing Company frOFl LOUIS L. AUSTIN reflected that a Dr. ~1. S. DO~n~S 
would contact the Norman. Storage and Trucking Company relative to 
the disappearance of the Capon Springs water which had originally 
been seized by tho government. (Enclosed Norman No.5) 

11r. ERNEST J. 1-1EYN advised tha.t he does not presently know the 
whereabouts or JANES KII-ThlINS, Secretary of' the UOrmBrL Storage and 
Trucking Company, but sta.ted that he expects him to return to New 
York prior to April 1, 1953. 

Hr. 1,IEYl{ advised that the \-later on his premises h~d never 
belonged to him and that, therefore, he had. never billed nnyone 
for tho samples of water which hEld been taken by the Food e.nd Drug 
Inspectors. He stated, however, ~s previously reported to the Bureau, 
that 11r. A. P. ST. THOMAS had paid all storage charges for Capon 
Springs water stored on the premises of the Norman storage and 
Trucking Company. 

I-lr. STAr.n:IEY H. LOvIET .. L, 51 Chambers Street" Nml York Oity, 
advised that to his lmowledge, at the time of tho a.ppea.l in 1946, 
the Ce,pon Springs water which hed been seized by the United States 
MarshRl, was still in the custody of the government. He advised 
that he has no records pertaining to eithor the trial or ~ny 
inforffiation relative to the di~appearance of the seized water. 

The following neighborhood warehouse men were contacted in an 
effort to secure infor:elation relative to the individua.l with the 
badge as described by Mr. HERBST, who had stated that this individual 
was known to warehouse men in the neighborhood. 

~~. JOSEPH S~BBLLA, 18 Leonard Street, advised that he has 
never had any contact with Food and Drug Inspectors fitting the 
description of the man described by }w. HERBST. He st~ted that 
there have been several individuals in the neighborhood who would 
in generfl.l £i t the deacription, but that these men are individuals 
who no~mn11y buy damaged or spoiled goods, and are generally in 
business for themselves. He advised that these are the only 
indi viduals who have worked in the neighborhood buying or removing 
damaged or spoiled goods during the past five or six years, and that 
he knows none of them over served in an official capacity either 
in the Food and Drug Administration or any other agency. 

11r. WILLIAM hICHTENSTEIN, owner, Ideal Packing Comp~ny, 196 
West Bro~dY1ay, a.dvised that he h9s met several Food and Drug 
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Inspectors in connection with his business, and stated that none or 
them tit the description ot the man as described by ~~. HERBST. He 
stated that he has never had any occasion to deal with eny of the m,.n 
in the neighbo~hood who buy damagod nnd spoiled goods. 

Mr. G. 'ttl. VOG]';!', President, F and S Harehouse and Trucking 
Corporation, teonard Street, stated that he bas never had any 
occasion to come in contact with Food and Drug Inspectors and advised 
that he is not tamiliar with anyone in the neighborhood serving in 
an otficial capacity, that would fit the desc~iption as furnished by 
t-lr. HERBST. 

The following employees and tormer employees of the Norman 
Storage and Truclting Company were contacted relative to informa.tion 
concerning the dlsappearBnce of the Capon Springs water Which had 
been seized by the government: 

Nr. RICEARD W. HERBST, warehouse man; Mr. JAlwlES P. TAYLOR, 
warehouse man and truck driver, advised that they have been employed 
by the Norman Storage and Trucking Compa~ny for approximately twenty­
fi ve years, and tha.t they do recA.ll that for a period of time 
Capon Sp~ings water was handled by that company. They stated, 
however, that prior to approximately three or four years ago, they 
had both been on the road driving trucks and, therefore, had ve~y 
little occasion to become familiar with activities in the warehouse 
and could furnish no info~mation concerning the disappearance of the 
Capon Springs water.' 

ANTHONY GWOZDIK and SALVADORE ffRAVATA, former employees of the 
Norman Storage and Trucking Company, who worked the~e during the 
period in question with the exclusion of the years 1943 through 1945 
when both were in the service, advised that they recall the Norman 
storage and Trucking Company handling Capon Springs water, but were 
unable to furnish any information relative to the seizure of the 
water or the disappearance of it. 

TIMOTHY CRI~10NS advised that he worked for Norman storage and 
T~ucking Company from 1942 to November, 1947 when he resigned. He 
stated that he was in military service from November, 1942 to October, 
1945 and that upon his return he was advised that tb~ eighteen cases 
of Capon Springs wate~ and some extra pottIes which were in the base­
ment, upon which there was a piece of pape~, had been seized by the 
government and were not to be moved. He stated that sometime between 
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October, 1945 and November, 1947 the water was taken out as he had 
been ,advised by someone on the premises that it had been removed. 
He stated that he cannot positively state as to exactly what time 
the water was removed and in what manner. He could furnish no further 
information. 

Mra A. MILLER, Secretary, Novick Transfer Company, 414 West 38 
Street, New York City, advised that all records of closed accounts 
have been forwarded to the Novick Transfer Company, 700 North Cameron 
Street, Winchester, Virginia, and that she had no rea:> rds available. 

The Pittsburgh Office advised by teletype dated February 23, 
1953, that DENNIE DUNLAP, Superintendent Capon Springs Water, Capon 
Springs Farm, Capon Springs, West Virginia, advised SA WILLIAM J. 
KUBASTA that he maintained no records for the Capon Springs 
and advised that all records and correspondence had been forwarded 
to LOUIS L. AUSTIN in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. DUNLAP stated 
that he was not cognizant of any court action regarding the Capon 
Springs water, and advised that he had no specific knowledge of 
Capon Springs water having been seized as evidence. He stated that 
only empty bottles are received at Capon Springs for, refilling, 
and that all orders are transmitted to him at Capon Springs by Mr. 
L. L. AUSTIN, and that he fills these orders and ships them to 
Philadelphia where they are stored. Mr. DUNLAP advised that it 
would be more economical to return empty bottles to Capon Springs, 
West Virginia than to pay the shipping charges on full bottles. 
DUNLAP stated that he could furnish no further information. 

The Newark Office advised on February 26, 1953 that Assistant 
United States Attorney ALEXANDER FEINBERG, Camden, New Jersey, was 
interviewed and could furnish no further information relative to 
the disappearance of the seized Capon Springs water. He stated 
that he had been advised that the res was missing by the Food and 
Drug Administration in Jupe, 1951, and that he forwarded this 
information to the United States District Court, Camden, New Jersey, 
on August 24, 1951. Newark advised that the records contained in 
Mr. FEINBERG's office were reviewed and no information not already 
reported to the Bureau was noted. 

ENCLOSURES (10) TO BUREAU 

F~A New York No. 1 

Report of Seizure Accomplishment dated June 4, 1943. 

- 6 ~ 

- - - . . - -



r 

• 
NY 69-53 

FDA New York No. 2 

Sample summary and analytical report. 

FDA New York No. 3 

Memorandum dated June 13, 1951 to Chie£, New York District from 
M. P. KERR. 

FDA New York No. 4 
Memorandum of telephone conversation between GILBERT S. GOLDmu~ 
and R. L. HORST dated November 9, 1951. 

FDA New York No. 5 

A letter dated March 24, 1952 to the Division of Regulatory Manage­
ment from ROBERT C. STANFILL, Chief, Philadelphia District. 

Norman No.1 

A letter to Mr. E. J. MEYN dated March 20, 1952 from LOUIS L. AUSTIN. 

Norman No.2 

A letter dated September 10, 1951 to L. L. AUSTIN from Norman storage 
and Trucking Company, Incorporated. 

Norman No. 3 

A letter dated September 9, 1951 to Mr. ERNEST J. MEYN from. Mr. 
LOUIS L. AUSTIN. 

Norman No.4 

A letter .dated September 6, 1951 to Mr. L. L. AUSTIN from Mr. 
ERNEST J. MEYN. 

Norman No.5 

A letter dated August 29, 1951 to Norman Storage and Trucking Company 
£rom LOUIS L. AUSTIN. 

- J.l -
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NETII YORK 

At New York, New York 

Will interview Mr. JAMES KIMMINS upon his return to Nel-l 
York relative to any information he may have concerning the dis­
appearance of the Capon Springs water. 

REFERENCE 

Report of SA MELVIN J. CALUdELL dated 3/12/53 at New York. 

- 8 -
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Form No. 1 
THIS CASE ORIGINATED AT lm-: YORK 

REPORT MADE AT DATE WHEN PERIOD FOR WHICH MADE REPORT MADE BY 
MADE 

1m] YORK 4/1/53 3/26,27,30153 NELVIN Jo. CALDHELJ.I 
TITLE ~."') CHARACTER OF CASE 

I~HTED STATES v.~ive Cases, Etc. 
~apon Spring Water, #~0126; 

FD C It±it0.53_ 

GONTENPT OF COURT; 
OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTI'CE 

SYNOPSIS OF FACT~/ Jf.l1ES Kn·Ir-fIllS, Se cr etary-Treasurer, Norman 

1 
ItIP -CJ Storage and Trucking Company, int0rviel>1ed. 

" (~(IAI 11/ Details set out. 
!I ,A /I' . y[,~ ~ 

(} 11/.~., I/'';~ /i\\ / - p ... 
&.:.J~'~( :~j' 0 ~,_ 
DET,AILS: Mr. JA1:·1ES KD<IT-TINS" Secre tary-Treasurer, NOIman 

Storage and Trucking Company, Inc." 10-12 Leonard 
Street, New York City, was intorviewed on Horch 

30, 1953" and furnished the following information: 

l1r. KIr4NINS stated that he recalled that quite a 
few years ago, a load of Capon Spring 'Vlater, consisting of 
approximately 19 or 20 cases, had been seized by the United 
States !1arshal and a white paper placed thereon. He stated 
that this load of water had been stored in the southeast 
corner of the basement on the Norman Storage and Trucking 
Company premises and that it had been kept separate from other 
goods on the premises. 

He advised that sometime between 1943, when the 
goods were seized, and May, 1947, when the Capon Springs 
.company discontinue d busine ss Voli th the Norman Storage and 
Trucking Company, tbe water was removed. 

Concerning the :removal of the water" 11r. KIMlUNS 
stated that two men came to the Norman Storage and Trucking 
Company premises sometime during the period indi cated abo ve ~ 
and he, himself, had been advised by the office that it was 

APPROVED AND 
FORWARDED: 

n """"", 

/" COPIES OF THIS REPORT 

(.-5/ Bur e au 
3 Ncew York (69-53) 

SPECIAL AGENt" 
IN CHARGE 

f 
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• 

}IOS 

PROPERTY O~FBr~·'rHI~,\ <\o"NFIDr~TIA~ Rtr»R'r':AND ITS CONTENTS ARE LOANED TO YOU BY THE FBI AND ARE NOT TO BE DISTRIBUTED OUTSIDE OF 
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penllissible for these individuals to remove the water which 
h ad been seized by the Governnent. He stated he did not rc­
c .111 h~ving seen a release for the eoods, but thnt a releaso 
vJc,uld have beGa issued by the of.rice before he, Hr. KUrirINS, 
would have allowed the r;o ods to have been removed. In this 
case, he feels certain that Hr. HEYN would have been the 
indi vlCi.ua,l who would have au tho!"'i zed the reI case of the 
seized goods. He r:tdvised that this individual had some kind 
of identification on his person and p-r'escnted it to him, but 
he d.oes not knoi3 'l.vhoth er this ind! vidual was a representative 
of the United States Government. He stated it was his belief 
tha.t he was a rep X' os on tati. va of the Government, in vier! of 
the fac t that tho Government had originally seized the l1at,cr 
and that, th(;rcfore, it must have been r>ell:lased by a Govern­
ment representative. 

BaSically, hOlwver, r·Ir. Kr1!·7INS stated that he 
allowed the rIa'Ger to be tah:en froTIl the premises on an oka.y he 
had re coi ved frcrl t he 0 ff'i ce, PI' esur-mbl y Hr. J1.BYN, and he, 
thereforo, does not know exactly vJhether tho gentleman who re­
moved the f?,oods lJaS wi th the Government or with some other 
organization. He st~ted that he had never seen this individual 
prior to that timE; and has not seen him since, and advi s ed that 
he would be unable to recognize him. According to ~1r. KUFIINS, 
thi s indi vi dual did not say he vlas a repr'osenta ti ve of the 
Uni ted States Governmont, nor could ~1r. Kn~~'lINS state that thio 
individual 'uas a reprOS€Il tative of the Uni ted States Government. 
He fldvised that he felt the goods would have to be released by 
Hr. I.ffi'YN and that it is his belief U'lut Hr. l1EYN would not re­
lease the ~oods to anyone other than a person who represented 
the Governinen t. 

~.1r. KI~"3';rNS stated that it 1 s belief that this in­
di vidual nover' went into the banement of the ::J'or;Ytan Storage and 
Trucking Comp any v1arehouse" but simply 't"ud ted on the platform 
unti.l the neized '-Jater lvas brought up to the platfonn on pallets 
by employees of the cor«1pany. At thut time this indi vidu.al, and 
another inm vi dual 't"1ho vms dri "ling t~e tru.c..~, transported the 
goods elsov1here. 

l'!r. Kn~·HNS stated he deo s not knOv.l to whom the 
release was J3iven, but he believed it was given to \'lr. MBYN, 
and further~ he docs not knotJ to v-!ho:-n. the Illoni tion for the copy 
of' the libel 'liJas giv0n when the goods l<Jere orig inally seizod • 
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Concerning his associations with A. £. ST. THOI1ruS, 
T1r. KIHNINS advised that he had seen Hr. ST. THOHAS on one or 
two occas:i.ons, but stated t.'YJ.at nine-tenths o:f the trans actions 
between the Honnan Storage and Trucking Conpany and 1'1r. ST .. 
THOHAS vIas handled over the telephone. He advis'ed that on no 
occasion did !vIr. ST .. Tr-IOH/~ ever order the company to dump any 
of the Capon Sprin~ water, nor had any o:f the water been des­
troyed in such a manner except :for a :few broken or :frozen 
bottles. 

Hr. KII'~INS, in sum .. '1lation, stated that he can only 
recall that a release had been given to an individual whom he 
believed to be a representative-o:f the Government, and that ¥~. 
KIM1HNS, being advised o:f this release, had permitted the seized 
water to be removed from the premises. He stated that he could 
not positively assert that this individual was a representative 
o:f the Government, nor had he seen any release :for the water. 
He advised he could :furnish no further infonnation relative to 
the disappearance of the Oapon Spring vlater which had originally 
been s ei zed by the Uni t,ed States Government. 

- p 
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lID1-fINIS 9:'RATlVE PAGE 

NEU YORK 

At Ue't-I York, New York: 

~vill report results of' investigation conducted by 
the Richmond, Virginia, Of'fi ce rela ti ve to any shipments 0 f' 
,Oapon Spring water from New York, NervI York, to Capon Springs, 
l'Jest Virginia, or Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, whEn such inf'or:m.a­
tion is received. 

REFERENCE: 

Rel)Ort of' SA r·1BLVIN J .. OAWvJELL, 3/20/53, New 
York. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU' OF ' INVEw I I\:JI\I IvN 

'_ .. 

PonuNo.l , 
THIIiI cASE ORIGI~TED AT lfEWYORK 

Rt;PORT MADIt AT DATE Wl-f1!N 
MAD£ 

PERIOD "OR WHICH MADE 

.1 NEW YOm . 5/8~:3 4/22,29.30/53 

bjg 
. . R£pc)RT ...... .,..V 

MSLVIN. J.CALDWELL 

~~. mUTBDSTATBS .~!VB C'ASES, ETa • ' . CHAAACTEROF' CASII: . 

" ,,; Capon SprIngs Watep~#~0126;;FDC#l005J. CON'l'EMPT ·OFCOURT; 
OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 

SYNOPSIS OF F'i7~ 

. ':.' 1-<' ~uJJ lforecords , aval1ableNovlck Transfer ComP-l, 
Jc,c.-~~ ~ .~ . Wlnche8ter, : v~~~~a. 

. h rH~~:r/~~ -- "~.- ~. . . - C -
~ I J/ .. -iJ&-~.lvJ l" f;!! "' . . . 
DBTAILS: · fVU . By letterciat:ed .Aprll 27 .. 1953. RIc~on;dOttlee 
' . tur.nlshed a cop,. of an air ... t,l datedMarclaZ+ • . 
1953, which retlect'd that JOSEPH· HERSHBBRGE.R, Executive Vic. 
P~resldent, :VovlckTrcsfer Company,Winchester,Virg1nia, had '" 

.. advised that In accordance with Int.erstateColD1llerce Co_lss10n 
' regulations th&y ' <19. notretaln reO.Ol'dsoeyond • •. p erl.9,dof till"­
years. He advised .that ,hey are,.able tolo~at. · ati~r.cord · .. ... 

'" relative to thetransport&tlon-of r'ull bottles of Capon Springs 
. "Water to Philadelph.!;a, 'eQneylvanla, and Capon Springs, West 
. . Vlrglniafroa, New Yorlc ctty. .·· .. ,. ' 

. The PhI1e.delphla attiee bJ letter . dated · April 28, . 
19$3, furnishe''dto . tbe . NewYQ'rkOfrlee as .an · enelo.sure toa 
letter froll; LOUIS t.AUSTIN,Oapon Springs dated AprIl 15" 1953, 
"again setting forth Mr,_ AUSTIN's ,opin'ion relati veto .. th. F.oOd ' ·· . , 

. ;: .. . ·· 4 .. Dru.& ....•. Admill.letra.tiO.' n. This. letter" i8 belng.8ubm1tted as· an . . ' 
.' enclosure to,·the Bureau. , . /-1, ,'r, 

__ ~~.~ ... " ();~.' . .. .. . : . . . . - G -1,.JI/S~~ [Jr1 t/ .. . 
? rv. In -:t b ,..,.; \{It-~ , 

ENCLOSURE · 0 THE ' BUREAU: ·-V ~:)0~' . . 

.... 

Ol!Le, P,ho'tostat · of original letter. ·d Mr. LOUIS L • . 
4/15/53 "8 furnished with PhIladelphi, letter,4/28/S • . 

~ .. 

. . @ SU,..,8I1 (69-656) (~l'\j 
1- Hew Y.ork (.69-,3) 

r ' ., ..•. '. ; .- . .; f 

, ... ..... ' , ' , 

""'WI!W>"nAl REpOIfT AND iTS CON TEns ARE L()Afu:i; ito YOU · BY THHlli AND 

' . 
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ADMINISTRATIVE PAGE 

Report of SA MELVIN J. CALDWELL, New York, 4/1/53. 
Richmond letter to New York, 4/27/53 .. 
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A.a1atant Attorne., GeD.Nl 
Warren Olney III Jul,.2l, 1953 

Direotor, PBI (69-656) 

0\ UlflftD STA'l'!:S ya. ?IVE OASIS, E'l' A.L 
v _CAPOB . Sf..llII.P~WA!'ERJlU,..ttlR:t~$.,·' 

FEDERAL DIS!RlO'r ' 'COU!'l IU.' 1.00$), . 
CONTEMPT OP COURf; OBS!RUC!IOB OF~!ICB 

Reterence 1s .. d. to .., .e.or.ndum elated M'.,. 25, 
195), and to the :Nport ot Specl.al Agent ·Melv1nJ • Caldwell 
dated Mal 8, 19.$.3, at .ev York. '.' 
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TO 

lum · UNITED S 

Director. Federal Bureau ot IBvestigation 

Warren Olney III. Assistant Attorney General 
Criminal Division 

UNITED STATES VB. FIVBCASES, BT AI. 
~CAPO. SPRIBGS JATp BII1IRIR 10126 
tIP~ n lE'fBICT COJT8II' FDGa lee6l, 
cotrrEm OF COURT J OBSTRUCT lOll OF JUST ICE 

G. 1. H. -l 
This is in reply to your JleJll)randum dated JulY' 21. 1953, 

;t .in which you request to be advised whether turther investigatiovn ,.-
, .5,- t . .9t the a'bove-captioned matter is desired. 

fL~" ~ 

to
)'t_ " ,v 'f /,"" This .atter is being reviewed in the Cria; .. ] Division 
~' J ~ tor possible violation of tederal crim:l..Dal laws. Upon the co ... 

;..~' v""'JP.."';-4 '. pletioD ot the study' of the cue we will be pleased to advi.e 
"";j)" . " . _ !/'~ , Jj)tpromptly concerning the necessity for further inve~tisat~IM'Jl"'--" 

. ,..Y;~.,:vfX". ~ Y' Y r.:' . _I J {J - 0,S1_,. 

. t~4" . "1\';u .:_,..lJ" . IlOORDED-l ..I2.J-. -. ~Q 11 .. . .. .. "IIl(G,- -y . ~ .. _ ~03 NW. 
, ,,~ ~ 3 lOf - ,-, ~ ~ \J ~ 
, ~ ~.,.{. tj./L , 
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, 
Director., Federal Bureau of Investigation 

Warren O~1.:.Il:l. Ass ictent Attorney General 
Cri.Jn1na1 Division 

UNITED STATES V6. F'IVE CASI!iS, ET AL 
C!\POH Sl'RINGS WATER NUMBER 10126 
FBDEl-;AL DISTRICT COURT IroMBER 10053, 
CONTEMPT OF COURT J OdSTRUCT ION OF' JUSf~ ICE 

, 

WO,JMK,bf 

22-51-346 

This is in reply to your Memorandum (iated July 21, 1963, 
in which you request to be advised whether tu~;h8r investigation 
of the above-oaptioned matter i8 desired. 

This matter is being reviewed in the Criminal Divi8ion 
tor possible violation of federal criminal lawale Upon the com­
pletion of the study 01' the oase we will be pl~ .... d to advice 
you promptly oonoerniug the neoessity for further 1ny •• t1gatlon. 



s, 

" 
ASSistant Attorney General 
Warren Olney III 

Director, FBI (69-656) 

, UNITED ,STATES VS. FIVE CASES, ET AL. 
, alArOl\LSPRUlGa. WATER EmU J 0126_. 

FEDERAL DISTRIOT COURT NUMBER 100$.3 
CONTEMPT OF COURT, OBSTRUCTION, OF JUSTJ:CE 
(Department tile 22-$1-)46, WO:JMK:bf) 

Octo~er 30, 19$3 

.:--' . 

, , , Reference 1s made to your memorarldum dated Aug'ust 3, 
1953, which advised that t'hls matter was being l'eviewed in:,order 
to dete,rmine whether there was any possible violatl~n of' ~dera~, f.,~ , 

criminal laws. ".' , , . -" ' :~; /711 , 
, _."' 

, Advice is requested as to whether any deCision has 
been' reached. " '\ H ~';-? ~ ~3 

FWJ:~~jA g~.I, RECORDED-6\1n l) , lN~; 2 1953 .-"',' ' , 

, \ .. '".' " ~ \j,) 
, TOISOD~ote:'- _ Tht . ma~t~r h~s be;rf a~sc"ii'as~telephor:Lically with Mr. 

~~::ol .• iT. M, ,Kellay of the CriIJlinal 'P,lv;t:sion on several occasionS',. _ ' 
Belmoot~n the last contact Mr. Kelley advised no final decision had 

~::!,fO==:b .• " een, r. e,a, ch,e, d, _ but it appea, '~'e,a, th~~, th!~ facts, in this case 'dlld(?ot t~~: . constl.tute any criminal violation.l;/l,' ~ - -' ;/ 

~:~~ ,. 't'Vr;:-I~", M. J~·c'~-~'t ~ "Ut":"~'I" ,/~~~ ~~~"" ' / /' 
Winterrowd_ ,~\ ~ ... f ' ~ -(.,... - ' 
~i~~:A~~ NOV 4 195 DeT301953 " ',_'.,', ',y , ' 
MiSS ~ MAILED 19 . ,-Ir, 

, {'/' ,', 
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~ Mr. Tols011-

Office Memorandum · UNITED STATES GOVERN"'Y:~·~;'''''':;lM'l· ~O-IS== 

: Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation 

: Warren Olne,y III, Assistant Attorney General, 
Oriminal Division 

SUBJECT: UNITED STATES v. FIVE OASES, Er AL. 
C.{I.PON SPRINGS WATER NUMBER 10126, 
FEDERl\L DISTRICT OOUIn' NUMBER 10053 
CONTEMPT OF OOURT, OBSTRUOTION OF JUSTIOE 

Mr. BelmonL-­
Mr. Clegg __ 
Mr. Glavin __ 

DATE: November 19 955 H:ll'ho __ 
Mr. Ra~cn __ 

, Mr. T'racy __ 
WO:JMK lib-· l\'Iohr, __ 

Mr. Trottcr ____ _ 
lV!r. Wintcrrowd.. 
'l'ele. Room. __ 

22:-51-346 Mr. Holloman_ 
Miss Gandy, __ 

This is in reply to Bureau memorandum dated october 30, 1953, 
in which you request to be advised concerning the subject matter 
referred to above. 

The review of this matter has not been completed in the 
Criminal Division but a decision with regard to whether it appears 
that federal criminal statutes may have been violated is expected 
in the near future, at which time we will advise you promptly. 



Assistant Attorney General 
~"rarren Olney III 

Director., FBI 

omrITBD STATES V. FIVE CASES; ET AL 
CA1:0K "Sl'RDrGS·-~·IATER ~lroHB3R-l0126 
FEDERAL DISTRICT COURT uur-1BER 10053 
CONTE~·!PT OF' OOt:i'RT; -
OESTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 
(Departmen~ file 22-51-346 WO:J1~~:MC) 

\ . 

January 6, 1954 

. .. 
---' 



$rANDAJU) FORM NO. 64 

~' -Office Memorandum · 
/ ' TO 

bmOM 

Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation 

: Warren Olney III, 1\ssistant Attorney General, 
Criminal Division 

SUBJECT)~UNITED STATES v. FIVE CASES ~ J1T AL 
f....A;A.PON SPRINGS i'TATER NUMBER 10126 

""FRDEfu\i"DIS'TRICT -coimr NllfBER- io053 
CONT~~ OF COURT; OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 

1e.9-t rio 
'/ 

This refers to your memorandum dated January 6, 1954, wherein you 
requested to be advised concerning our decision with reference to 
whether the facts reported in the above-entitled subject matter 
constitute a violation of federal criminal statutes. 

Bureau reports and other information in our files pertaining to 
this matter have been reviewed in the Criminal Division in view of 
possible violations of Title 18 U.S.C.A., sections 4.01, 402 and 
1503, and it is our conclusion that the evidence submitted is not 
sufficient on which to base any prosecutive or further investigative 
action. Accordingly, no further investigation by the Bureau is 
desired and we are closing our files in this matter. 

-_ ._ . -- - - - -_._- - - - - - - --- - -------- --"-



, • 
A •• l.'aD' AttornelOeneral Pebr~&rJ S, 1954 
Wart-en Olney III 

O VlI!BDSTAT~SY, • . PIVE CA81t~J E;T AL. 
QAPOI .. .lfBIlIQS .. WADI . . 10... .lQl~. . ' 
PEDBBAL DISTRICT OOURt 10. lOOS) 
COlfHM1:)lr OJ' COURT 
OBSTRUCTION or JUSTICE 
(nepartnsen' '11e 22-51-)4.6, WOaJMlt:mc) 

aeterenoe i. made to telepnone.oDy&r.atlon. between 
I. Warren W1llon and lobn !. Or1sab, ot . ~ Criminal D1vis1on 
aDd a repre.entattve ot the Bar.au OIl'ebrual'1 1 and 4, 1954. 

The tollov1.ft&telepaa "a. "0.1 •• 4 on FebruarJ .3, 
19S4, tl'ORl L0\11. L. Aut1n, 1427 Spruo. Street, Philadelph1a, 
Penn • .,.1'9 ania: 

I!)(A;r I BESPKC~l'P'l1LLY REQUEST OPPORTUNITY TO PRESENT TO 
r \:"1 ~Q; FACTS HEGARDlJiG .PSI IHVESTIGATiON INfO DISAPPEARANCE 

rC t>" 0" ,·US III UaVER8Va . CAPON WATER CASE NUMBER 10126 PDC 
... . HUMBER 11053 Lft'l'BB lUST RECEIVED PROM JUSTICE DEPARTMENT 

,. RBVEALS THAT ]I'B1 WAS lOT CALLE I> UPOI TO PERSONALLY 
(, ' InES'l'IGATECC)'{MISIIOIEl .LARllICK ANDOTImBS r~ FOOD U:D 
~DRUGADMIUISTRATIO. WHOM I CHARG~ WI~ CONSPIRACY II 
- .PLOTfi1m DISAPPEARANCE OF RES. DB JUStICE DEPAR'J.'MEI'l' 
~.~ lHS'PAD ACCEPTED R'&P ~)RT Oli' COUR'Sl$L FOR PDA I1ASMUCB AS 
~~~.lI ~MEMBER OF SAIl) COUNSEL IS IIVOLVED IN CONSPIRACY 

CHARGES NO TRUE INVESTIGATION WAS MADE. IT WAS 
WBI'l'IWA8B. IF mE P.t1ESEN1' PLANS TO RUSH THROUGH 
DISMISSAL OF C:ASE TOMORROW 'tHUBaDAYSMORNIHG IN US 
DISTRICT COURT CAMDEN NEW JERSEY GO THROUGH IT WILL 
INVI'lg SCANDAL. AND REFLECT UBJUSTLY ON FBI. WILL YOU 
PLEASB REQtJBS'l1 ATTORllft GElIZRAL TO HOLD UP DISMISSAL 

, ACTION UNTIL I CAN PR~SEIT FACTS TO YOU AND HIM. THE 

~ 
CASE IS NEARLY ELEWtf YEARS OLD HO DIU> FOR ' UNW) HASTE 

lOW DISMISSAL WO.UL.D GIVE US TECliH. ~<l." ... ~ .. I 'C .. ',1'. OaY BUT WOULD 
~ PREVENT mOROtlGB, IlfVESTIGATION O~ ~~Jlli~~Y -CHARGES. It 

..... lson_ . ' / ' £ .... " . " ',' .. 
dd_ \ . ,. '." (, t 

~.Im~:'- II) ~l,fl'. ·or ,"our .emoranclullt;:Ala\eQ Jan\lary 29, 19$4, 
Cle~~=aa'91.1D& .at n~ tM .... ",; .. O'lon wa • . de.I~ (~,, 'hi. matter, 
~::~:~. A\l"1Dt .4- t)'~~&r.~ r~~ b;;rtlD&rt.;~.d. "Uh a4Yl .. tb.a' 
~::~y- y ....., .'7i,;1 'fi !~. I·t -;V· /,' ... ~ 1~ . 
Mohr__ y" '{ • . L' ~ \i;'"' D( I: 8 
Winterrowd - L \. I I < .. I 

~::f~:a:~C': I-New York (69-53) to • . \, ./\ 
5i.zoo _ l-Ph11aGe~h~"dj)9-28) FEB 8 \19~ I ( / \< n ·R 5 ·,,; 1954 
M, •• Glndy _ "' l . ~.~i [J) ~ r I ,~ " .:: \1 .. \\ V. J _COMM-I=9I .. 

J:< y' :!",. ,,,, Itll ' , . , . . fVJ'I .J 
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To150n_ 
L.dd __ 
Nichols_ 
Belmont_ 
Cle~g __ 
Glavin­
Harbo __ 
Roseo __ 
Tracy __ 
Gearty_ 
Mohr __ 
Winterrowd_ 
Tele. Room_ 
Holloman_ 
Sizoo __ 
Miss Gandy_ 

A.siatant Attorne:, Gen.ral 
Warren Olney It I . 

, 
• 

1t. contents "el'e brougtlt to the attention oft.b.e Criminal 
Divis1on. A cop)" or our letter to Mr. Aust.in 1. attached 
and no .f'urtiler action w111 be taken in the absence or a 
request trom you. 

t 

• 

- 2 -



,. • 
P.br~a.,S. 19$4 

II., ~'&'UR 
.UJ.2T" .• "" •• . Str .. , . 
pa11aet.lpl:Lla, P.nn.,I".l. 

, 

»tal' ,Mr. A".tla. 

.!'ov .'.l ..... o~ p •• ..puar73, 19$4, 
e ..... ln, ..... "., of V., .. ., •. -Cap. 
apr~oa' V.,.i- .0. 10lat. ....b... . ... 1,..4 . 

. ,',' 

In •• co •• o. 'wi.~ 'J()\UI ... qu •••.• 
.. ·~nrol'll&'lon·.on'u..4· 1n ~. '.1 ...... 
••• tlJiti'li •• dt. ~ crl1dul Diy!.1_ of 
till., P.paJII'-ent ot .lll.,lo. 011. Pebruu7', 
19s., •. 

FEB·S 1954 

69-656 

JObD ldaar Booy., 
D1 .... 1&01' 

cc: ,·l-Ne·w York (69 ... S.3) '-.,. SiqlrAATE 

t .t ( .) 
(~ ,.;. 

{"'-' 
.. 

.: .. 
c < 

':..-
:..."""::. 

,'\.I 
.-
r~ 
i -;., 

''t.~-

C'":. .. 
' . . 

. - ':::'1 '-.'-
.'.:." .. ",; 

('IJ i 
,_ . 

.t.-'J 1 
-' 

"'"- -,,·,:1 
l:.; 

e, "'--l".,J :0. •• ,:,J 

I-Philadelphia (69-28)! e.o 11 slit" 

~.. NOTE: This i. closed case in wnich inv,,.tigation conducted 
' '. a.t I'eq~est··.of ,Criminal Division re disappearance' of 

,
" To n __ ' - water ~:a·a1tZ.$fiJ')y U. S. Marshal, SDNY, pursuant to 

Nic:hols__ '~9ge,~ s iri" l1belact{on by Food and Drug Administration 
Belmont_ ag~~hJs~I' qa.p8P Springs Water CompanY1 LOllis L. Austin, 
~i:!fn_ 4~~lJ~ tst1Je.Fs. ~Y" memorandum 1/29/54, Crlmin~l Division 
.~:=- .,rae1V:fseQ;:;lfq~.vldence of Obstruction of Justlceor 
nacy~_ Contel1pt ~a~ourt and no further action desired~' 
~::~y-= Austin has been inteqiewed sevel'al ti1'l1es and made 
~~~~:r;,;::-= ~ A\ ~:leg8tions WhlCh~ wr'4+ot SUbstantiated by investi-
:;.:::-~ ". ~;tl0n. C"Yts r /Q/nl B telegram rurnished A 

SofEB \1 : ge '\" Vt'(- . . .. -~ (IJ!l m p.,.,. •. 



TolSD1l_ 
Ladd __ 
Nicbols_ 
Belmon, __ 
Clc~g __ 
GIBvio __ 
Harbo __ 
~osen_·_·_ 

Tra"Y __ 
Gea"y_ 
Nohr __ 
Winterrowd_ 
Tele. Room_ 
Holloman_ 
Sizoo-__ 
Niss <jandy_ 

• • 
talenhonicallJ"r to J. Warren Wilson (5:40 p.m., 2/3/.54) and 
JohnT. Grigsby (9:05 a.m. ,2/4/54) of Crirrlinal Division. 
Both know Austin and describe him as having a phobia on 
this subject. . They feelinvestigRtlon was tnorougn and 
do hot. believe he has addi tional infor:nation. Since AustJn 
has prev!.ously·madev8rious unfounde.d charges and in view of 

'op:1.nionof attorneys in CriminalDi Vision, i ti~ not believed 
Austin should be encouraged toi'urnlsh fupther information. 

- 2 -



• • 
FIB -P-i$i, .. 

wEs4'mb 
WUS039 NL PD ' 

~ ~HILADEL~HIA ~ENN 
~ J EDGAR HOOVER 

FEB 2 

FEDERAL 'BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

MAY I RESPECTFULLY REQUEST OPPORTUNITY TO PRESENT TO 

YOU FACTS REGARDINV"E'I INVESTIGATION INTO DISAPPEARANCE 

OF RES IN US VERSUS CAPON WAT~CAQ£ NUMBER 10126 FDC 
... ~---

NUMBER 11053 LETTER JUST RECEIVED FROM JUSTICE DEPARTMENT 

REVEALS THAT FBI WAS NOT CALLED UPON TO PERSONALLY 

INVESTIGATE COMMl.SSIONER LARRICK AND OTHERS IN FOOD AND 
.. 

DRUG ADMINISTRATION WHOM I CHARGE WITH CONSPIRACY IN 

PLOTTING DISAPPEARANCE OF RES, THE JUSTICE DEPARTMENT 

INSTEAD .ACCEPTED REPORT OF COUNSEL FOR FDA INASMUCH 4s 
ONE MEMBER OF SAID COUNSEL IS INVOLVED IN CONSPIRACY 

CHARGES NO TRUE INVESTIGATION WAS MADE_ IT WAS 

WHITEWASH. IF THE PRESENT PLANS TO RUSH THROUGH 

DISMISSAL OF CASE TOMORROW THURSDAYSMORNING IN US 

DISTRICT COURT CAMDEN NEW JERSEY GO THROUGH IT WILL 

INVITE SCANDAL AND REFLECT UNJUSTLY ON FBI, WILL tou 
PLEASE REQUEST ATtORNEY GENERAL TO HOLD UP DISMISSAL-

r""-~ *If"~. • .... 110 It 

, ~rr. ,["l""n __ 
$ :r •.. !",.,:,J __ ' 
.. 'r , .. , 1 i ..,\ r. t' t .. ~:, ~;-

I fL ~'I ~;:\ .• ~ - I 

1'1". ~T .. ' ·l ' __ .~ 
}'~4'.~" ~1 __ 

. 1\~1:. rt ' , 1 r _, _____ 
:~rr. !: *;,, ~ __ 
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STANDARD FOR'" HO.IS4. • 

Office Memorandum I} UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 

TO 

r 

PROM : 

Mr. Evans~ 
F. W. Jaenike 

SUB~CT: ~VNITED STATE' vs. FIVE CASES, ET AL. 
-CAPON SPRINGS WATER NO. 10126 

.E..EDERAL D~STB.I_C_T~C:6URT- NO'. 20053 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 
OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 

:// (Department File 22-51-346, WO: JMK:mc) 

DATB: March 1, 1954 

John T. Grigsby of the Criminal Division telephonically 
inquired 3/1/54, as to whether the Bureau has extra copies of 
investigative reports in this case, which could be loaned to him. 
He said U. S. District Judge Thomas Madden, Camden, New Jersey, on 
whose trial calendar the civil case in this matter is pending, 

Tolson_ 
Ladd __ 
Nichols_' 
Belmont_ 
Clegg __ 
Glavin­
H.rho __ 
RoseD_ 
Tracy __ 
Gearty_ 
Mohr __ 
Winterrowd _ 
Tele. Room_ 
Holloman_ 
Sizoo __ 
Miss Gandy_ 

expressed a desire to be informed concerning the Bureau's investigation, 
and it is contemplated that copies of Bureau reports may be made 
available to the Judge during a conference. At the conclusion of 
the conference with the writer Grigsby said he would determine the 
availability of the reports in the Department file and the Bureau 
should disregard his request for additional copies of our reports 
in the absence of further advice. 

As a matter of background, this is a closed case in which 
inv~stigation was conducted at the request of the Criminal Division 
regarding disappearance of water seized by United States Marshal, 
SDNY, pursuant to process in a libel action filed by the Food and 
Drug Administration against Capon Springs Water Company, Louis L. 
Austin. By memorandum January 29, 1954, Criminal Division advised 
no further action was desired by the Bureau. By memorandum dated 
February 5, 1954, Criminal Division was advised of receipt of a 
telegram from Louis L. Austin, in which Austin protested the 
Department's proposed dismissal of the libel action in United States 
District Court, Camden. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
-/.~) 

Since Mr. Grigsby of the Criminal Division withdrew his . " 7'~ 
request for additional copies of the reports in this case no furth6 /' 
action is required and the foregoing is submitted for your information. 

FWJ:dej rI. · 
69-656 1 



/ , 

, 

•• 
Aasiatant Attorney General 
Warren Olne, II I 

i --

RE60RDED • 23 
Director, PBI (69-656) 

69-t5t-3o 
EXo-I01 C

· DlfIHD S'lATES VS. FIVE CASES. E'f AL,. 
J" CAPOB SPRINGS WATER-NUMBER 10126 . . 

-F'ED"ERlt I5IS'l'RICT COURT JmMBBR lOOS) 

Tolsoa_ 

CO~T OF COURT; OBS'l'RUCfiO. OF JUS'l'ICE 
(Department tile 22-48-478. WO:J!G:IK) 

Reterence 18 made. to 10lP" •• Ja4randua dated 
Maroh 10. 1954, requesting advice all t"J whether the Bureau 
would bave any objection to the furnlah1ag ot Bureau reports 
in ~his •• a. to United Statea D18t1tlct Judge Thomaa JR. 
Madden ter his Inspection in caaer&. 

!he Bur •• u does not obJeotto thia being done 
bl the United.State. Attorney. Newark. on the conditions 
oited in Jour ... orandu. that the reports are not to be 
tiled or used in .... id.nce in an,- proceedln.g or _d • 
..... ilabl. to an1 other peHoa. 

ce.: I-New York (69-5~n.formatlon) 
- with copy r)f in~ug 

: (JIb . 

FWJ: d8J r1 
)1" 

(/ 

,. 

Ladd__ , 
Nichols_ I ',,' ,-~ ';' , :, 

~r:;:1 5 2 MAR 2'2' d 1.4h
: 

Harbo_ ' 
Rosen_ 
Tracy_ 
Geany_ 
Nohr __ 

Winterrowd _ 
Tele. Room _ 
Hol1omaa_ 
Nis. Gandy_ 

~ '~ ~ ~ . .. 

~CO~M~M~---FB-I'" ~ :" ,:' , /. ;: !'. 

MARl 61954 
MAILED 31 
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Ill!r. 'f')1 ~ ··) ' 1J1":/--~~--Z$1''' ''''' ~ ~I~ '. r~~; ,~~j~ .. 
~~.. j , t ., L. • 

• UNITED STATES GoqtVI<£.~~\ 
t-STANOARO FORM NO. 64 , 

Office Memorandum • 
TO 

(!) FROM : 

SUBJECT: 

J. Edgar Hoover, ~rector 
Federa 1 Burea u of Investiga tion 

DATE: Mar',: LV::;" 1 ; .~~ -=~ , . --(\ ~~ l 
1'10: I . • A'J. '1";'" -- - S 
22- 8~7.:8.,:jt.:,,·2X1 .. -, Warren Olney III, ~~ssistant Attorney General 

Criminal Division 

United States v. 5 Cases, etc., Capon Springs 
Water - No. 10~26 

( :$<:~~~~1 
, ~ ':,/ ..... ....:-:=:::::.-" 

" ,.Ji" ~ '-i,.:/ ' 

l
{ . , l' · , 

. ~ ( /" *, ' -
il' f_ , 

Contempt of Court; Obstruction of Justice 

,/1 
The above proceeding brought in the District Cour~ for 

District of New Jersey under the Federal Food, Drug, and Co ,~ 
lUetic Act involves the seizure and condemnation of a number of 
bottles of 1-Jater alleged to be misbranded. During its pendency, 

I
the seized -water disappeared. Your Bureau was requested to make 
an investigation to determine whether certain Federal laws nay 
have been violated in connection with the disappearance of the 
seized -wa ter. Such an investiga tion ba s been completed amd no 
trace of the missing -water is disclosed. ( '/) 

The seizure action becomes moot on accounlrof the disap­
pearance of the seized article. A dismissal has been postponed 
upon the representation made to the court at our request that 
there 't\'a s a possibility tha t the Wcl ter 'tiould be found during 
the course of the investigation. 

We are now in receipt of a letter from William F. Tompkins, 
United States Attorney at Ne-wark, New Jersey, advising that the 
seizure action was pre-tried on February 4, 1954, and that at 

Jl
that time the Honorable Thomas M. ]f.iCldden, Judge of the District 
-Court, directed the United States Attorney's office to obtain a 
copy of the Federal Bureau of Investigation report. 

Please advise whether there is any objection to the fur­
nishing of copies of these reports to Judge ~~dden for his in­

I spection in camera, on the condition tha t the same are not to 
be filed or used in evidence in any proceeding or made available 
to any other person. 

o 

//:1 
I " 



---:, 
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 

Mr. RO~ ~(V"" 

Mr. Evans 'l'J/~ 
DATE: March 15. 1954 tJ? 

;f~~'~ PROM f 

UNITED 'STAT~ VS. FIVE CASES, ET AL. 
CAPON SPRINGS WATER NUMBER 10126 

. ~~nt= 
SUBJECT: 

~ffi)~~L -~1~~'J~Iftqf ,dOUR~~.N1!MBER- 10053 
CONTEMPT .oF COURT; OBSTRUaTTON-C)F'c'J1JSTICE 

By memorandum 3/10/54. Cr>imina1 Divi'sion inquired whether 
the Bureau has any objection to having reports in this cas~ 
furnished to United States District Judge Thomas M. Madden, Camden, 
New Jersey, for his inspection in camera on the condition that 
rep~rts are not to be filed or used in evidence in any pro~ding 
or made available to any other person. Judge Madden. before whom 

{civil action is pending, requested U. S. Attor~ey, Newark, to 
furnish copy of FBI reports during pretrial conferences 2/4/54. 

As a matter of background. this is a closed case in which 

CI"&II __ 
GI •• in_ 
Harbo_ 
Rosen_ Tracy __ 

G".rty_ 
Nohr __ 
Winteno.,d _ . 
Tel". Room_ 
Holloman_ 
Sizoo __ 

Min Gandy_ 

l
investigation was conducted at request of Criminal Division regarding 

, disappearance of water seized by U. S. Marshal. Southern District 
of New York. Water was seized pursuant to process in a libel 
action ~lleging misbranding filed by Food and-Drug Administration 
against"....-CapoILSpX'.:Lngs Water Company" Louis L~-Austin, and others. 
Reports were submitted by Washington Fre~d-o~frce-February 12, 
1953, Philadelphia Office, February 24, and March 10, 1953, and 
New York Office, March 12, 20, April 1, and May 8. 1953, (closing 
report). No trace of missing water which disappeared some time 
prior to March, 1951, was found and records of warehouse, in which 
water was stored, did not contain receipt obtained at time of release. 
By memorandum 1/29/54, Criminal Division advised facts did not 
warrant further action in the nature of investigation or prosecution. 

I 
It is felt Judge Madden has a de~inite and legitimate 

interest in the results of the investigatioB conducted with respect ~~ 
to alleged contempt '· of court and obstruction of justice arising I) 
out of.a civil case in his court. There appears to be no reason 
why the Bureau should object to having the reports furnished to the 
judge for inspection in camera on the condition that they are not 
to be filed or used in evidence in any pro~ding or made available 
to any other person. In this connection, it is noted these reports 

/
have been reviewed and they contain no information of a confidential 
or secllrity · hatu~e. 

'l .. I L FWJ:dej \ I ' 

,Attachment ~ ~-r"-S-¥ 
69-656 

• 
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" 
Memorandum to Mr. Rosen 

RECOMMENDATION: 

There is attached for approval a memorandum to 
Assistant Attorney General Olney advising we have no 
objection to having the Bureau reports in this case 
furnished to Judge Madden. 

l) # 
~.".I 

1i 
{iJVe 

- 2 -
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